Fort Ord
Reuse Authority

Board Packet
For

Board Meeting
January 14, 2011




~ 0 »

10.
11.
12,
13.

Fort Ord Reuse Authority
% 100 12" Street, Building 2880, Marina, CA 93933
Phone; (831) 883-3672 e Fax: (831) 883-3675 e www.fora.org

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Friday, January 14, 2011
3:30 p.m. Carpenters Union Hall
910 2" Ave, Marina (on the former Fort Ord)

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Members of the audience wishing to address the Fort Ord Reuse Authority
(“FORA") Board on matters within the jurisdiction of FORA, but not on this agenda, may do so during the Public
Comment Period. Public comments are limited to a maximum of three minutes. Public comments on specific
agenda items will be heard at the time the matter is under Board consideration.

CONSENT AGENDA ACTION
a. December 10, 2010 FORA Board meeting minutes
b. Creegan + D'Angelo Master Agreement for Professional Services - amendment to service work order

OLD BUSINESS
a. Capital Improvement Program (“CIP") — work plan ACTION/INFORMATION
i. Staff Presentation — CIP overview
ii. Consultant Presentation — draft report
iii. Schedule Board workshop
iv. Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. contract amendment
v. Provide direction to staff

NEW BUSINESS

a. Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement — Report On Special INFORMATION
Requests By Outside Agencies

b. UC MBEST Visioning Exercise Reimbursement Agreement ACTION

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

a. Administrative Committee — report INFORMATION

b. Habitat Conservation Plan — status report INFORMATION

c. Qutstanding Receivables INFORMATION/ACTION
i. Update
ii. Seaside MOA (“Memorandum of Agreement”)

d. Executive Officer’'s Travel ACTION/INFORMATION

i. Receive a report
ii. Request increase in travel budget FY 10-11

ELECTION OF OFFICERS, 2011
a. Report from Nominating Committee ACTION

ITEMS FROM MEMBERS INFORMATION
CLOSED SESSION - Real Property Negotiations: Preston Park sale

REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION

ADJOURNMENT

information about items on this agenda or persons requesting disability related modifications andfor accommodations can contact the Depuly
Clerk at- 831-883-3672 * 100 12" Street, Building 2880, Marina, CA 93933 by 5:00 p.m. one business day prior to the meefing. Agendas can
also be found on the FORA website: www.fora.org.



M

MidPe

H O U S I N G

Building Communities. Changing Lives.

MidPen Housing Corporation
MidPen Property Management Corporation
MidPen Resident Services Corporation

January 11, 2011

Michael Houlemard

Director

Fort Ord Reuse Authority

100 12th Street, Building 2880
Marina, CA 93933

Re: FORA Fee Review
Dear Mr, Houlemard:

MidPen Housing Corporation is a non-profit affordable housing developer working with
UCP East Garrison on the affordable housing planned for the East Garrison development
at Fort Ord. We are thus affected by the high impact fees currently prescribed by
FORA'’s Rate and Method of Apportionment of Development Fees (“RMA”). We
believe in paying a fair and reasonable fee for services and improvements, but we concur
with the BIA’s third party analysis that the fees needed to provide the necessary Capital
Improvements at Fort Ord are in fact less than $30,000/unit.

We understand that FORA is undertaking a review of its Capital Improvement Program
which could result in a change to the RMA. We support staff’s efforts to reassess impact
fees and hope that you will seriously review the third-party analysis provided to you by
the BIA. Revisiting these fees is an important step towards helping catalyze development
at Ford Ord, which has been stymied by the real estate downturn, and is at an additional
disadvantage due to the currently disproportionately high Development Fees prescribed
in the RMA.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,

MidPen Housing Corporation
(831) 707-2134

303 Vintage Park Drive, Suite 250 t. 650.356.2900 e, info@midpen-housing.org
Foster Gity, CA 94404 f. 650.357.9760 www.midpen-housing.org



MINUTES
of the
FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
Carpenters Union Hall - 910 Second Ave., Marina
January 14, 2011

1. CALL TO ORDER
With a quorum present, Chair/Supervisor Dave Potter called the January 14, 2010 Board of Directors

meeting to order at 3:38 p.m.

Voting members present:

Supervisor Dave Potter (County of Monterey) Mayor Sue McCloud (City of Carmel-by-the-Sea)
Supervisor Jane Parker (County of Monterey) Mayor Pro-Tem Bill Kampe (City of Pacific Grove)
Mayor Bachofner (City of Seaside) Councilmember Frank O’Connell (City of Marina)
Mayor David Pendergrass (City of Sand City) Councilmember Nancy Selfridge (City of Monterey)
Mayor Jerry Edelen (City of Del Rey Oaks) Councilmember lan Oglesby (City of Seaside)

Jim Cook (County of Monterey)
Absent: David Brown (City of Marina), Councilmember Tony Barrera (City of Salinas).

Ex-Officio members present:

Dr. Bruce Margon (University of California Santa Cruz), Kevin Saunders (California State
University Monterey Bay), Gail Youngblood (Base Realignment and Closure), Dan Burns (Marina
Coast Water District), David Meyerson (15" State Senate District), Nicole Charles (27" State
Assembly District), and Dan Albert, Jr. (Monterey Peninsula Unified School District).

Absent was a representative from Monterey Peninsuia College. Ex-Officio members arriving after
the roll call were: Alec Arago (17" Congressional District), Pamela von Ness (United States Amy),
Hunter Harvath (Monterey Salinas Transit District), and Debbie Hale (Transportation Agency of
Monterey County).

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Chair Potter lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE — Chair Potter asked
for a moment of silence in honor of those who were injured and those whose lives were taken in
Arizona this past week and pay our due respects with a moment of silence prior to commencing
with the day’s business. Executive Officer Houlemard acknowledged new FORA Board members;
Mayor Bachofner City of Seaside, Mayor Pro-Tem O'Connell City of Marina, Councilmember
Oglesby City of Seaside, and Director Burns of Marina Coast Water District (‘MCWD").

4. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - Crisand Giles, Executive Director of the Northern California
Building Industry Association (“BIA") commented on a recommendation to the process for the
Board Agenda packet availability to the public via the FORA website. Chair Potter thanked Ms.
Giles for her comments and explained that the Board typically does not respond during the public
comment period; however, staff would take her comments into consideration. Ron Chesshire,
representing the Monterey Santa Cruz Building and Construction Trades Council, reported that the
6" District Appellate Court upheld prevailing wages on Fort Ord. He also commented about
MCWD leaders in the area and the first agency in the area to move ahead and pass a version of

the workforce training policy ensuring that proper training and opportunities for local trainees will be

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting
January 14, 2011
Page 1



given on projects in the area extending beyond Fort Ord. He said that he hoped other jurisdictions
would aiso consider implementing the training policy.

. CONSENT AGENDA -_ltem 5a_— December 10, 2010 FORA Board meeting minutes; ltem 5b -
Creegan + D'Angelo Master Agreement for Professional Services - amendment to service work
order. Motion to approve the Consent Agenda was made by Supervisor Parker seconded by
Mayor Edelen and carried.

. OLD BUSINESS - Capital Improvement Program ("CIP"} — Chair Potter emphasized that the Board
would not take action on this item and that the only specific direction other than process issues is an
amendment to the Economic & Planning Systems ("EPS”) contract for $5,000.00. Executive Officer
Houlemard reported that the CIP work plan is in response to a request of Board members to review
the CIP as it relates to the cost of base-wide FORA development Fee and the Community Facilities
District (“CFD") Fee that provide revenue to cover the cost of the redevelopment of the former Fort
Ord. Mr. Houlemard said, specifically, former Board members from the City of Marina stated their
concern regarding the impact of the developer fees on slowing development in the City of Marina
and asked other Board members to concur in their desire to take a full look at the CIP . Since that
time, staff took the Board’s direction and hired a consultant that has also worked with consultants
with the BIA and other consuitants in the region working on these types of issues. Mr. Houlemard
said that the consultant provided a report which was presented to the FORA Administrative
Committee. Acting Assistant Executive Officer and Director of Planning and Finance Steve Endsley
gave a PowerPoint presentation providing a historical overview of the FORA CIP and resource
obligations. EPS Consultant David Zehnder provided the Board with a report of his findings
regarding the progress of the CIP project, specifically noting concerns with the uncertainty of the
FORA sunset, infrastructure costs, land values, CFD taxes, HCP and related endowment, TAMC
revisions, and development forecasts. He stated that a multi-phase approach is recommended and
that intermediate actions could include an interim adjustment and ongoing CIP evaluation and
financing strategy. Executive Officer Houlemard recommended input from every jurisdiction and a
workshop conducted for the Board which would flesh-out further questions and potential issues.
Several Board members asked questions regarding interim reductions, issues of fairness, up-front
nature of fees, delaying payment rather than reduction, obligation considerations, and looking at all
funding needed for Fort Ord projects not just the fees. TAMC Executive Director Debbie Hale
questioned Mr. Zehnder whether or not an engineering analysis was conducted as part of his CIP
review. Mr. Zehnder stated that they had not prepared an engineering analysis; however, it was
important to note that road projects without a completed design would have a higher level of
contingency than projects with a design, especially as it pertains to cash flow. Mr. Cook, for the
County of Monterey and as a member of the Administrative Committee, said that he appreciated that
the cash flow analysis and implications of land use would be coming back to the workshop.
Members of the public commenting were:

Ron Chesshire who expressed the following concerns: What does the public get from reducing the
fee? Would a fee reduction require a California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA") process?
Would a fee reduction result in FORA having to perform Consistency Determinations on
development projects that previously received FORA Consistency Determinations?

Ralph Rubio who asked: How does a fee reduction affect existing development agreements
between the Cities and developers? If FORA is going to give up fee dollars through a fee reduction,
what is FORA/the public getting back?

Doug Yount City of Marina Developer Services Director who commented: An additional residual
land use value analysis is needed. We need to right size the fee so development can proceed.
Crisand Giles, representing BIA who said: It is premature at this juncture for the FORA Board to
make a decision on a potential FORA CFD Fee reduction.

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting
January 14, 2011
Page 2



Chris Austin, BIA’s financial consultant, who said: Additional time is needed so that we can
collaboratively work together and right size the fee.

Bruce Delgado, member of the public, who stated: There was a typo in EPS’s materials. As a citizen
in Marina, the fee should be right sized so that Marina projects move forward and allow Marina
residents to more easily access South Marina (Fort Ord portion of Marina) from Central Marina. He
cautioned eliminating additional Habitat Management costs from Other Costs and Contingencies
without knowing the consequences of such an action.

Elizabeth (Betsy) Nahas Wilson representing Mid-Peninsula Housing Coalition, who provided a letter
that she read into the record, which supported FORA CFD Fee reductions.

Scott Hilk, representing Marina Community Partners, LLC, who stated: More time was needed to
work collaboratively on right sizing the fee.

Chair Potter said that these questions would be added to the menu of issues to be discussed. Mr.
Zehnder assured members that the workshop would concentrate the “big picture”. Chair Potter A
motion was made by Supervisor Parker, seconded by Mayor Bachofner to hold the Board
workshop before February 11 and increase the Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. contract
amendment to $8,000.00 in order for the consultant to facilitate the workshop. Motion carried
unanimously.

NOTE: Copies of both PowerPoint presentations are provided as attachments to these minutes.

7. NEW BUSINESS - Iltem 7a - Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement (‘ESCA”) — Report On
Special Requests By Outside Agencies — ESCA Program Manager Stan Cook reported that there were
munitions response special requests by Monterey Salinas Transit ("MST"), Monterey Peninsula Water
Management District (“MPWMD"), and California-American Water (“Cal-Am”). He reported that there
would be no costs incurred by FORA. Motion to receive the report was made by Mayor McCloud
and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem O’Connell and carried unanimously. ltem 7b - UC MBEST
Visioning Exercise Reimbursement Agreement. Motion to authorize additional spending not to
exceed $50,000.00 and execution of the reimbursement agreement with the University of
California Monterey Bay Education, Science and Technology Center to jointly fund the
consultant contract was made by Mayor ProTem O’Connell with an amendment to include the
wording “whichever comes first” on item 3.1 of the agreement. Supervisor Parker seconded
the motion and it carried.

8. EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT - There were four items summarized in this report. item 8a
(Administrative Committee report); Item 8b (Habitat Conservation Plan “HCP” — status report); Item
8¢ (Outstanding Receivables) and Item 8d (Executive Officer's Travel). Executive Officer Houlemard
highlighted Item 8a as noted earlier regarding the Administrative Committee/CIP Committee and the
consultant's review of the CIP stating that staff will work on scheduling a Board workshop prior to the
next Board meeting. Regarding Item 8b, Mr. Houlemard stated that there is still no report back from
the California Department of Fish and Game (‘CDFG") regarding HCP review comments. [n
addition, the U.S. Fish Wildlife Service (“USFWS") comments for two sections are still outstanding.
Mr. Houlemard introduced FORA Controller lvana Bednarik who presented a report on ltem 8c,
stating that progress was being made on the City of Seaside payment plan including four equal
instaliments through June 2012 making an exception for lowering late fees due to incorrect
calculations. She said that staff was asking the Board to consider a 1% fee on the unpaid balance.
Motion to receive the report was made by Mayor McCloud, seconded by Mayor Edelen and
carried unanimously. No Board action was taken on the reduction of the late fees and this item
was deferred to the February Board meeting anticipating that the City of Seaside would be make its
first scheduled payment on-time before the February Board meeting. Motion to approve an

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting
January 14, 201t
Page 3



10.

1.

12.

13.

increase in the FORA travel budget in the amount of $2,000.00 was made by Mayor McCloud,
seconded by Supervisor Parker and carried unanimously.

Report from Nominating Committee — Chair Potter introduced Mayor McCloud, Chair of the
Nominating Committee who reported that the Nominating Committee met and Executive Committee
nominations included Supervisor Potter as FORA Board Chair, 1** Vice-Chair Mayor Edelen, 2™
Vice-Chair Mayor ProTem O’'Connell, and Representatives David Pendergrass and Mayor
Bachofner. Motion to approve was made by Mayor McCloud, seconded by Supervisor Parker
and carried unanimously.

ITEMS FROM MEMBERS — None

CLOSED SESSION - There was one item on the Closed Session agenda - the Preston Park Sale,
which included a conference with real property negotiators.

REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION BY AUTHORITY COUNSEL - The FORA Board met and
discussion was had and direction given in the Preston Park matter. Supervisor Parker and Mayor
Pro-Tem O’'Connell were added as members to the Preston Park Ad Hoc Committee.

ADJOURNMENT - Being no further business, Chair Potter adjourned the meeting at 5:55 p.m.

Minutes prepared by Daylene Alliman, Deputy Clerk

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting
January 14, 2011
Page 4



Subject:

amendment to service work order

Meeting Date: January 14, 2011

Agenda Number: 5b ACTION

RECOMMENDATION:
Authorize the execution of Amendment 1202-21 to Master Agreement AEI-1202 for Professional
Services ("Agreement”) with Creegan + D'Angelo (“C+D").

BACKGROUND:

In November 2002, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (“FORA”) Board authorized the Agreement (for a
five-year term) with C+D to provide “on-call” engineering design services to support the on-site
transportation elements of FORA's Capital Improvement Program (“CIP”). The Agreement was
extended by Board authorization of Amendment #1202-13 for an additional five years, through
November 2012. The Agreement provides for the negotiation of Service Work Orders {("SWOs") and
Agreement amendments as funding becomes available.

The Board approved SWOs 1 through & for $1,366,750, inclusive, on October 10, 2003. SWO 3
provides for General Jim Moore Boulevard (“GJMB”) design and environmental processing. To date,
Board approved amendments bring SWO 3 funding to $1,574,235.

DISCUSSION:

In September 2009, FORA received an American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (“ARRA") grant
through the US Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration (‘EDA”). The
grant, in the amount of $6,426,754 (with a 50% local match requirement for a total of $12,853,508),
funded the construction of GIMB Phase V (SWO 3) and Eucalyptus Road Phase Il (SWO 4).

With the current national economic conditions and their impact on the construction industry the bids
for construction of these projects were substantially lower than the Engineer’s Opinion of Probable
Cost. In response to these conditions, in March 2010 the FORA Board approved a sequential list of
construction completion components that allow the full build-out of the project roads.

FORA staff recommends amending existing SWO 3 to modify the scope of services and adjust
compensation. The recommended action provides the funding to secure the services of C+D for
preparation of construction documents for a follow-on construction project inclusive of completion
components to fully spend available grant funds. See the attached fee amendment/cost proposal for
a detailed expenditure breakdown Zttachment A).

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller__"
7

The cost of the recommended amendment to SWO 3 is not to exceed $105,597. These added design
services are not eligible for EDA funding. The funding is to be derived from FORA's Community
Facilities District fees/loan proceeds included in the FY 10-11 budget: about $10,000 will be
reimbursed by Marina Coast Water District.

COORDINATION:
EDA, Administrative Committee, Executive Committee, Cities of Del Rey Oaks and Seaside

Prepared by CBQ&/L %QQ

Crissy\Mara s M. Arnoid

MicHael A. Houlemard, Jr. U

Approvegfby 4



Attachment A

- (’gé
bias {ﬁy

ot To tem 5b
, FORA Board Meeting, January 14, 2011
Creegan+D’Angelo
December 10, 2010 707007
Jim Arnold

Fort Ord Reuse Authority
100 12th St., Bldg 2880
Marina, CA 93933

Dear Jim:;

Per our previous discussions, Creegan & D'Angelo is requesting this fee amendment for
the General Jim Moore (GJM) project additional scope of work as follows:

1. Preparation of Bid Documents (PS&E) for the GJMB Phase 6 extension into Del Rey
Oaks (80% design has been completed.) Work includes Civil, Electrical and
Landscape-irrigation design, Signing and Striping Plan for GUMB, and preliminary
intersection signalization design for General Jim Moore — South Boundary Road
Intersection.

2. Final Signalization PS&E for Hilby Avenue and San Pablo Avenue.
3. Preparation of 2081 Take Permit for the GJM Phase 6 extension into Del Rey Oaks.

4. Addition Staking and Construction Inspection for (non-EDA) MCWD portions of San
Pablo, Hilby, and Broadway during Phase 5 work. This is the budget amount to be
billed to FORA for MCWD related tasks not funded through EDA. The requested
budget amount has been agreed on by MCWD.

| have prepared for your consideration the following budget outline showing additional
work required in accordance with this fee amendment request. Our fees are based on the
attached Man hour estimate.

1. SWO-3 General Jim Moore Boulevard Phase 6 Del Rey Oaks

Prepare Civil Engineering PS&E for completing GJMB within Del Rey Oaks.
Complete Irrigation PS&E within Phase 6.

Striping Plans for GJMB Phase 8.

Preliminary Traffic Signal design SBR/GJMB.

Electrical PS&E.

Prepare bid docs & award assistance and support.

DOk M=

Does not include fee for MCWD sewer and water design.

Item 1. FEE REQUEST=$53,170

UMJCES\707007 FORA-GJM Blvd. Phase IV & ViCenlract Amendments\2010 Phase VIAMENDMENT FEE REQUEST101101.doc

www.cdengineers.com



Jim Arnold ,
November 1, 2010 =
Page 2 of 2

Creegan+DAngelo

2. SWO-3 Hilby & San Pablo Traffic Signal PS&E
1. Complete Signalization PS&E for Hilby and San Pablo Intersections.

Item 2. FEE REQUEST=$26,160

3. SWO-3 2081 Take Permit Del Rey Oaks
1. Preparation of 2081 Application to CDFG .

Item 2. FEE REQUEST=$14,500

4, SWO-3 Marina Coast Water District Staking and Construction Inspection

1. Staking
2. Construction Inspection

Item 3. FEE REQUEST=%$9,767

5. SWO-3 Miscellaneous Reimbursable Fees=$2,000

TOTAL FEE REQUEST ITEMS 1-4 = $105,597

Thank you for your consideration in this matter. Please feel free to contact me if you have
any guestions.

Sincerely,

Richard Simonitch

Engineering Manager

RGS/rgs

Attachments: Man hour estimate, copy of MCWD fee request.



EXHIBIT “A”
Not-to-Exceed Cost Proposal for
Engineering, Surveying, and Inspection Services
To: Marina Coast Water District

CONSULTANT agrees fo provide engineering, surveying, and construction inspection services
in accordance with verbal requests, for a not-to-exceed amount of $17,880, as per the following
schedule for FORA services (2.1) and amended Task 1,2, 3, and 6 per Agreement 2009-22.

Task Description Hours g:tf; Total Cost
et bl el eyttt i r— G
. i L kR R e — =000
e Seriterry=Erevrer=tsitre— i — Ao
- V- SO PO IO Peroprr P A x orkso—
21 ::glggcgzanking and Const,. . . $9.767 <_

* See attached Manhour Estimate Excel Spreadsheet for Hour and Unit Rate breakdown.

. poeEg L
CONSULTANT ’W""V{f_}"" CHRGTS

[NAME CF FIRM] Creegan + D’Angelo Engineers
By Richard G. Simonitch, PE, PL.S Date: September 30, 2010

Title Sr. Vice President, Principal Engineer



S 1A 2 ZISHTTELURNYINIA 9584d 0L BAOSRBWPUSWY JSBNUOTIA 8 Al 8SBUd "PAE NFS-YH 04 L00£02880MN

165501 $ | 0£RE6S | Z0L 7S 8re'Les [ 082°/5% o$ 06528 [09e'6% | 0258 0or'ze | 0ze'zes [026'68 | 0JE0LS | 0% 008's8 | SHVTI0Q WIOLENS
05zs [ 0i% S0i8 0ELg 0z1s orLg S51§ 0418 521 $ 00Z% I ADYVYHD
0LF [0 1€ Zt ¥ ({4 £9] [E] 19 0 [ SUNOH 1¥1018Ns
285°501L § IVio1
000Z § R EEGEIRGIE
{926 § IvY.1O0LENS
- e 0 2Npay2s QMO Wold[ | v
WOV GMOW GINrD S-OMS| +
005t § qviolans
00SFi | zi91% 8riLL 3 | 08918 | ct B 3 S 1 BuiSse30d puLad| 1 &
i34 34e) 180Z WD £-OMS| €
0819z §
09192 & | 0% 0819z8 | vt 2 vZ 08 0% ve 2 3%5d| 1
olqed ues/AqiiH 39sd lionezjeuBig| ¢
0/1°€S § Iv.Llolans
026 $]0% 0CELS | vl ¥ 7 ¥ z pIEAYy FUE PIG| G}
S56'9 § | 5/9% DOS¥ S| 08213 |2k Z v v F 3%95d B38| v1
0206 § | 0063 0009 & | 0212% | oF Z 3 ¥ v Z XL ¥ISIAND I8Sd omBIL| €1
S59CL $[S5F 1S 00/6 $|005t3 [|OF Z z 7 Z IS UONeBUl] § sdesspue| 21
02972 §| 0% 029¢2% | ok 9i ¥ ¥ al 02 (24 3l 2l 39S BuusSuiIBug AT 1)
1A 25etd aWro cOms|
3 3 3 3 SHA Asang  "LWPy L53)pped €aq W0 Bud s bugo0ssy Bug S Wd Wd 7§  ™uug SYSVL
894 23y dnyepw  uepsuog WioL  g+D NOILYDIHISSY1D
aseyq Eel AT -Gng  g+o
SASA3HDIHD  dIANTONI AONIONILNOD $9Y HIADYNYW 1D3rodd
0 I 133HS AdliH g 0|qed el - SEUBS SWEIL § SHEQ Aod BQ 1A S68Ud GNrg INOLLJINASIa
DL-22Q-11 21vg {00202 #€Q0Or
JLVINILSS ¥NOHNYI ez oy OpaBuy g+ uobBasiny n o




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT

o ¥

Subject: Capital Improvement Program — work plan

Meeting Date: January 14, 2011

Agenda Number: 6a ACTION/INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION(S):

i. Receive a staff overview of the Capital Improvement Program (“CIP").

i. Receive a presentation from David Zehnder of Economic & Planning Systems,
Inc. (“EPS") regarding their draft Final CIP Review Report.

ili. Schedule a FORA Board workshop prior to the February Board meeting for a
comprehensive CIP and work plan briefing.

iv. Authorize Executive Officer to execute an EPS contract amendment to increase
contract budget by $5,000 and provide additional scope to conduct further
analysis (Attachment A), as recommended by the Administrative Committee.

v. Provide direction to staff related to EPS’s CIP Review draft Final Report
presentation (to be transmitted before the Board meeting), especially noting
recommendations in (iii.) and (iv.) above.

BACKGROUND:

On July 9, 2010, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (‘FORA”) Board reviewed a proposed
CIP work plan timeline. The Board directed staff to condense the review of CIP
obligations and resources into a six-month period and to provide monthly updates. On
July 14, 2010, working with the FORA Administrative Committee, FORA staff revised
the CIP work plan timeline to reflect January 2011 completion. The schedule was
slightly revised as a result of the CIP consultant Request for Qualifications/Request for
Proposals (“RFQ/RFP") process, holding to January 2011 completion (Attachment B).

On August 17, 2010, FORA issued an RFQ/RFP for financial consultants to participate
in a selection process to conduct the CIP review work. Four proposals were submitted
by the due date of September 1, 2010. FORA convened a selection panel to review the
proposals. EPS was selected through this process. David Zehnder is the Managing
Principal and Jamie Gomes is the Principal for this project, and each have recent
experience with California municipalities and county organizations reviewing CIP
obligations and fee structures. David Zehnder also worked with FORA in the late
1990's and is familiar with the FORA CIP. EPS attended the October 20, 2010,
November 17, 2010, December 15, 2010, and January 5, 2011 FORA Administrative
Committee meetings. They presented updated development forecasts and preliminary
CIP analysis to the Joint Administrative/CIP Committee in the form of a memorandum
on November 17, 2010. On December 15, 2010, EPS presented a cost-burden analysis
and a draft summary report on CIP obligations, cost estimates, and revenue forecasts.
On January 5, 2011, EPS presented a draft final report on their CIP review. Concurrent
with EPS's work, FORA staff is reviewing its CIP funding sources to ensure accuracy




and the Transportation Agency for Monterey County (“TAMC?) is reviewing phasing of
FORA’s CIP transportation project expenditures to coordinate regional transportation
planning efforts.

DISCUSSION:

During the January 5, 2011 Administrative Committee workshop, EPS presented their
December 30, 2010 draft memorandum. The memorandum distilled their previous
reports into three options for potential FORA Actions related to the CIP Review.

Option 1 — Reduce the Community Facilities District (“CFD") Special Tax from
approximately $46,200 to $36,500 per new residential unit based on eliminating various
contingencies not deemed essential or no longer necessary (Please note that all of
EPS's recommendations include the same percentage reduction to each CFD Special
Tax fee category (new residential, existing residential, retail, office, industrial, and
hotel). The Board is able reduce the FORA CFD Fee without an election, but only if the
same percentage reduction is applied to each fee category. The new residential fee is
highlighted because it is the largest proportionate fee generator.)

Option 2 ~ In addition to the Initial Proposal, revise the “minimum” justifiable CFD
Special Tax reduction, considering three specific proposed adjustments to the CIP
contingency reducing the fee from $36,500 per new residential unit to $29,800 per new
residential unit.

Option 3 — Consider additional, separate policy-based decisions to reduce the CFD
Special Tax below whatever “minimum” justifiable CFD Special Tax was derived using
either Option 1 or Option 2.

The following is a bullet-point synopsis of the FORA Administrative Committee
discussion, which produced numerous comments, suggestions, and questions with an
initial staff response in italics. It is intended to answer all questions in detail prior to
moving to any decision paint on these recommendations.

A. W ould fee reductions:
* Reduce the ramp up of revenues to TAMC?
e Push out building removal in Marina and Seaside?
¢ Slow down HCP endowment funding?

Staff comment: These are good questions although the consultant believes significant
fee reductions can be accomplished without impacting these programs. More
discussion is needed on this issue.

B. C oncerns that fee reductions could:

» Eliminate doilars for FORA property caretaking, dumping cleanup, etc.

* Create risk for meeting obligations.

» Create risk for legal requirements — if unable to implement Base Reuse Plan
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA") mitigations.

e Increase the risk of underfunding the CIP if the affordable/below market
incentive (Tiers 1, 2, and 3) CFD Fee reductions are used significantly.

FORA Board Meeting

January 14, 2011
Item 6 — Page 2



Staff comment: The consulftant is not proposing that FORA not meet its statuatory
CEQA obligations. In fact, the proposals all expressly ensure that FORA’s CEQA
obligations are met. Staff believes that it is highly unfikely that Tiers 1, 2, and 3
authorized fee reductions will lend to underfunding as currently designed. Other non-
CEQA projects that FORA has been asked to fund in the past (property maintenance,
efc.) might be affected.

C. Concern about future of FORA Tax Increment revenue and the resource being
used in the future:
» FORA needs to quantify its risks, considering current Governor's proposal to
eliminate Redevelopment Agencies.

Staff comment: This is a legitimate concem and should be analyzed.

D. It was suggested that an Option 3 fee reduction go further than Option 2 by also
eliminating all contingencies and provide the FORA Board with that
recommendation as an interim approach for a fixed time period such as 2 years,

» Concern about any action before getting an answer from resource agencies
on the HCP endowment funding obligation.

» Concern about reduction in land sales revenue repayment since it defers
building removal.

e Concern that Board members need to understand the CIP history, the
implementation, current effect, and impact on projects.

» Concern that FORA makes sure that actions don't jeopardize anyone's
project and that the risk is managed.

» How will you deal with any significant gap in CIP project costs and available
CiP funding from the FORA CFD Fee once fees are reduced and no
additional contingencies are in place?

Staff comment. The Option 3 fee reduction is more aggressive and is included as a
means to jumpstart development. As noted, there are a number of questions about
what the impact on individual projects might be.

E.lt was suggested that FORA needs to take an action that produces

redevelopment of former Fort Ord.

¢ Concern that action by FORA needs to produce an equivalent commitment by
developers to take action and jurisdictions to reduce fees.

» Concern that reducing fees is only one action that needs to take place.

* Will the developers actually build if you reduce the FORA fees?

» Developers responded that the proposed adjustments are good enough for
starting the machine or at least is very meaningful in moving to construction.

Staff comment: These are all legitimate questions. Will reducing the fee actually spur
the desired result?

FORA Board Meeting
January 14, 2011
ltem 6 — Page 3



F. It was suggested that a FORA CFD Fee reduction needs to be correctly sized.

» Concern by TAMC about going too far in reducing contingencies for projects
that have not been designed.

e Concern that FORA CFD Fee needs to be stable since projects count on fee
revenue for infrastructure needs (i.e. Eastside Road).

¢ Recommendation to take action soon and re-evaluate right away.
Concern about how a fee reduction affects future projects. Does this slow
down construction of roads and other improvements? Fees were part of the
deal for the land value and this is a wind fall for past projects, but a burden for
future projects because these projects may have to pay a higher land value
with a fee reduction and bear any fee increases if the CIP is under-funded.

Staff comment: These too are legitimate concerns. Staff agrees that the fee needs to
be ‘correctly sized’ but only within context of ensuring that FORA statutory obligations
are ensured and the CIP is not ‘under-funded.’ There is also a high premium to coming
to a clear decision that lends certainty to the jurisdictions, developers, and others.

G. One developer was concerned that reductions harm unentitled projects.
» Concern about deficit in 2014 if fees are reduced.
¢ It was suggested that the Board not take any action until the risks and
benefits of various fee reduction scenarios could be further discussed.

Staff comment: Staff agrees that the risks & benefits of various fee reduction scenarios
be further discussed.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller

The additional $5,000 budget authority increases the EPS contract to $29,500. Funding
is included in the approved FY 10-11 budget and is derived from the FORA CED Fee.

COORDINATION:

Administrative Committee, CIP Committee, Executive Committee, development teams,
Building Industry Association of the Bay Area, Development Planning & Financing
Group, Inc., and EPS.

C .
Prepared by !M )gggc/m Reviewed byD. % %(
Jonath arcia_; eEndsley O

Approved by

MichaetA. Houlemard, Jr

FORA Board Meeting
January 14, 2011
ltem 6 - Page 4



Attachment A
To ltem Ba
FORA Board Meeting, January 14, 2011

Tentative Scope Amendment for Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.

Scope is limited to a $5,000 increase in budget and includes the following supplemental work:

1. One draft supplemental report addressing comments and questions discussed at the January
FORA Administrative Committee and January FORA Board meetings.

2. Presentation at one additional Administrative Committee meeting.

3. Any additions or adjustments to the draft supplemental report for the next FORA Board of
Directors meeting packet.

4. Presentation at one additional FORA Board of Directors meeting.



"Hodai [eulj Yeup sjuasaid JuelNSUOY — PIROg YN0 — ul) Uer

"(HodaJ 82inos Buipuny 4|9 pue ‘suondo p10z-1sod ‘saskjeue

Ayasuss snid spodsi snoinaad sspnjour) podai [eul} Jelp syussaid JUB)NSUOY — IO/ UIWPY YHOS — u§ “Uer
"S1SB0aI0) aNuUsAS)

PuE sejew}ss 1500 ‘suofedijge d|o uo podas Alewwns jjelp sjussaid JUeyNSUOY — 4|0/ UILpY V04 — Sl 99Q
‘sishjeue 4|0 Aeuiwigid

PUe $}s838.0} jJUSLIdO[oASD JO MaIABI YRl SjUssaid JUBJNSUOD — SBRILWIOD |9/ UILIPY YHOL — wll "AON
'SIOPIOYSXE)S WO %0BQNSS) PUE MBIAIBAO Welbold — ssjiW0) d|0/ UWPY Y804 — w0z 100

Hoddns Juejnsuod 129jes jwelbold d|o) 10 MaIAs] JjBlS

LLOC 010¢ 0L0¢ 0L0e 0L0¢ 0L0¢
“uep '08(] "AON 100 deg By

)

— N M | | O

L 10T Atenuer o} 010z Joquiedag — ue|d SIOM dID PaSIAGY

LL0Z 'v1 Aenuer ‘Bunssp preog YO
BG WA 0]
g Juawyoeyy




MBINIBAQ (dID) welboud
Juswanoidw jenden

0L0Z ‘v| Aenuer

ool logeiusseid



'000¢ ‘vZ Ainr
suollebijqo jenowal Buipjing paysljgelss
pseog (VHO4) Aloyiny esnay piQ HO4 =

Ayajes allplipn
sbeuieisq wiolg
uolnejuswbny Jalepn
Juswabeuey 1ejigeH
Jisuel | juoneuodsues| ©

(G102
-9661) suonebijqo juswanoidwi jeydes

UHOJ 18s (d¥9g) ue|d esnay eseg pJO HO4{ =

o O O O




‘Sjuswanoidwi |euolba.
loj Buipuny aieys-lie) pue Juswdojansp
PBUIBIISUOD 82JN0Sal 8INSSE 0)

g JeydeyQ uonnjosay Joysepy pejdope VO =
Juswsalbe Juswses

Vd04-gn|Q eUSIS — 8661 ‘0 ‘AON =

I3 449 buiroidde suonoe w0
psbus|ieyo qnip enais — 166) ‘9L AN =

b L TR

Juswealby Juslliafjag
pue unsme" gn|) ellsig



's@sealoul DD ‘Ajlenuue | Anp sisnipy =
. 9leys-ie4, suonebniw
d¥g punj 0] 884 Juswdojansa(]
opimaseq e buneald ‘|-gE uonnjosay
pajdope pieog VYOS ‘6661 "UBl U] =
'S98} uonebiniw joedw|
JuswidojaAsp pIO 1O JaWIO) AAS]
0} YHO4 p9zuoyine spo) JUSWUIBAOL) =

LIS b TR
i S eI RN

994 Juswdolansa(g apimaseg



'd4D uly)im jJou seaue
0} saljdde o84 Juswdojonaq spimaseg =

'S@ses.oul |00 ‘Ajlenuue | Anp s1snlpy =
'SIBJI0A Q4D Ag pspuswe aq Ajuo uen =

€002
ABl\ Ul uonose Jaumopue| Aq d4dD p4O
104 JaWwloj paysi|geiss pieog YHO4 =

994 (Q40) PUSIg
saijijioe4 Ajlunwwon vy 4




SUBOT| =

sjuelc) =

Juswaloul Xe| =

Speosd0.d ases| 1o o|es pue] =

eSO e

$824n0g Bulpun4 49 Jolej 18t




so8loid papunyun Jayjo pue suoljesadp o
'Spunj jJuswaloul Xe| =

uoijoallg pleog Jad se |earowal Buiping ©
.punj spaaooid sjes pue] =

suoiebniw joedwi spimaseg o
.Spuny 894 Juswdojanaq/q4D =

NN
Rt

LTET s
ur il SRR )

buipun 108l0id dio |




|leAaowsal buipjing o

Sjuswanoldwi yisues| 9 Aempeoy o
SUe07] =

buluuelq ainjoniselu| pue 9snay aseg o©
SjuswaAoIdW| ulelq wlolg ¥ J191ep
UONEZIUISPOIA Uol1e)S Ui Jamas
suolle|elsu| 1919\

Sjuswanoidw| ysuel] g Aempeoy o
:Sjuelb |elopoq =

o O O

("uo2) Buipuny 08foiqd gin |



o ,.,..ﬁ.p.,.,pg:.,__.a.v,._...i.,_mzv_.. " ,.aﬂ‘..;..,.ﬁ!év ol R el 3_,-.,,_9_2.__.,&__3.‘__?..__..i,i.h_s..zq e e Ak .i..,,,.‘__,\ Akl g b e Coa A - Bl e LR o R T AL A ,..h._u,:.a,.,‘ -

?mm&oo._c ul) peoy .o:E>_mu:u_

o Amwgmo._o_ ui) "pA|g 9J00\ Wi |eiauss)
| Aemyied ullwy
ONUBAY pul

mc_cmv_B peoy uoljeriosay

‘Bujuspim peoy ooue|g

SNUBAY eluloliie)

sjuswaAoldwi

Alojes snoaue||aosiw pue Aemajes) o
(poja|dwo9) JiIsuel ] juojepyodsuel| = :

O O O O O O O

it

suoijebijgo JusaAoJdwW| [elided)

- Yy PRI 7 Y P RIS SR AT T . T TR T T T 1 MR AT 4 The MO T W TER TS O Ty T % L TR T 58T A« TR AR . IR

AL AT R e AT e e N e 0 ah BRI P Al s b . o LT i g = ol 11 - d i s e i wwrariing voindanls i ot k




JobJue) Juswmopuas ay) 0} Buipping
O} uollippe ui s}so0o buiesado 4OH |[enuue
punjisnw g49 ‘Buipuny Juswmopus

IN} 0} Joud paroidde si JOH 4| ©

N¥$ ¥ ‘8jep 0} pajog|joo |ejo] ©

uonoalip pieog Aq (N9g$ F) puny
juswmopus (dOH) ue|d uolleAIasuon

JeligeH O3 pausAIp 88} Q4D JO 9%,GZ ©
Juswasbeue) 1eliIgEH =

suonebi|qQ juswanoiduf jejides



PIEOYH YHO 8y} 0} suonepuswwosal sayew
pue sjabpnq [eydes pue Bunessado AMON
SM®IABI 8apllwo) ybisianQ lajemalsepp/lalep)  ©

sebieyd pue seg ‘sojel Jawolsno
AMOIN Ag papuny aie sjusweAoidwi |eyiden ©

L661| Ul
P10 Ho4 Jswioy Joy Johksnind sojema)sem/isiem

SE USsoyd JoL3sIq J9Jepn 1SB0D) BULB) O
UORS9||0] Iejemalsep)/uonejuswbny Jojep) =

L T e
K ol ey B i TR

suonebljqo yuswanoidwy jejiden




WEPS SI uonNquuod |eJ01 41D L1L/0L0Z ©
oseauoul abreyo Ajoedes gaaDN Jo nay ur nes
O} Uolinguiuo9 [ejo} 8y pasealdul 41D 90/S007 ©
100 Ag seak Asane paxepul
1S00 ‘NG $ JO 81ewI}SS 1800 |eulbuo dyg o
welbo.id uoneyuswbne
lsjem ajerdoidde ysow ayj se paljljuspi
weibold uonejuswbny isjepp ueqin jeuoibay o

(u0D)
UOL99)|0] I8iemelsepy/uonejuswbny Jojep) =

T — -
it A e B

suoneblqQ juswanoidwi jejiden



+002 Aenuer
ur js uonebi|qo pue pajajduiod yiopq ©

UoI}ONJISU0D
puod uonusjes pue uonowsp
[EJ1N0 I8jem wuols pspuny juelb yq3g o
H0O unl Isjem wiols Ioj swajsAs |esodsip
SAljeussyje jo ubisap Joj pred Jueib yqg o

abeulesq wio}g =

T Y S e A

e e D R R
[ ] — _ ”

uolje
JuswaAoidwy jeyden paysjdwon



R TSR | \..,._w_ué,_..xm i*..__bi..__.a?f&csn 4..,%—1_, i .,,_..p__..m.:;_..__ SR e R e B I T L e AT S TS S Lo S
e v T . chL P - . . . v

LA
e

moom ul EmEa_:cm
B mmm;e:a asea| ponoidde pieog YHO4 ©

e et ...PJIO MO Jsulo) SAISS
o 9 coEm_n_ Q_n_ leuoibay Ajunod AoJojuopy)
19pua) Jajem auo pue (Ajunwwo) Areyii
~ pI0O 8y} pue >o._®Eo_>_ pue episess ‘euliepy
10 sanID By} 10} yoes duo) ssejoiyan bunyby
all} c_th ||e JO @seyoind papusLILoddDy ©

Juswiaoueyua
m:_Emc all} pJemo) spun} vyO4 Jo asn
1S9 UO PaLI9JUOD SIBIYo ail uonoipsun( |eoo] ©

uonels aii4 — seoed dlgnd =

SUoneni|iqo |
EmEm>an_ _S_o_mo Umam_ano

Lﬁqb—éﬂ-‘.—;«:-‘?&\” E

]}

. IR CTVTR " . - . e PO e e TR W bl e 1 e RO e e L MR e Tl Y ae e B AP 4 . S IE el RT  e MIVNAT AR LT KB Yok, O T ot G AT 1 ORI e a1l Rl TR Y |




(N¥$ F) 11 sniding
pue (NZ'z$ ¥) epexools :suonebijqo Buluiewsy o

S1ipaid so|es pue| — (Aunon) com_tmo
1SE UIYM s]s00 [eaowal Buip|ing 00022128 ©

(Jow uonebijgo yseos vyo4)

SHPBIO sojes pue| \yz$/yseo Wzzs — (euuepy)
S9UNQ UIYIM s1S00 [eaowal Buipiing ul NOp¢  ©

|leEAOWSY Buipjing m

suonebi|qo Juswenoiduj |e



SUSIUBY |Epllisiu] W
IUDUWIBDE|Ua) f 9SBYDIND 9|0Iyan jisuel] =
Usuely o
leuonesddg — g9 AMH ™
ope.bdn Aemeai{ - gGL AMMH @
abueyoisiul peoy ASISUOWN — L AMMH @ ®
A0 pueg apiseag — | AMH
leucibay  ©
(1wby ‘quiay) sWelqy O] PUSIXS SnUdAY JUsDSal) =
peoy SiAB( O} 81D SUMIEAA Buluapim PEOY UONBAISSDY =
21E0) SUDJJEAA Ol SaUe| {7 Buluapim peoy UOIBAISSDY =
peoy ooue|g jO UInos peoy siAe(] =
peoy ooue|g JO UlOuU peoy SiAeq =
SUS-HO  ©
apelbdn peoy Alepunog yihog =
peoy spisjse] =
(Jwby "quiay) snusAy seulleg =
Buibly =
(Jwby ‘quiey) uocsiiebialu] =
(qwby ‘quisy)eeliSyg =
(Mwby "'quiay) sweliqy =
Ss-uQ  ©

suopeBTIo TR0 |
/ CO_“—mtOQwCG._u_n @C_C_GEGW_




R S B ] ﬂ”.nq_ﬁg}.

= TN
peoy uosliiebialul
peoy Aiepunog yinosg
peoy episjsed
peoy snjdAjeon3
dNlfo
7102 ‘0¢ aunr Aq peje|dwod eq 0}
pajedionue Juswaalbe Juswasinquial
B Jnoyjim sjosloid ajis-uQ =

O O O O O O

“_. ® WC 3 w é O H_ QLQWWawa-.l . - O O AR
pajedionue — syosfoid jisuel | juoneuodsuel |



N C°9$ - leroway Buipjing =
W 9¥Z1$ - 8Mesay Aousbunuo) pue s1son oyl =
000'¥9¥$ - %001S Buljjoy a1 =
(JuawAed Aiejunjon
Dupnioul  €°¢¥$) N 22§ - uonejuswbny Jojep)
A vmw - Juswmopusa dOH =
W £'GLL$ -YNsuel]/uonepodsuel; =
suonebijqo 41 buiuiews, Bupajdwod Joison o
N 9°98¢$ - (siseoalo} Juswidoanap Ssuonoipsun|
Uo paeseq) ¢z/1.20zZ 0} 11/010Z SUOOY|I0) 884 ©
sollliqisuodsal YyO4 =

P T e NP e e v
bt S e A B,

sj08loid 419 Buitietlisy |




UMOUMNUN — Juswissasseal

ddg ul paynuspi ji suonebyqgo [euonippy

I G'Z$ - lerowsy Buipjing

W 9'¥ZL$ - antesay Aousbunuon pue S1S0) Jay10
W 8°91L$ - uoneyuswbny so1epp

A ¥2$ - Juswumopus 4oH

A L°9%$ - Hisuel | juoneuodsuel |

suonebijqo 410 Buiuiewsa 9)a|dwon o

W ¢°C61$ - suonosgjjoo a9y 107
}sod — uo1j08]|0D) 994 JO AjNUNUOD ysiigelsg o

Sal}l|Iqisuodsal ($)J0sS800NS Yy 4 =

VHO4 J9)e bulujewsas syosfoid



&

ot

. ,.r EL,.-EEEWJ AEE . R
¢ SUO [}Sol _O



LLoz ‘v Aenuepr
Alloyiny asnay piQ Lo 8y} 10} pajedaid

swa)sAg buluue|d R 21wo0uU093

183puyaz pireq
Aq pajuasald

MBINDY wWikiaboud yuswanoaduy eydesn piQO 3o




g

Moirey weiboid juswenoiduif jeydesd piQ Lo

suonebnI
V03D pung 03 Ajliqy Buinunuo) aunsug

sjuawisnipy pajueliep) pusawwosay <
suondwnsse 4D Mainay <

9SNay aseq JO SOIWOU09T djen|eAs

9s0ding pue MaIAIBAD



MIINSY wieibold jusweoiduy feyden pio Ho

$82IN0s anudAal pue s3S09 ]9 JO uonen|eAs p

SdAljejuasasdal
pue siadojaAap pJQ 1104 yum suolssnosiq

ww_ocwmm Jaquial Vd30O4d Yyim w:o_wmzow_ﬁ_ <
He1S YHO4 ynm suoissnoasiq

9jepdn d1D YHOAH 0102 10 Malray <

uojjewsoju| Jo $921N0g



@ Mmeiney weiboid juswonoidul reyuden pio po4

'S83IN0s 8nusAal |enusjod pue 4|9
9Y] Jo uonsjdwos Joaye ybiw josuns lenusjod s,y404 moy Jepisuoy ;7

'S8SN pueg|
|le 0} jeuoiodoud aq pjnoys xe | |e1oeds 049 sy} 0} suoisinal Auy ‘9

'$1800 Asesseosuun Aue sjeuiwng °g
'S82IN0S dnusAal 8|gejieA. || JapISUC)

‘Suonoipsunl Jlaquew s,yyO 4 ul s109/0.d Juawidojenapal
pue mau yyum psedoud o) siedojensp ajeard Jo Ajiige ayj sreyjioey ¢

'sabueyo Aue Jo
}Insal e se ssjousbe Jequiow s)i 10 YO 4 UO XS anpun aoejd Jou oq 7

‘paulejuiew
SI'seinsesw uonebiiw yo3Q palinbal 19aw o Ajige S V404 ainsug -}

MIIABY dID jo sajdiduud j8iyn



g Mmainey weiboid Juswanroldul 1eyded pio Lo

sj08lo.4d uonebiiw YO3D 10} abeianod apinoid (s
pue %g/-0¥ paonpai aq p|noo AousbBunuoy paiinbay

818 1sl| 108/04d dID VYOS 9y} 0} suonodnpas oN b

usping |enuspisal sy} se apnjiubew swes oy}
30 Jou Inqg ‘onewsjqoud si Juswdojorap |enuapisajuou
Uo xe] |e1vads g4 auj Jo usping OAljelal ay| ‘¢

sabuel
a|qeidaooe MO|8q 8Je sanjeA puegj |enpisa. |lenuapisey 7

sabuel g|qises) pasoxs
Juswdo|oasp |enuspisal Joy Suapinq 3s0o ainjonJisequ| |

sBuipuig mainay |9



meiney weibold Juswaoiduly jepded pio po

SUOI)IPUOD JIWIOUODS |BD0| puE
‘leuoibal ‘leuoneu uaalb S}sedal0) Juswdojaneq

Buiwin juswenoidw
uonepodsuel) 0} suoisinal DAV L |euajod

1S0D Juswmopus pajelel pue doH

710¢ ul wioj Jayjoue
Ut uoijn}ijsuodal 1o jasuns Y04 jeijua)od <

sanuielasun Jolew



MajAeY weibold Justwarolduy 1eyded piQ Ho-

V04 JO Uolsus)xa/ uoiysuel ejewn|n auy)
Buinjosa Jo 1xeju0o ayy ur smieys d49 8y} sjenjeasoy
Absjens Bupueu) 4 buiobup

(Ployseuy)
SWN|OA Io/pue siesf g 0} dn) junowe/uoneinp ayy xi4 ‘g

Xe| |erads 49 0} uoionpay wisjul ue Juswaldw] -

SUOIDY Sjelpaww|

P3puswiwoday yoseosddy paseyd-ninn



MaIA8Y weiboid juswaroiduwj fejden pIiO HOH

SS)eY Xe] |eioads g49 s|geynsn  wnwiuiw, ay) MOJaQ XB] ¢
uonepuswwodsy peseg-Aoljod, ¢ uondo

wisy-aul| JuswAedal ueol vy 4 sleurwy3g p
Aouabunuos 4oH sjeuiwng <
Aousbunuoo 1osfoid uonjepodsuel) sonpal Jaypn 4 p
| uondQ uo spling ¢

UOEPUSWWIOd8Y Jusuny :z uondo

00S'9€$ 0} 8le) ¥ JS [ejuSpISaI 9oNPaY

%S L2~ Xe] [e1adg 4D sonpay

uoliw 6'0.£$ 03 Aousbunuog 419 ayy eonpay
UOllEPpUSWIWOIaY [ellu| ;| uondo <

SuondNpay xe| [ejpadg Q49 pieog-ay)-ssoioy



¢ 10 | uondp
agal agl agl MO[eq Xe] |eldadg Q40 sonpas | ¢ uondo
0] Y404 Ag uonoe Areuonaiosi

uoljjiw 6°¢z$ 03 Aousbupuon

009'6¢$ I 1°0ces %0°9¢ 90Npay *| uondo YpM Jus)sisuon)

¢ uondp

sejepdn uondwnsse 1505 pue
1L2°'9¢$ uwt 1°/92¢$ %S LC SNuUdA8I J8Ljo sapnjoul “uoljjiw | | uondo
6°0/% 03 Aousbunuon 20npay

: : ) 3lepdn diD 0102
0c9ors 15628 AInp uo peseq xe| |evedg 4o | 1HO5%Id

Xe] [eloadg
a4o ¥4s 1s0D weabouyd

uoionpay
% Xej CO_uQ_uowwﬁ_ wCO_u.QO

€301 le1oads g49




sa1vuabunuos paubisseun

$}800 Buoueuy

MIINSY g woy suoebiyiwr yn3o
wawebeuewrssueuajuely Auadolg
$15020 BuIpIOY puUB| UCHIPSLINT

1500 uohejuawBiny Jajep [euonippy

pajeuIwa - g uondo
Peleuiwia - | uondg

pajeuiun|y

(SouBINS U T74) $1500 JUWeBEUELL Apadosg

dIO Ol parow - Z uoidoQ
diD 0} paaow - | uondp

s190f01d dI5 YOS ) paroly

AONIONILNOD WO¥L d3aniox3

s)s0D abeutesg wuoig pue seyn

W geg =z uondp
uomw g'es = | wondo

$1500 18110

SUBWISSINQUIDY VNS

uoliiw 6’4 = Z uondo
uoliw 6 = | uondgo

§1500) abeureI] WIOIS pue sann

uonejuswadun 4OH |Bnuuy
wawisnipe ajer deo Jswmopug

0$ = z vondo
usliw z'zL$ = | uondo

SJUBWBSINAUEDY YO

Sjuswanoidw) lepde) Jayioy

SUOIIPUGY S0BLNSYNS UMOLNUN % SIIJUOYS o3 w04
suonebiw vaINwSIovoI0 B uolrsinbay AAO
sueld wawabeuey og

poddng uonanssuon DIW

h 4

0% = z uondo
uollpw G°2L$ = | uondo

31800 Juaiusbeury JeNgeH [euonppy

Y

“Bunuos 945y = z uondpy
‘Bunuod o408 = | uondo

1500 uojelodsuel | jeuoyIppY

ADNIONILNOO NI @3anoni




Mainey weiboid juswenoiduly feyden pio Ho-

7102 pucAsq soueinsul T4 1oy IeWNss Yeyg
‘sain)ipuadxs 19foid pejedionue Jo sejewnse yeig

'spalord 410 a1sidwon
0} PaUED] SpBed0Id B|ES PUB| S YOS Jouswihedas aa4 40

‘SUOHEINDIED LINSJ JUSULSIALI JUSWIMOPUS PasIAG Lo
poseq sjewnss uolw §°'geg Bunsixa Jano SSBAIOUl %05 SaWNSSY

"o)@ ‘Burseyd ‘suopuos aoBUNsSgNsS
umoLyUN ‘uomisinboe ANON ‘suejd 16w j10s ‘poddns suoo o=
SIBA0T “d]7) uonepodsues 210} uo Aouabunuos 90 o sjenbg

uonduosag

%S9¢ %0°001
%51 %T'¥
%81 %6'v
%E'9 %T L)
%06 %l e
%8'LL %68t

dio Aouabunuos
10 % 0%

000°006°0.$
000°'000'c$

000°005'c3

000'00Z'21L$

000'00S'21$

000°00£'v€$

Junowy

sapusbunuoy jejo )

81800 1BYI1O

sisoQ abeureiq wiolg pue sanimn

SJUBLASINQIRY Yy O

s1800 Juswabeuep jeligeH [euonppy

$1S00 uonelodsue. | feucppy

|l uondo

Sa1pusbuyuo) djo vy04 110z pasodouy



MajN8Y wieibold jusweroiduuy jeyded pio o

7102 puoAag aoueinsul T4 1o} ajewnsa yes
‘sanupuadxa joaloid pajedionue Jo sajewnsa yeig
‘Lish siyl ssjeullye g uondo

sy sy} sejeulws Z uondo

‘018 '‘Buiseyd ‘suoipuoo eoeunsqns

umouyun ‘uosinbae sy ‘suerd 16w 110 ‘Woddns “jsuod H3p
SI9A0Y) "diD uonepodsues (ejo; uo AousBunuoo 9,0'6) sienb3

uondiosa(

%ETh

%G1

%81

%00

%00

%68

%0001

%9721

%9¥l

%00

%00

%8¢

AousbBunuon
30 %

000°006°€Z$
000°000'c$
000'005°c$
0$

0$

000°'00¥'21$

Jjunowy

sapusbunuoy ejoy

510D B8O

81800 abeulelq wiolg pue samnn
SuBWaSINqUISY YHOH

$1500 Juawabeuep JeNqeH [euoppy

s1s0D uoneiiodsuel | [euomppy

¢ uondp

selpuabunuo) 419 vi04 110z pasodoiy



Z uond uond
© L tiokdo (I910Y) wiool Jo aloe
Jad [enuapisaluopn
4 &

\--------------------------------------r--------------F--------,,
. , : T .
; 009°98 (88v'1$)  (oge9) (r59) (8v5¢) i 68088 1(siz'z8)  voc'ols [910H 1
| ; m !
1 000°083$ (ve0'8Ls)  (L89'v$)  (s12'9%) (8£9'9%) ! 520868 :(0S8'9Z$) ce8'vZLS nejoy ”
i # )

& 11 m . ¥ —
_,8@ € (28%) (2z23) (9z¢$) (czes) o vSLPS (zoc't$)  9g0'9s [eLISnpU| @ 82140 1
“ooaas N i = Tlamay : OLE ammd) g T T
! 006°8$ (90028)  (1259) (2¥28) (8e.8) ; 906°0LS (s86'2%)  zZes'cls efuapisay Bunsixg
1
| 009°6Z$ (zL9'98)  (ze2'i$)  (vBp'gy) (95+'23) bZ'9gs  [(vee'es)  soz'ovs [ERUSPISOY MON __
g3aNNoy %4 €- %% G- %E G- %S 12 sbueyy ebejusosed
LLOZ ‘#1 Asenuer 0102 'St Jaqureoag oLz 't Ainp
XeJ uononpay  uononpay uononpay uofiionpay xXe| uogonpay  xej |eloadg IS puen
leradg ISUORIDPY  UBOT 49 JuoDleNgeH juo) Aempeoy  jeradg | uondo  a49 Bunsixg
a4s IEl0laNs _ 9z UoRdQ Gz uchdo &z uondo a4o
Z NOILdO I NOILJO

suoponpay sy Q49 jenuajog

uun Jad
[eRuapisay




MBINSY Weiboid Juswwienoiduy 1eyded pio po

‘Aunwwos yuswdojensp ay; o) Ajutepad apinoiq ¢

pue ‘ajqises)
Aljeaiwouods ale sjo8loud Juswdojanap pauuejd ainsug 7

‘pepuny
-AjlIn} a1e suoiebiw vO3D ueld 8snai spim-oseq ainsug ‘L

juswdoj@aeq wis)-JesN ozijesay o) SuonIpuoY |elsuss)

Sjuswalinbay uonipuon J1WOoU0d3



Malney weibold Juswarolduuy 1eyded pio Lo

VdO4 40 uoisusixs; uonisues) ajewin ay
Buinjosa Jo 1xa)u00 ay) ur snieys g 40 8y} ajenjensoy
AbBsjens Buoueu buiobup

(Ployseuy)
SWN|OA 10/pue sieak z 01 dn) Junowey/uoneinp sy} xi4 'z

Xe | _m_owaw Q4D 0} uoijonpal wsjul ue ”_Cmc._m_a_.c_ 1

SUOIOY Slelpawiw|

Papuswwoldy yoeosddy paseyd-niny



mainey weiboid Justanolduwy eydes piQ Ho-

uoljISUBI} JO UOISUB)Xe S,y 4 Bulpiebau
sanss| BulipueSINO BA|0SaJ 0] JUSWIWWOD ulelqO 'S

SONUAADY SIleS pueT
SONUBADY JUBWAIOU|-XB]

soxe] |e1oadg Q4D <

19SUNS WYY 4
uodn Juabunuod senuanal Aay saiy] a1enieng 'z

ajep jesuns
V& O |enuajod Jo aduBApe Ul Suoljoe wis)-Buoj o1

-pill [BUOIIIPPE 8)EN|eASd 0] YJOMdWel) B ysl|gelsy |

PINOYS YHOL ,SUONOY Sjelpaww], Buimoliod

.I.\.\-\\\
-~

Abajeais Buisueui4 pue uonenjeay d4id buiobup .



BAY AREA Ao
K

BUILDENG tNOUSFRY ASSOCIATIOH

January 12, 2011 5\ /
Crisand Giles e B

Executive Director FORA Board of Director’s
Fort Ord Reuse Authority
910 2™ Avenue
Marina, CA 93933

RE: Comment Letter ltem 6.a Capital Improvement Program — Work Plan

Dear Board Members;

On behalf of the Building Industry Association of the Bay Area (BIA) we appreciate the
opportunity to review and comment on the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Work Plan.
Recent meetings with the Joint Admin Committee and FORA Staff have had productive
discussions on the three Options outlined in the EPS memo(s). This comment letter is
intended to address concerns outlined in FORA’s draft staff memo and provide additional
information for the Board’s consideration. We believe that supporting any of the ESP Options
is premature at this time and look forward to a public workshop session where the Board can
review materials in greater detail.

Key concerns that came out of the Joint Admin Committee Discussions {detailed in Appendix A
attached) were; Perceived CIP Funding Gap, Tax Increment Revenues, Removal of the
Affordable Housing Program, Project Contingency, and Habitat Conservation Plan Uncertainty.

it is important to acknowledge that there is uncertainty in funding the adopted 2010 CIp
program already. The program is expected to be completed in 2022 but FORA has no legal
authority to collect fees after 2014. The CFD Special Tax does not have a life beyond the FORA
sunset timeline unless a legislated extension is approved, and yet extending FORA carries the
risk of losing significant tax increment dollars planned to fund; affordable housing, schools,
county general fund, other taxing entities, and local redevelopment agencies.

i we do not find a way to encourage the construction of redevelopment projects we can’t fund
the remaining CIP mitigations. The CIP has placeholder assumptions layering exceedingly high
contingency amounts and discounting revenue sources. If we update the program
assumptions and reduce the CFD, we can allow construction to occur, generating special tax
revenue and funding the CiP to complete aff of the base reuse mitigations.

We look forward to a scheduled Board workshop session to review the CIP line items in detail
and identify a program that could be supported by the FORA Board, the Joint Admin
Vailing Address: Committee, and community stakeholders. if we continue to wait until the market can absorb
150 8 Almadcen Bivd,, the costs associated with the CFD special tax we slow the increase in property value that fuels

¥1100 the Tax Increment revenue, losing significant redevelopment funds for FORA communities.

»an jose, CA 95113

Best regards,
el (408) 961-8133 &ﬂ ’ f g .
giles@biabayarea.org b@\
wipi/ fwwew binbayareaorg  Crisand Giles

Executive Director, Building industry Association of the Bay Area

Page 1 of 7



APPENDIX A

Appendix A is intended to address concerns sited in FORA ‘s CIP staff memo and discussed at the
January 5" Joint Admin Committee Meeting. The figures and data referenced in this Appendix came
from a 30-page CIP fee analysis prepared for the BIA by Development Planning & Financial Group, inc
(DPFG report August 2010). The full report and presentation materials are available at your request.

Concerns from Joint Admin Committee Discussions {01/05/2011):
* Perceived CiP Funding Gap

Tax Increment Revenues

Removal of the Affordable Housing Program

Praject Contingency

Habitat Conservation Plan Uncertainty

* o o @

Perceived CIP Funding Gap

There has been much discussion at the Admin Committee about funding gaps created by adopting the
interim Options as outlined in the EPS memos. The memos reference that lowering the CFD would
create a funding gap for specific CIP projects and that if other revenue sources are not achieved (land
sales and/or Tax Increment) CIP projects could be delayed or reprioritized. EPS highlights this in Tablie 2
of the Draft 2010 CiP Review, there appears to be a cash flow deficit in years 2012-13 through 2016-17,
This deficit is concluded based on three key assumptions: 1) the anticipated rate of absorption as
projected by FORA and its member agencies, 2) the current CIP construction schedule and 3) the
exclusion of any additional revenue sources. This funding gap can and should be addressed by applying
the following modifications to those assumptions. The current draft CIP construction schedule shouid
be adjusted to match the receipt of funds. it is probable that advance funding of those improvements
could be completed in concert with developments that are moving forward at the time those
improvements are currently scheduled. The potential for Tax Increment funding as addressed in the
following section can and should be considered in the ultimate funding program for the implementation
of the base reuse at Fort Ord. Lastly, the CIP program adopted july 2010 outlined projected land sale
revenue totaling $61.4 million, even if land valuation is further reduced in the current economy FORA
will still receive some projected revenue minus building removal (building removal is estimated at 25.6
million). The CIP has additional revenue sources to shore any perceived funding gap - if construction
does not occur, there are no CFD revenues to collect —the funding gaps get larger and hit earlier.

Tax Increment Revenues
The BIA believes that Tax Increment is an important revenue source relevant to CIP discussions. Tax

Increment is a public financing tool that uses future gains in taxes to finance public improvements, when
redevelopment projects are built they increase the real estate value and property tax.

FORA’s enabiing legislation allows a generous split of the generated Tax increment revenue. Since Fort
Ord was previously a military base its assessed value starts at Zero — any project improvement on the
base has the ability to generate new Tax increment that can be used to finance public improvements.
The formula for Tax Increment distribution is well defined in the FORA legislation, with a set waterfall of
distribution that benefits; Affordable Housing, Schools, FORA, the County General Fund, Other Taxing
Entities and City and County Redevelopment Agencies,

Page 2 of 7



As part of the BIA Bay Area analysis conducted by DPFG we fooked at the adopted Cip program {July
2010) and ran a Tax Increment projection using the project absorption defined by the adopted CIP
program and adding conservative assessed values to; residential , office, industrial, retail and hotels
{Figure 1, top left). We ran the Tax Increment projection to the estimated CIP completion in 2022. The

Tax Increment waterfall distribution is shown {Figure 1, lower left).
table indicates the FORA sunset timeline in 2014, the adjustment to

distribution post FORA is also indicated.
Figure 1: Tax increment Projection to 2014

Agency Tax Increment

Combined Cumulative Incremental Assesssd Vaiues

Base Year Valuss
$ 300,000 per unit

Residential

Office 3 250 persq ft
Industirial $ 150 perag.f.
Retail 3 250 pereg.fi.
Hote! $ 300,000 per room

The hard line to the right of the
the Tax Increment waterfall

Year Fear Year ;ur
2016-11 2011-12 2012-13 W14 T
118,726,500 212368815 401,307,388 813,808,812
45452 450 82052249 200490408 310054288
30,145,500 55,161,288 83,348,622 122,261,021
- £2.272,500 75100425 208872278
. 31,353 500 81,000,488 184,870,476

R

"’-‘““""’.ﬁ;"_"ifﬂf_';‘l" e

Gross Tax incremant st 1% of assessed vaiue

Prior to FOR A SUNSET Post FOR A

Low-Mod Housing Set-aeide 20.0% 20.0%
County Admin Charges 1.4% 1.4%
Tier 1 Schoots (28% of §1.2%) 10.2% 10.2%
Tier 2 Sohooks (21% of 51.2%) 88% 8.0%
Tier 3 Schools {14% of 51.2%) 0.0% 0.0%
FORA 21.4% G.0%
County 15.3% 23.2%
Other Taxing Enlities 3.1% 4.8%

rcy - remaining Ti 20.0% 31.6%

Age
Total Waterfall Distritarion

FORA - Existing Tax Incremant (a)
FORA - Projectsd Tax lncrement
FORA, - Total Tax inorement (annual)

FORA - Totsd Tax increment (cumulative)

{a) Existing FORA tax increment, $1,135,000 (2008/00 »> indexed to
2010/ 1). Par 2008/09 Audited Financis).

194,350 1,943,245 4,341,184 BANAS
38,870 388,849 868,237 1,699,801
2,760 27 504 61,845 120602
19,001 198,088 444,537 870,344
18,717 167,150 372411 731,089
41,601 415,960 920240 1,819,348
20,716 27114 £83,750 1,209,533
5,643 59,423 132,750 259,507
38,842 388 386 887,605 1 L

04350 143205 a3d1 184 "“ol%‘%,a -

1,180,854 1204 471 1,228,581 1,263,122

_41.601 415,960 P0240 . 181548 §

1,222 455 1620431 2187810 3072478
1,222455 2,642,087 5,000,897 8,073,174

Tax Increment can only be collected for a finite amount of time, linked to the life of the redevelopment
agency agreement ~ for FORA jurisdictions generally to 2040-2043. This is where the numbers get
impressive, remember that Fort Ord starts with an assessed value of zero, so all the planned projects
generate new Tax Increment when they are constructed. Figure 2 illustrates the Tax Increment

generated through 2022. The gross Tax Increment is $329.6 Million
the County General Fund, Other Taxing Entities and City and

between; Affordable Housing, Schools,

{Figure 2, last column) to be split

County Redevelopment Agencies — the individual breakdown of the $329.6 though 2022:

¢ $65.9 Million  Affordable Housing

Page 3 of 7



® 562.0Million Schools
®  576.0 Million County General Fund
* $102.3 Million City and County Redevelopment Agencies.

Figure 2: Tax Increment Projection to 2022

Agency Tax lncrement Yewr Year Year Grand
201920 2020-21 2021-22 Total
Combined Cumulative Incrementai Assessed Valuas
Bags Year Valuss
Residantial $ 300,000 per unk 2,302648457 2433817874 2,524,222 450 18,141,080 988
Oftice H 250 petsq.ft. B47,737,315 804.415803 $42 610,159 c.ou.m.u_o
industrie! $ 150 persq. . 387,071,775 413,071,483 426,063,830 29720288
Retsii $ 250 persq. . S48,135208 574,080,764 505,626,051 4,319468,52¢
Hotsl $ 300,000 per room 755,779,738 834,564,347 ©53.276,034 4,205,047, 997
[Combitniel CURINETIVS ICTamenial RS ses SesiVatues. - T83GTON 500 S0 BTE 0T S uas a0 407276 482
Grots Tax increment at 1% of assessed valie 48,258,117 48,393,708 53,500,709 INsin a0t
T
Prior to FOR A SUNSET Post FORA
Low-Mod Housing Bet-sside 20.0% 20.0% 0,251,023 0,078,741 10,501,768 65,920,838
County Admin Charges 1.4% 14% 858879 887,191 745,025 4,681,028
Tier 1 Schook (25% of 81.2%) 10.2% 10.2% 4,730,034 4,055 515 5,378,000 33,768,127
Tier 2 Behools (21% of 51.2%) a6% 8.6% 3979.02¢ 4,162,833 4.518.506 28,355,147
Ter 3 Sohoots (14% of 51 2%) 0.0% 0.0% .
FORA 21.4% 040% 0 6 ¢ 3,208,187
County 15.3% 232% 10,835 542 11,335,501 12,200,484 76097.708
Other Taxing Entties 3.1% 4 :;ﬁ 2208724 2,308,562 2,504,836 15480,958
Agency - remaining Tt 20.0% 38% 14502151 265 4 16,563,571 [
Yotal Waterfall Distribution 8 .28 A E.EEE %

FORA - Existing Tax increment () [ 0 ¢ L0817

FORA - Projecied Tex increment 9 0 0 j.ggg,g_;;.

FORA - Yotsl Tax increment (snnusl} 0 0 0 073,174
8073174 8,073.174 8073174

FORA - Total Tax (ncrement {cumulative)

(W) Exieting FORA tax increment, $1.138,000 (2008/09 > indexed to
2010/11). Per 2000/06 Audited Financial.

The outlined box in Figure 2 {3 column) illustrates the tax increment that is unrealized if we delay the
schedule of development by 1-year. Because the timeline to receive Tax Increment is finite and linked
to the redevelopment agency agreements a delay in construction is the loss of unrealized Tax Increment
generated at the end of the redevelopment agency timeline where the amount is greatest. Instead of
losing the first year of Tax Increment generation by moving out the development schedule by an
additional year you actually lose the last year of Tax Increment generation because that tax increment is
compounded after the RDA timeline has expired and Tax Increment can no longer be collected. in our
modeled projection, ending in 2022, that would be $52.5 Million in unrealized Tax increment, of which;
$10.5 Million  Affordable Housing

$9.9 Million  Schools

12.3 Million  County General Fund
$16.6 Million  City and County Redevelopment Agencies.

Page 4 of 7



only have a negative effect on the region’s affordable housing program, schools, the county general
fund, and local redevelopment agencies. FORA jurisdictions stand to benefit significantly by the
fnvestment of generated Tax Increment revenue, we need to act quickly and get construction started,

Removal of the Affordable Housing Program

As stated in the ESP memo there has been no new affordable housing development on the former Fort
Ord military base, primarily because they are required to pay the full CFD special tax amount for
affordable residential construction. it has been staff's assertion that only projects with greater than
20% affordable set-aside qualify for the programs fee reduction, no approved affordable housing
projects currently qualify. Removing this line item (that affordabie builders cannot qualify for) is not
expected to have a negative impact on CFD Special Tax levels and would allow an additional $30 million
in CIP program corrections to further reduce the CFD fee. Affordable housing providers would benefit
from the overall CFD correction and could begin construction immediately on their projects.

Project Contingency

Contingency is a standard project Management reserve, an amount the consultant or contractor may
want to include to cover the unforeseen minor changes or unexpected technical and/or design items
found during construction. The adopted FORA CIP program (fuly 2010) is layered with Project
Contingency beyond the 35% standard for a CIP program of this scale. As CIP projects have been
completed the contingency has not been reduced even though the risk of cost overruns is lessened as
construction progresses. BIA believes that the contingency should be corrected beyond what is noted in
the EPS memos; it is our contention that EPS did not have a full accounting of the layered contingency in

the CIP line items.

Figure 3: FORA CIP Mitigation Costs

FORA CIP Cost FORA CIP Contingency
Transportation

Regional 31,872,758 35% TAMC estimate 2005
Off-Site 19,922,781 35% TAMC estimate 2005
On-Site 50,168,219 35% TAMC estimate 2005
Transit 13,762,169 35% TAMC estimate 2005
Sub Total Transportation $115,725,927 $30,003,018 of Contingency
Potable Water 43,200,032 30% MCWD estimate 2007
Habitat Management Plan 31,016,924 30% estimated contingency
Fire Rolling 464,000 unknown
Sub Total 574,680,956 $16,068,582 of Contingency
CIP Project Total $190,406,883 Of which $46,071,600 Contingency

The BIA can certainly understand planning to have enough funds to cover construction planning
shortfalls; however the Cip program as adopted has a generous amount of project contingency layered
throughout the program. The CIP program costs for transportation, water and the HCP have $46 Million
in project contingency which is already 24% of the fuli mitigation total $190 Mitlion (Figure 3).

Page 50f7



We believe there may be some amount of additional project contingency that is warranted per the EPS
discussion, but we firmly believe EPS remained unaware of the contingency already present in the
TAMC, HCP and MCWD project estimates, it is our understanding that EPS based their estimates on staff
discussions and not by reviewing the TAMC reports (1997 and 2005) or MCWD report (2007) or recent
HCP projections prior to completing their analysis.

fn addition to the $46 Million of project contingency within the approved CIP programmatic mitigations
{transportation, water and HCP) an additional $124 Million in contingency (Figure 4) is identified in the
adopted 2010 CIP program. Many of the line items referenced in the CIp contingency section are
described in vague terms as initial placeholders and duplicate the project risk associated with mitigation
construction already identified in the transportation, water and HCP cost estimates,

Figure 4: FORA CIP Contingency

FORA CIP Contingency

Additional Projects 12,053,516
Caretaker 15,256,930
Habhitat 488,678
Parks Storm 1,500,000
Utilities 2,000,000
Water Augmentation 20,800,000
Unknowns/CEQA/Shortfalls 1,500,000
Overhead/Administration 70,000,000
Sub Total Contingency $124,599,124

With $190 Million identified to complete the program mitigations, 24% of which is already contingency,
it is unfathomable that FORA is still expecting an additional $124 Million in contingency related cost
averruns, these are ciearly line items that need to be removed.

Total CIP Project Mitigation estimates to complete the remaining mitigations within the CIP program
totals $190 Million with $170 Million ($46M + $124M) in combined project contingency — that is
currently a 90% contingency program when individual programmatic contingency items are identified.

If we follow EPS’ assertion that 35% as an acceptable percentage of CIP program contingency, the totai
contingency should equal $50.5 Million — with $46 Million already identified in the transportation,
water, and HCP program costs that would leave an additional contingency line item of $4.4 Million to
achieve the 35% recommended by EPS, not the $124 Million of additional contingency identified in

Figure 4.

Project Cost = $144,335,283 @ 35% Contingency = $50,517,349.05 with $46,071,600 Contingency
already included in Trans, water and HCP (Figure 3) we have a remaining balance needed of
$4,445,749.05 of remaining project contingency to be assigned.

Habitat Conservation Plan Uncertainty
Itis clear from Habitat Conservation Plan {HCP) updates at the Joint Admin and Board level that staff has

had significant problems with state and federal agencies on completing the preliminary draft HCP
review. The development community is willing to partner with FORA to find qut where the stall is
happening and how to get to a public draft review of the HCP document quickly. There have been many

Page 6 of 7



estimates and concerns discussed about the programmatic costs to fulfili the HCp mitigations, but the
only current cost estimate we have to fund the HCP program is the $31 Million referenced in the 2010
adopted CIP program and submitted in the preliminary HCP draft. While this estimate may change with
the state and federal agency review it is important for the Board to note what is happening regionally
with HCP cost estimates. Santa Clara’s HCP document, released December 2010 for public review,
reduced their initial cost projections, primarily due to program streamlining, construction, and land
acquisition costs by 30%. It is not a given in this economic environment that lead agencies will increase
the programmatic costs associated with HCP mitigation, especially given that many of the projects ready
to begin construction already have their federal and state permits.

If we update the current CFD assumptions as an interim program to bridge the adoption of a new CFD
we can remove the uncertainly associated with a new Fort Ord governing body post 2014. This would
give the Board the ability to set the fee annually to cover the costs of all the mitigations including future
cost updates to the HCP program.

Page 7 of 7



S e
/ S
|y ‘:
ilding Communit Y p \'\m;:bg)\}?*'
LFOw
AY -~
NetghborWorks-

CHARTERED MEMBER

Tanuary 11, 2011

Michael Houlemard

Director

Fort Ord Reuse Authority

100 12th Street, Building 2880
Marina, CA 93933

Re:  Support for FOR A Fee Reduction
Dear Mr. Houlemard:

In 2005 South County Housing was selected as the Affordable Housing Developer for the
Dunes Development at Fort Ord, (formerly known as University Village). Since that time
SCH has obtained $7.8 Million in state resources to develop the 108 very low and low
affordable rental units proposed at 2™ Avenue and 9% Street. In August 2010 we applied
for our last remaining competitive financing and needed confirmation of the applicable
impact fees. At that time your office issued a letter from your attorneys indicating that
our project did not meet the criteria for the Special Tax Rate for Existing Residential
(Affordable Housing/Below Market Housing Tier 2 portion of the Taxable Property
Classifications and Maximum Special Tax Rates).

We have not appealed or challenged this decision at this time. We understand that FOR A
is undertaking a review of the CIP and its impact on Fort Ord redevelopment activity.
The review is assessing risks and benefits associated with fee reductions proposed by the
Fort Ord development community,

We support staff’s efforts to arrive at a more fair assessment of fees and hope that it
results in a significantly lower fee that will enable us to move our project forward, Here
are some of the many reasons we support this effort:

I) The original intent of the reduced FOR A fee was in part to stimulate higher
density atfordable housing development; our affordable rental project is designed
at 24 units/acre greatly reducing our overall footprint

2 1)

A United Way Agency $015 Murray Avenue, Suite 100, Gilroy, California 95020 « 408-849-9181 » fax 408-849-0977 P



2) The cost of impacted infrastructure improvements for which the fees were
originally developed are currently at historic lows due to the market downturn.

3) Our project will leverage over $30 million in private sector financing through
Federal Low Income Housing Tax Credits and conventional construction and
permanent loan financing

4) Our project will leverage over $11.8 million in state and federal subsidies; $7.8
million is currently committed.

5) Our project will create approximately 125 full time jobs throughout the Monterey
Bay Region,

6) This development will serve as a catalyst for additional redevelopment activity al
the former Fort Ord and help Support retail activity at the newly constructed
Dunes regional retail center.

This is a shovel ready project that would be able to proceed within 60 days of obtaining
our remaining project financing. The approval of a much lower FORA fee would be an
incredible support to our project since we would need a significantly less gap financing
and a lower construction loan to complete our project financing.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,
.
Matt Huerta

Director of Housing Development
(408) 843-9263



Draft Report

Fort Ord Capital Improvement
Program Review

The Economies of Land Use

B\

Prepared for:

Fort Ord Reuse Authority

Prepared by:

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.

January 14, 2011

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.
2295 Gateway Qaks Drive, Suite 250
Sacramento, CA 95833-4210
916 649 8010 te!
916 649 2070 fax
EPS #20510
Berkelay
Sacramento
Denver

WWW.apsyes.cont



Table of Contents

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ..ottt e cee e e s oo 1
Overview and PUMPOSE ..........iviiiiiiii ittt 1
Methodological APProach «......viiuiciiiiiiee et 1
CIP Review PrNCIPIES .......cooiiriiiiiiiii e 2
CIP RevieW FiNdINGS .....ocoeiiiiiiiiiii it 2
CIP ReCOMMENAAtIONS . ... eiiiis it 3
Immediate ACtIONS ...t 4
Ongoing CIP Evaluation and Financing SErateOY oo 6

2. FORACIP REVIEW......ttiiiriiiiniiiis ittt ses sttt eesee e e sts s 9
CIP Review FINdINgS .......ocoviiiiiiiiii i 9
CIP PrOJECES 1ottt et 10
CIP CONLINGENCY weovviiiiiiiiiiie it 10
Updated CIP Contingency ~ OPTIONS 1 AND 2 ....ccccvvvivnreeeeoesoo 12

3. RECOMMENDED FORA ACTIONS w1.ev..iiveieiiittieeeiaeesseee s eeeees e 17
Immediate ACtIONS ........cciiiiiiii e 17
Ongoing Financing Strategy Evaluation and Implementation..........c.ccoovvieiinee i 20
Subsequent Steps Beyond Interim CFD Special Tax Reductions .......ooovevveeroone 21

Appendices:

Appendix A:  Updated CIP Assumptions
Appendix B:  Option 1 CIP Tables
Appendix C:  Option 2 CIP Tables

Appendix D:  Infrastructure Cost Burden Analysis



List of Tables

Table 1
Table 2
Table 3
Table 4
Table 5
Tabie 6
Table 7
Table 8

Summary of CFD Special Tax OptONS ......covvivivreveeevreoeeseoe oo 5
CFD Special Tax OpLioNS.....cuiiueiiieecneicri st 7
Diagram of FORA CIP Contingency Categories/Descriptions..........o.veveueeeeooen 11

Proposed 2011 FORA Capital Improvement Program Contingencies—Option 1...... 13

Proposed 2011 FORA Capital Improvement Program Contingencies—Option 2... .. 14
Summary of Other Costs and CONtiNGENCIES.........covevveeiveee i 15
Capital Improvement Program SUMMary—Option 1 ..o 18



1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report summarizes the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) Capital Improvement Program
(CIP) review and presents the findings and conclusions from that review. As described herein,
this document suggests immediate FORA actions to implement an interim Community Facilitie«
District (CFD) Special Tax and ongoing strategies and actions to implement an updated basewide
infrastructure financing strategy that is tied to resolution of the ultimate transition or extension
of FORA.,

Overview and Purpose

The purpose of the FORA Capital Improvement Program (CIP) review is to ensure the FORA
revenue sources, including the CFD Special Tax (one-time special tax or CFD Special Tax), can
implement the Base Reuse Pian by completing required California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) mitigation measures. The required CEQA mitigations are included as CIP project costs in
the FORA CIP. At this time, there is broad recognition that current Special Tax Rates set to
offset these CIP costs are a major factor precluding the near-term re-initiation of development
within FORA’s jurisdiction, combined with the effects of the present economic downturn.

When established, the CFD Special Tax was calibrated to a particular set of CIP improvements
serving the overall base and local jurisdictions. The present FORA CIP review is chiefly aimed at
revisiting the FORA CFD Special Tax requirement to investigate methods of improving the overall
feasibility of development while ensuring that the critical CEQA mitigations addressed by the CIP
are funded. While some have suggested reducing the CFD Special Tax by downsizing the CIP
(e.g., eliminating projects) serving the base, such changes could require a complete reworking of
the Base Reuse Plan. A more practical approach, described in this report, considers the Base
Reuse Plan as a phased outcome, with CFD Special Taxes calibrated to the staging of
infrastructure in recognition of changing market conditions and a realistic assessment of risk and
required cost contingencies applied to the CIP.

As described in the following sections, the FORA CIP review and resulting recommendations are
based on a set of principles designed to ensure the timely completion of CIP projects for
successful implementation of the Base Reuse Plan.

Methodological Approach

The methodological approach includes both a comprehensive review of the FORA CIP and an
examination of the infrastructure cost burdens faced by prototypical development projects thar
would be subject to the CFD Special Tax. This approach addresses the dual goals of (1) ensuring
that specific projects and related contingencies are clearly delineated, fully transparent, and
deemed appropriate; and (2) ensuring that resulting infrastructure cost burdens (including CFD
Special Taxes) are consistent with generally accepted thresholds.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 1 P;\20000120510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence: 20 ; s



Fort Ord Capital Improvement Program Review
Draft Report January 14, 20111

To facilitate the CIP review, Economic & Planning Systems, Inc., (EPS) deveioped a set of
underlying principles to be used in the review of the CIP and related one-time special tax. The
principles being used were informed by the following items:

Review of 2010 FORA CIP update material {from July 2010).
Discussions with FORA staff,

Discussions with FORA member agencies.

Discussions with Fort Ord developers and representatives.
Evaluation of CIP costs and revenue sources.

Based on direction from FORA staff and the FORA Administrative Committee (Administrative
Committee), EPS has employed a collaborative approach to reviewing the CIP and related CFD
Special Tax.

CIP Review Principles

Based on the review of CIP materials and input from key stakeholders, EPS determined that any
short-term updates or modifications to the CIP and related one-time special tax should adhere to
the following principies:

1.

2.

10.

Ensure FORA’s ability to meet required CEQA mitigation measures is maintained,
Do not place undue risk on FORA or its member agencies as a resuit of any changes.

Facilitate the ability of private developers to proceed with new and redevelopment projects in
FORA'’s member jurisdictions.

Consider all available revenue sources.

Eliminate any unnecessary costs.

Align the timing of CIP projects with available CFD Special Taxes and other revenue sources.
Use contingency allowances for contingent costs only.

Align contingent costs with contingent revenues (or expressed differently, use highly certam
revenues to fund the highest priority costs).

Any revisions to the CFD Special Tax should be proportional to all land uses {further
consideration of cost incidence among individual land uses could be considered as a
subsequent step as discussed later in this memorandum).

Consider how FORA'’s potential sunset might affect completion of the CIP and potential
revenue sources.

CIP Review Findings

The CIP review and CFD Special Tax analysis yielded the following resuits, each of which is
described in more detail in Chapter 2:

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 2 P:\20000\20510 FORA CiP Review\EPS Correspondence: 20s - e



Fort Ord Capital Improvement Program Revicw
Draft Report January 14, 20111

1. Infrastructure cost burdens for residential development exceed feasible ranges.
As discussed in Appendix D, the Special Taxes, added to other applicable fees and costs,
constitute an untenabie burden on new development, relative to reduced asset valyes
resulting from the economic downturn. The development community has stated that a
substantial (30- to 40-percent) reduction in the Special Tax would provide the impetus to re-
initiate residential development,

2, Residential residual land values are below acceptable ranges.
Related to finding #1, land values have dropped substantially as a result of lower lease rates

and price points, relative to horizontal and vertical construction costs. While the CFD Special
Tax burden contributes to these results, other cost factors also influence the residual land
values. Adjustments to infrastructure costs and other unit development cost factors are
necessary to achieve development feasibility.

3. The relative burden of the CFD Special Tax on nonresidential development is
problematic, but not of the same magnitude as the residential burden.
A meaningful reduction of costs confronting commercial projects could have the direct impact
on the near-term initiation of further development, assuming that consumer spending and
other factors associated with product demand continue to improve. Facilitation of
commercial development has a direct, meaningful impact on funding community services and
generating tax increment for future basewide funding initiatives.

4. No reductions to the FORA CIP Project list are required. However, the CIP
Contingency allowance could be reduced by approximately 40 to 75 percent while
still providing coverage for CEQA mitigation projects.

Over time, ongoing monitoring will be necessary to calibrate the timing of key infrastructure
projects to ensure the development of planned residential and commercial projects.

CIP Recommendations

Over the next 2 to 3 years, FORA and the CIP face many uncertainties that will likely have a
direct influence on the future CIP and CFD Special Tax, including these:

» Potential FORA sunset or reconstitution into ancther form in 2014,

* Habitat Conservation Plan and endowment cost.

* Potential TAMC reailocation of transportation improvements,

» Development forecasts given national, regional, and local economic conditions.

Overall, there is a need to bring down costs to facilitate the economic feasibility of planned
projects in all of FORA’s jurisdictions. At the same time, there is a major “juncture” just over the
horizon in the form of consideration of the future role, if any, of FORA after 2014. In this short-
term timeframe, additional certainty regarding habitat maintenance costs will come to light.

To realize near-term development, three general conditions must be met: (1) ensure basewide
reuse plan CEQA mitigations are fully funded, (2) ensure planned development projects are
economically feasible, and (3) provide long-term certainty to the development community.

To satisfy these three conditions, EPS recommends a multiphased approach aimed at ensuring
that the CFD Special Tax, when considered with all other revenue sources, enables FORA to fu!fill

Economic & Pfanning Systems, Inc. 3 P:\20000\20510 FORA CIP Raview\EPS Correspondence: 20 . tor




Fort Ord Capital Improvement Program Review
Draft Report January 14, 2011

its reuse obligations at Fort Ord. The multiphased approach is composed of the following two
steps:

1. Immediate Actions.
2. Ongoing Financing Strategy implementation.

Immediate Actions

Immediately, FORA should implement an interim across-the-board reduction to the CFD Speciai
Tax using the 2010 CFD Special Tax rate as the basis. This action should be implemented for
fixed duration (e.g., up to 2 years) at which time FORA will reevaluate the status of the CFD
Special Tax in context of resolving the ultimate transition or extension of FORA,

The immediate adjustment to the CFD Special Tax should be augmented and coordinated with
other potential adjustments based on factors such as economic development incentives, as weil
as concurrent actions such as other agency fee reductions.

Three broad options for FORA implementation have been developed as product of the CIP review,
meetings with the FORA Administrative Committee and meetings and feedback from the
development industry. Table 1 summarizes the key features for the following three options:

* Option 1: Predicated on an initial review by EPS, this more moderate approach would
reduce the CIP contingency from approximately $124.6 million to $70.9 million and reduce
the CFD Special Tax by approximately 21.5 percent. The new residential single family tax
would drop from approximately $46,200 to $36,300. Concern has been registered during the
FORA Administrative Committee meetings that the modest reductions in the CIP contingen:y
did not go far enough and that the resulting relatively modest special tax reduction may not
be sufficient to catalyze the re-initiation of development.

¢ Option 2: Following the development and presentation of Option 1, as described above, EPS
held an internal workshop with Development Planning and Finance Group (DPFG),
representatives of the building industry, to further evaluate the CIP and explore options fo-
further cost reductions. The product of this collaborative effort, Option 2, builds on the
Option 1 approach to recommend a number of additional adjustments related to further
reduction of transportation project contingencies, eradication of the HCP contingency, and
elimination of the FORA loan line-item. These adjustments are fully articulated in Chapter 2.
As a result of this more concerted approach to cost reductions, Option 2 would reduce the
original CIP Contingency from approximately $124.6 million to $23.9 million and
consequently reduce the CFD Special Tax by approximately 36 percent.

* Option 3: At its discretion, FORA could implement a policy-based decision to reduce the
CFD Special Tax below the “minimum” justifiable CFD Special Taxes derived above under
either Option 1 or Option 2.

EPS believes that Option 2 provides the required basis for inducing near-term development.
Although this reduction does not fully correct the cost-burden imbalance described earlier, it
would provide a meaningful cost reduction that has been identified by the development

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 4 P:\20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence. it~ .




1 e b 1.1 a3 OO0

5

IOZRAZL 84T AG pesedeid

"SHUN |BNUBPISSI MaU I0) STUNOWE au; se abejuaoiad sles ay) 4q paonpas ARjeucipodosd 39 Pin0M Sasn pue e Joy saxe) [eoads g49 [g)
"SUGNEBIQO dID wHO 4 198w o) palinbal xey [eads wnwixew Ut uonanpal abejusalsd ajewxoiddy [z]
WaWdoRAap Buisnoy sigep.oye Jo) Junoosip snLaaal Q4D seleuiwyy suonDIPSURI JaqWIBLL S) PUB Yu()4 woy siseaauo} uawdojanap pajepdn uodn paseq si 15802104 XB) fenads - SNOILJO v [1]

g,

(e

£ NOILJO pacnpat sy Buiked syun jo Jaqunu
8} Aq paydiyinw xe eredg q49 patusiuaidus
PUE ZJo | uondg Jayie usemjag oUIlap |enba
PinoM Junowe papunjun) sway sul Aouabuguon

dr0 4o uotad e jo Buipunun annbay plhony ‘suonebiqo w325 o) Bupun; UBIUIEW pINo T
SIBA3| Z J0 | NOILJO
‘ANqises; wawdopnap Mojag Xe) epads 040 eonpal
dry Jayuny o) xe) jenads g49 sonpal pIhos Pl Py PO €1 VHO4 Aq uouoe Aeuonamsig € NOILdO
o ‘defi Apnqisesy "1 wendg o)

luswdojarep asop Aing jou Aew auoe uononpay Paseduos sk Ayigises) ;uswdojaasp sanoidiy

"} NOILDO uim
Juiz)sisuod sajepdn ucldwnsse

'Xe| [epeds g4 seonpay 1500 PUE SNUSARL JAUYI0 SEPhiDU|
‘(sllempunos “5:a) pasnba) ag
AeW By swayl Aeuipioenxs 103 Buypuny apmoud o3 UOHI ' EES 01 UoIIW 9 pZLg
P33 AW SuoRoIpsunl Jaqusty o saoinos g 'suonebliqo wap o) Buipuny suguely 665628 000'004'0228 Jugcsad gge woy Aauabunuod 41D sasnpay Z NOILD
uawdejeaap Jnds o) yBnoua
Jou Az st 2uofe uoloNpal Xe ] |enadg a49 ‘Xel jewosds g29 seonpay
'SEOIN0S IANe WS E
ubnouup papuny ag pnos 1o Alessaoauun ‘Suawsunba) ‘saiepdn uondwnsse
g Aew saousbuuoo 1500 Buyieway Buipuny ulepasun Joj sauabuyuos sumule 1509 pUE BNUSASI JAYIC S3pnIoL|
: W §'0LE OF uolnw §'pZ LS
suoseBliqe O30 10y Buipun; sueweyy Liz'9ss 000'00L'Z92¢  Jueased g1z woy Aousbuguoy g1 sonpay I NOILdO
“SUORIIPSUN] 1SqUISW PUR YNG4 0}
$9NUBASI JUaILIAIU) Xe) Juslwdoerspal Mebalbbe
aIniny 1210} 2anpal pinoo uoydicsqe pakelaq
‘spoalaud Jwawdoreaap mau J0 Augiseaju auy
singuuos disu s1aa8) xe | |ewadg Q47 bunsixy uoly vyO 4 Aue annbal jou saog
‘#iepdn dID 0102 uonenyg
seuabulues 1500 Aiessaosuun sspnpu; "suonebigo w32 10) Buipury sulepwey S0Z'9r3 LBE'PLL'66ZS Bu ANf uo paseq xe] |ewadg g4 Wesald
fel [e]
sabejueapesig sabejueapy xe] [ejdads (Aauabuguon ey tonduasaq suondo

adonun Butpnipul 3son jeizedg gdo
leiuapisey weiboid [eroy ul uoRanpey
MaN abmuesrad

(1] suondo xe) jecedg gao jo Aewuwng
MBIABY dID 0LOT YHOS

l—nmé 0 I 2iqey



Fort Ord Capital Improvement Program Review
Draft Report January 14, 2011

community as “sufficient to start the machine.” The cost reductions may be most effective in
bringing commercial development prototypes closer to feasibility, This approach to reducing
costs to residential and commercial development, while providing adequate funding of CEQA-
related basewide infrastructure projects, is predicated on an interim application period extending
from the present time to 2013/14, at which time a permanent basewide funding approach would
be resolved in concert with resolution of FORA’s transition. Potential risks of capital funding
shortfails would be mitigated by two factors: 1) certain near-term residential and commercial
projects already benefit from existing infrastructure, and 2) future projects relying on new
infrastructure segments may need to contribute to funding as an up-front project expense anc
receive a credit against applicable Speciai Taxes, as has been done with previous projects,

Appendices B and C include detailed tables showing the CIP projects Special Tax revenue an
cash flow forecasts for each Option.

Under all options, any CFD Special Tax reduction would be proportionately applied to each lan:!
use category. Table 2 shows the proposed CFD Special Taxes for both Option 1 and 2, with the
Option 2 adjustments building on those included in Option 1.

Potential Implementation Feature: Unit Threshold

In addition to a specified time period (e.g., through 2013/14) for the interim Special Tax
adjustment, FORA may also consider establishing a unit threshold that would trigger an
automatic review of the CFD Special Tax, in the event that developrment activity is more robust
than anticipated before the time-specific expiration date. For example, this policy could stipulate
that "before (insert specific date) if greater than (insert number} building permits for new
residential dwelling units are issued, FORA will review its CFD Special Tax to determine if the
interim adjustments should be revised.”

Ongoing CIP Evaluation and Financing Strategy

Following implementation of the immediate actions, FORA should establish a framework to
evaluate additional mid- to long-term actions that it may consider implementing over the next
few years in advance of the potential FORA sunset date.

Because many outstanding issues are anticipated to be resolved during the next 1 to 3 years,
FORA has the opportunity to evaluate overall CIP financing requirements and to prepare a
comprehensive financing strategy designed to meet FORA’s objectives.

The most significant variable that needs to be addressed is the status of FORA in regards to the
2014 sunset date. Resolving this outstanding issue is a critical factor in providing required
certainty for the member jurisdictions and private development community at Fort Ord. The
status of three key revenues are contingent on the possibility of a FORA sunset—CFD Special
Taxes, tax increment revenues, and land sales revenues. Correspondingly, any interim action
implemented by FORA should be coupled with the commitment by all parties to resolve
outstanding issues regarding FORA’s ultimate extension or transition.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 6 P:\26080\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence- 7u - 0




LL0Z/ZL/L Sd3 Aq paiedaig

‘8 S|qEL Ul umoys se z uondo) Joy xe | [e108dg Q49 ur vonanpe abejusiad [B10} Jo Buipunal Joy Junosoe o) psisnipy [1]

'Sd3 PUE WO :$92.n0g

~SHIP xej,
009'9$ (88t°L$) (98ce) (PS54} (8rae) 680'8$ (51z'ze) r0£'0L$ woou 1ad |810H
000°08$ (beo‘gig) (189'v$) (GL2'08) (8c9'9%) Se0‘e6% (0sg8'9zs) S88'vZLS a10e Jod llelay
006°c$ (5289) {/22%) {9zes) (zzes) vsi'vs (zog'Lg) 950'9% aeied  |ewjsnpu} g 2010
006°8$ {900°2$) (Lzs$) (L¥1$) (8c.%) S06°0L$ (/86'2¢) Z68°CL% npied |enuepissy Buysixg
008'62$ (z29°9%) (ze21$) (re¥'ze) (ost'z¢) L22°9c$ (re6'63) S0Z'ors np sad [enuapisay mon
G3IaNnoy %€ % G- %EG- %SLZ- {1] obueyy abejusasay
110z ¥1 Aenuep 0L0zZ ‘Gt Jogquaoeg Loz L A
Xe) co_uo_‘._umw_ Co_uoznww_ _._o_uos_omw_ co:ozbmm_ xm._. co_«osﬂwm_ Xejp _w_om-n_m siseg s U:mu_
lervadg |euoippy UBOT dID  JuoDielgeH on Aempeoy leioadg Luondd @49 Bunsixg
ads |ejoiqng 3z dondp qz uondg BZ uondg a41o
Z NOILdO L NOILdO

14vya

suondo xe] [etoadg G49
MILATY dID 0102 YHOA
zalqey



Fort Ord Capital Improvement Program Review
Draft Report January 14, 2]t

The rate and method of apportionment of special tax for the FORA CFD reads "Special Taxes
shall not be levied after Fiscal Year 2013-14 or the termination date of FORA, whichever is later,
but under no circumstances shall the Special Tax be levied later than calendar year 2051.1"
Various existing and/or future legal documents will govern the way in which the CFD Special Tax
or equivalent fee/tax would be transitioned or implemented in the event of a potential FORA
dissolution. Regardless, it is important to note that the obligation to complete CEQA mitigation
measures does not go away and that one or more revenue sources would need to be maintained
to help fund required improvements.

Regarding tax increment, if FORA were to sunset, tax increment revenues that would have
accrued to FORA would subsequently be directed to its member jurisdictions as described in
Health and Safety Code Section 33452.70-33492.78.

It is worth noting that certainty regarding basewide development policy, CEQA mitigations, anu
infrastructure financing obligations is a critical factor from an investor perspective. Experience
evaluating base reuse projects across the nation indicates the critical importance of having a
centralized agency in place to coordinate issues, heading off inherent conflict among a multitude
of jurisdictions, agencies, and special interests having a stake in buildout of a base reuse plan.
It is recommended that work begin immediately to determine how overall basewide planning,
financing, and coordination will be structured on Fort Ord over the long term, including a
comprehensive evaluation of future infrastructure financing that evaluates inclusion of tax
increment in the overall infrastructure financing mix. By doing $0, investor confidence will be
bolstered through the elimination of the considerable uncertainty confronting these entities at
the present time.

1 Correspondence with FORA representatives indicates the potential for LAFCO to continue CFD
administration in a post-FORA environment.

Econornic & Planning Systems, Inc. 8 P:\20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence: 20 1c



2. FORA CIP REVIEW

The CIP review included review and consideration of CIP projects, as well as the CIP contingency.
Below is a summary of each of those reviews. As part of the FORA CIP review, EPS also
examined the infrastructure cost burdens for a few prototype development projects that might
be typical of new deveiopment within the FORA boundaries. As described in Appendix D, this
analysis examined the infrastructure cost burden for near-term single-family, retail, and hotel
prototypes. A more detailed description of the methodology and the results of the development
feasibility analyses are included in Appendix D. Below are the detailed CIP review findings that
were summarized in the executive summary,

CIP Review Findings

1. Infrastructure cost burdens for residential development exceed feasible ranges.
For the residential development prototype, infrastructure cost burdens are beyond the range
typically considered feasible. The FORA CFD Special Tax, at approximately 10 percent of an
average home sales price (Marina Dunes), contributes to the infeasibility of residential
development projects, currently estimated to be more than 30 percent of unit value
compared to a targeted ratio of 15 percent. Consequently, reduction of the CFD Special Tax
is a necessary but not sufficient step toward bringing the cost-burden ratio into balance.

2. Residential residual land values are below acceptable ranges.
Taking into consideration other development cost factors, residential development prototypes
evaluated in this analysis remain infeasible as indicated by residual land value results, Whiie
CFD Special Tax burden contributes to these results, other cost factors also influence the
residual land values. Adjustments to infrastructure costs and other unit development cost
factors are necessary to achieve development feasibility.

3. The relative burden of the CFD Special Tax on nonresidential development is an
issue but not as problematic as the residential burden.
Of the commercial uses under consideration, retail demonstrates a cost burden exceeding
20 percent, and hotels are between 15 and 20 percent. While not as high as residential,
these uses would also benefit from CFD Special Tax reductions as part of an overall package
of cost reductions and required improvement in market conditions.

4. No reductions to the FORA CIP Project list are required.
Jurisdictions have cited the importance of maintaining existing CIP projects, incorporating
costs based on the best available information at this time. Many of these projects are critical
in terms of serving California State University Monterey Bay {CSUMB), the Transportation
Agency of Monterey County (TAMC), and other institutions that are providing important
economic development and other public benefits that will help catalyze private development
in the near term. As described in this memerandum, one item from the CIP Contingency 1=
recommended to be moved to the CIP Project category. This item is the “Additional Water
Augmentation Costs” item in the amount of $20.8 million.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 9 P:A20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence: i1 - foe




Fort Ord Capital Improvement Program Re.iew
Draft Report January 14, 211

5. The CIP Contingency allowance can be reduced by approximately 40 to 75 percent.
Reorganization, recategorization, and elimination of certain CIP Contingency costs under
Option 1 can eliminate more than 40 percent of the cost inciuded in the CIP Contingency, a
cost savings of more than $50 million. Under Option 2, the CIP Contingency costs could be
reduced by approximately 75 percent resulting in a cost savings of approximately $100
million. These reductions in the CIP Contingency could result in reduced levels of CFD
Special Tax being collected.

CIP Projects

EPS reviewed and confirmed the estimated costs for each major category of CIP costs, which
inciude these:

= Transportation/Transit Improvements,
s Water Augmentation Costs.

= Habitat Mitigation Costs.

¢ Fire Rolling Stock.

An exception to the above-referenced Categorization is the estimated $35.0 million in habitat
mitigation costs. In this regard, the table incorporates a revised approach toward accounting *or
and displaying the cost of required habitat mitigations. The prior FORA CIP only included
approximately $31.0 million because FORA has approximately $4.0 million in existing fund
balances to contribute towards the $35.0 million total,

All items, with the exception of $20.8 million in “Additional Water Augmentation Costs,” are
determined by FORA to be required CEQA mitigation measures,

Finally, based on input from key stakeholders, EPS has not changed the timing of CIP costs from
the July 2010 CIP. Recently, TAMC asked that FORA consider changes to the timing and list of
CIP transportation/transit projects. The outcome of FORA actions on requested changes could be
reflected in future CIP updates. Obviously, actual CIP costs on a year-to-year basis will vary
from those shown in the CIP based on specific project circumstances.

CIP Contingency

Based on the analysis of the CIP and on discussions with key stakeholders on this subject, EPS
recommends the CIP contingency components be reorganized into five categories. Through this
reorganization, the prior categories of contingency line items have been treated in one of the
following three ways:

1. Consolidated into a reorganized category,
2. Moved from contingency to CIP project cost category.
3. Eliminated from the contingency.

Table 3 compares the proposed Category/description of CIP contingency as compared to the
prior category/description. Table 3 also shows whether a particular new contingency category is
included in Option 1 only or in both Options. As shown, many of the transportation-related

Econornic & Planning Systerns, Inc. 10 P:\20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondsnce . i rac




Table 3
FORA 2010 CIP Review

Diagram of FORA CIP Contingency Categories/Descriptions

DRAFT

Recommended Category/Description

Applicability

Prior Category/Description

INCLUDED IN CONTINGENCY

Additional Transportation Costs [1]

Option 1 = 30% conting. [«

MEC Censtruction Support
Soil Management Plans

Option 2 = 15% confing.

Additional Habitat Management Costs

Other Capital Improvements

ROW Acquisition & CEQA/CESA/NEPA mitigatiing
FORA CIP shortfalls & unknown subsurface con ditions

Endowment cap rate adjustment

A

Option 1 = $34.7 million
Option 2 = $0

FORA Reimbursements [2]

Annual HCP implementation

Option 1 = $12.2 million
Qption 2 = $0

4

Utilities and Storm Drainage Costs

FORA Reimbursements [1]

4

Option 1 = $3.5 million
Option 2 = $3.5 million

Other Costs

Utilities and Storm Drainage Costs

4

Option 1 = $3.0 million
Option 2 = $3.0 million

Property management costs (PLL insurance)

EXCLUDED FROM CONTINGENCY

Moved to FORA CIP Projects

F 3

Option 1 - moved to CIP
Option 2 - moved to CIP

Eliminated

Additional Water Augmentation Costs

Jurisdiction fand holding costs
Property maintenance/management

A

Option 1 - eliminated
Option 2 - eliminated

CEQA mitigations from BRP Review
Financing costs

[Unassigned contingencies

Source: FORA and EPS.

[1] Baseline CIP transportation costs include a 15% cost contin

hazards and risks unique to FORA's redevelopment.

[2] Equals reimbursements for prior FORA expenses as described in the document.

Prapared by EPS 1/12/2011

11

PS5 FORA CP g, seathdin, -5 v

Lent_map”

gency. This contingency represents an additional contingency reflecting potential




Fort Ord Capital Improvement Program Re.ocw
Draft Report January 14, /i1l

contingencies are recommended to be included in one line item for “Additional Transportation
Costs.” The habitat mitigation category would combine the prior two line items, and the finai
two categories contain items that were previously itemized as separate items.

The additional water augmentation costs line item is recommended to be moved into the CIP
project list as an itemized CIP cost rather than inciuded in the CIP contingency. Finally, the
recommendation identifies several categories of contingent costs for removal from the program.

The logic for eliminating many of these costs is that while some of these costs may oceur, it 1s
not likely that all of them will be incurred. Furthermore, to the extent that some of these cost-
are incurred, other revenue sources, such as tax increment revenues or land sale revenues, In
excess of demolition needs, will likely be available to fund such costs if development can be
reinitiated as a result of CFD Special Tax reductions, individual jurisdiction fee reductions, and
some improvement in market conditions. This approach is consistent with the principle of
aligning contingent costs with contingent revenues,

Updated CIP Contingency—Options 1 and 2

The CIP contingency total under Option 1 (Table 4), represents the original CIP contingency
update prepared by EPS for the December 15 Administrative Committee meeting. The Option |
revisions would reduce the CIP contingency from approximately $124.6 million to $70.9 millio:.

At the request of FORA, EPS met with representatives of the building industry to collaborate in
the further evaluation of additional modifications to the CIP contingency, beyond those presented
at the December 15 meeting. The following additional CIP adjustments for FORA consideration
grew out of these discussions:

1. Reduce the roadway projects contingency to one-half of its present level. This would revise
this contingency line item to 15 percent of the total estimated roadway costs, taking this
contingency item from approximately $34.7 million to $17.4 million.

2. Eliminate the Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) contingency line item because it is not clear
that a full $48.5 million (estimated cost plus contingency) will be required, especially giver
that at least two developers have their own permits for development of their projects. The
estimated reduction in cost would equal approximately $17.5 million,

3. Eliminate the FORA CIP loan repayment from the contingency category. Future land sales
proceeds may be adequate to fund required demolition costs and repay the borrowed funds
to the CIP if necessary to complete CIP projects. The estimated reduction in cost related t
this change would equal $12.2 million.

The CIP contingency total under Option 2, which also includes the Option 1 adjustments, (Option

2 is shown in Table 5) would reduce the CIP contingency from approximately $124.6 million to
$23.9 million. For reference, the original CIP contingency detail is shown in Table 6.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 12 P:\20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence i o



LTI L 102,

LIQZ/ZL/L 543 Aq pauedsiy

"sesuadxe yyO4 Joud Joy Sjuslasingquial sienb [

‘000°001} $ 1s2/E8U BY} ) POEPUNOI SJUNOWY

VHO4 9oMmog

%S°9¢ %0001 000°006°02% sapuabunuog ejor
10T puoAsq soueinsul 11d Joy sjewnse HeIS %G1 %Cv 000°000'c$ $1s00 Jay10
‘Saunnpuadxae jasfoid paredionue jo sajeuwnss HEIS %8| %6'¥ 000°005°c$ 81500 abeurelq wuLolg pue sainn
's18foid 4)9 s191dwon .
O} P3UEO) $p93301d 8|ES PUE) 8,404 JO JuswAeda) 394 049 %e-g %Z L1 000'002°2L$ [L] swawasinquiay vyO4
‘SUOHEBINDIED UINJDJ JUSLUISOAUI JUSLUAOPUS PASIASL UO
POSEQ 8jewiss uoliw ¢ ge$ Bunsixe Jano 9SEAIDUI %05 SBWNSSY %06 %.L¥2 000'00S'21$ $)503 uawsbeuely 1engeH jeuonippy
‘08 ‘Buiseyd ‘suonpuoa soeunsgns
umouwun ‘uonisinboe (oY ‘sued 16w [10s ‘weddns jsuon
OJ Si8AcD "d)1Q uonenodsuei) (ejo} uo AousBuiuoo %0°0€ sienb3 g /| %6 8% 000°'00L°PES §js0D uonepodsuel [euoyippy
uopdudsag 4o Jo ‘Bunuoy jo Junowry way|

%

%

L uondop

14VyQ

salouabunuo) weiboiy yusweaoidw lended vy04d L1LoZ pasodoly

MaI1AY dID 010Z YOS
¥ 3jqe]

13



LLOE/ZL/ SdF Aq pasedaiy

"Sasuadxa w04 Joud 1oy sjusluasinquial sjenbg {1

'000°00 1 $ 1saseau 8y 0] papunos spunowny

Y04 92unog
W& JU00TLL0Z,
%E'ZL %0700} 000'006°cZ$ salpuabunuoy jejo)
‘102 puchsq soueinsul 114 Joy SlBUISS Jelg 9,67) %9¢L 000'000°c$ SIS0D By
‘SaInjipusdxa josfoud pajedonue o sojewse yelg o,y %9'¥L 000°005°c$ 100 ebeuleig uuolg pue saninn
‘waj sy ssjeuiwe z uondo %00 %00 0% (1] siuswesinquiisy vy 04
‘Walsiy) ssjeunle z uondo %00 %00 0% SIS0 Juswabeuep 1eygen [eucnippy
"0)2 ‘Buiseyd ‘suonipuos aoeunsqns
umouxun ‘uomsinboe Aoy ‘suejd 16w I'os ‘Woddns “jsuon
O3 si8A0D "D uonepodsuel (ejo} uo Aouabunuos 90'gL slenby %g'g %8'2. 000°00F' 1% $1$00 uoneyodsues ) [euonippy
uondussag 4o 4o ‘Bunuoy jo junowy way|

% %

sarousbunuoy wesBoiy Juswaaosdw) [eydes yyO4 L 10Z pasodouyg
Z uondo M3lASY dID 0102 YNOH
5 9Iqe]

14VdQ

14



I A1) 150 4 A 3 VAR 91N o

ST

ARG,

"BSBRIOUI XB) WNIUIXEW Jussad-

LIOL/ZL SaT AG Posadaly

§ 3L paSOXS SIS0 UBUM X2 040 YHO S aU) Ul Se340Ul [BhuuR BU} PUE SHSEAIIUI 1SOD USHINISLICD USBMISY S0URJAHID PAJEWIRSS sienb3 [z]

'$95Ua0X%3 w4 Joud 1oy Sluaasmguial sienbg [|]

YHGd #omog

‘|eAOWIR) PualuLioday

‘wap Aouabunuea 41 Uonevodsue.) auo clul uonepyosugs 18pisuoy
‘way Auabunues 419 vopelodsuen suo ORI UGIEPIOSUDD S5pisuUor)
"MRINB) S3pUN

"abueLD ou pusLILLCoSy

"aBueyd ou puswwoaay

‘afueys ou puswweasy

“#BuBYD ou puswwosay
"abuey? ou puswLLoTay

iusimopua ajul paziiendes aq junowe piNo?y ‘suonenobau o1 algng

40 Pue SMASN UM luswiaaiBe/suonenobeu of palgng

%0°001
‘PAUNLBDI JON %2
%6'0L

“SjuBLWan0sdwl jeyded Jelo usasalon
13A0D i uoeBiIqo uenelodsuE) Buiews) jo 90| salnssy

%e8

“H@ 'suonipuos Subueys ‘Buiseyd ‘skejep 1sloud 10} 51500 paseaou %L Ch
'spaloid 4i0 alejdwos
0} paueq) spaadoud 3|BS pUe| 5,7u0 4 JO WoWARDS) 9 4 03D %86
"a49 3w Japun asuenss|
pucq moje o) Arod 49 sass) pieog YO # paunoul AUG %0'0
JUBLISSASSRS)
fHE 0} P3IEls) suoneBilil O ID Jeuomppe Joy Asusbunues %0
weuBolg uoyeawbng
ASIBM PIO HO4 0} UoRNquUIucD Arejunjon pasosdde preog w04 %291
LS Yeig %o )
BIBLLISD JBIS %2 ¢

%¥ 0Z
"SIESA G 10) W 91§ JO 1500 uolEUaWSdW jenuLE sawnssy Heg
WO G /1S = GES - 6763 S 18] (%Gy
40 Pe3ISUI 94¢) a1y “den RIBWMOPUT dOH Psanpel Sawnssy %0'vL

000'009'vZLS sa19uabunuoy pue §1500 S8 (B30

000'08.L'2% sapuabunuey paubisseun
000°06£ 883 sauabuluoy |eoigng
000002 01E Sawanosdw) [ended Jaysoy
Buiseyd 1502 Jsu00 pue “puos
000'0ze'9L S SOBUNSANS UmOLUR *I7] siieioys dID YHO 4
000'061'Z1$ [L] swaswasinquiay wyo 4
0% 51500 Bursueury
0% M3l dyg woy suoeBinw vi3n
000'008'0Z$ siso) voneswBNY JaEA
000'000°'z$ S1S00) UONEDOEY SRIn
00C"005" 1S 51500 UOHEIOISaY WIBl] LIOIS
000'08¢52$ 51500 wawebeuey Jenqey |e10)
000'cRE L uoneaws|dul goH [enuuy

000°005°£ 1% Wauwsnipe ajes des Jusumopug

$1503 VS LIebeUEW TeNaEr [EUoHIpDY

SIIONIONLLNOD
%89z 00005t e S1S02 ¥3H10 TVL0L
%821 000'000'94$ 51507 JaxyEaie) |ejoL
PUE 51500 ujpiebal suonoIpsunf ypm uoISSNoSI] “spaau 16w pue Jew $,'PsUN{ 10} 1LaAN00GE 18 ABjap Jedk-g| %AV 000'000'SS ‘1BW/aoLeUB IR Avadoig
‘aBelanos Amael| pue s1sos Guipiebos suonRIpsunl Yym Uolssnasig “S2011GEY uoRAIpSLINl 10 Jeskiuoiw 1§ e Aejep 1e3h-0L %og 000'000'0L% Sisoo Buiploy-pue| uopipsunp
ECORPEL SR 5]
%0l 000°05+'£1$ $1507 uclieuodsuel] ‘ppy ;o)
DIEWNSD §2I1S %O ZF 000'000'51LS  suoNeBiiw v4aNASIOvDI0 3 uonisinboy a0y
“way Asuabunuos g1 uoheuedsuel auo cju) UCKBRIOSUOD 13PISUOY) ‘ue(d Jad 0000014 40 Isoo & 1R sueld Z sawnssy 970 000'002% sueld 16K siog
“{Anadoid wD53 Ut specy Bunbio pue
"wis) Auabuguos d4)o UOLEUOGSURI, SUC O)UI UDIEPNOSUGD d8pisuo]  apisise3 ‘snidAleond) spslod uonepodsuRs) uIBpeD §O v50) 153 %8| 00005278 Hoddng vonongsuos D3
150D uonEuodsSUET] eUCHIPPY
SLS0D ¥WIHLO
Suatiwoy uondussag [e10) jo %, unousy wayy

14V¥d

sapusbunuos pur 509 JaRE J0 Alewwing
MaASY dID 0L0Z vHOA
9 819



Fort Ord Capital Improvement Program Review
Draft Report January 14, 2011

Option 1 represents a reduction of more than 40 percent from the original CIP contingency
amount while Option 2 represents a reduction of more than 75 percent from the original amount.
When compared to the overall CIP project cost, the Option 1 CIP centingency would equal
approximately 36.5 percent of the total cost and the Option 2 CIP contingency would equal
approximately 12.3 percent.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 16 P:\20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondsnce 2= " or




3.  RECOMMENDED FORA ACTIONS

Immediate Actions

Recommendations for immediate actions are based on conclusions from the comprehensive CIp
review and cost burden analyses. The following methodology describes the way in which EPS
determined a minimum CFD Special Tax reduction for each option for FORA consideration. Using
its discretion, FORA could consider a greater reduction to the CFD Special Tax {e.g., Option 3)
based on other factors and testimony presented to the Administrative Committee and to the
FORA Board.

The approach supporting the recommended Immediate actions was completed using the
following steps (for each Option):

1. Reorganize and reconstitute the CIP contingency to include only those items that are
considered to be uncertain costs for which prudent contingencies should be maintained. This
reorganization entails the recommended elimination of certain existing contingency items, as
well as consolidating other contingency items.

2. Determine total estimated CIpP obligation, including mitigation and other costs, as well as
revised contingency costs (calculated in Step 1) to determine the gross amount of funding
required (2010-11 through 2021-22}.

3. Determine existing cash balances for CIP projects and forecast other revenue sources
anticipated to be available for CIP projects.

4. Subtract existing cash available for CIP projects, as well as other anticipated revenue scurces
(calculated in Step 3), to derive net CIP costs for which the CFD Special Tax should provide
funding.

5. Calculate maximum one-time special tax revenue anticipated from FORA development
forecast through 2021-22,

6. Compare the amount calculated in Step 4 to the amount calculated in Step 5 to determine
the percentage of one-time special tax revenue required to fully fund required FORA CIP
obligations,

7. Recommend an interim adjustment to FORA one-time special tax based on the amounts
calculated in Step 5. The interim adjustment could be in place for a fixed number of years
pending ongoing and subsequent evaluation of the CIP financing needs.

Tables 7 and 8 show the summary calculations for the steps outlined above for the initial
Option 1 and the recommended Option 2 respectively,

As described above, the above-referenced reduction to the CFD Special Tax could be augmented
and coordinated with other potential adjustments based on factors such as economic
development incentives, as well as concurrent actions such as other agency fee reductions.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 17 P:\20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence: oo P




DRAFT

Table 7
FORA 2010 CIP Review Option 1
Capital Improvement Program Summary
Item Calculation Amount
Capital Improvement Program Costs
Capital Improvement Program Projects a $194,500,000
Contingencies b $70,800.000
Total c=a+hb $265,400,000
Other Costs - CFD Administration d $1,700,000
Less Existing Sources of Funds
Loan Proceeds e $3,100,000
Federai Grants f $3,400,000
CSU Mitigation Fees g $1,300,000
Existing Fund Balances [1] h $4 000,000
Total Existing Sources i=e+f+g+h $11,800,000
Less Other Sources of Funds [2]
Land Sale Revenues j $0
Tax Increment Revenues K $0
Total Other Sources l=j+k $0
CFD Special Tax Revenue Required
CFD Special Tax Revenue m=c+d-i-I $255,300,000
FORA CFD Special Tax Revenue Summary
Estimated Maximum CFD Special Tax Revenue [3] n $326,600,000
Amount Required to Fund CIP o=m $255,300,000
CFD Special Tax Required as a % of Maximum p=min 78.2%
Recommended CFD Special Tax % of Maximum (Rounded) 78.5%
“Gip_fund_1"

Source: FORA and EPS.
Amounts rounded to the nearest hundred thousand.

[1] Equals existing fund balance for habitat mitigation.

[2] While other sources could be used to fund CIP projects, the availability
of such sources to fund CIP projects is not certain at this time.

[3] See Table A-3.

Prepared by EPS 1/12/2011

18

P20000A20510 FORA CiP ReviavAModeisy « 1017 -



DRAFT

Table 8
FORA 2010 CIP Review Cption 2
Capital Improvement Program Summary
Item Calculation Amount
Capital Improvement Program Costs
Capital improvement Program Projects a $194,500,000
Contingencies b $23,900,000
Total c=a+hb $218,400,000
Other Costs - CFD Administration d $1,700,000
Less Existing Sources of Funds
Loan Proceeds e $3,100,000
Federa! Grants f $3,400,000
CSU Mitigation Fees g $1,300,000
Existing Fund Balances [1) h $4.000.000
Total Existing Sources i=e+f+g+h $11,800,000
Less Other Sources of Funds [2]
Land Sale Revenues i $0
Tax Increment Revenues k $0
Total Other Sources I=j+k $0
CFD Special Tax Revenue Required
CFD Special Tax Revenue m=c+d-i-| $208,300,000
FORA CFD Special Tax Revenue Summary
Estimated Maximum CFD Special Tax Revenue [3] n $326,600,000
Amount Required to Fund CIP o=m $208,300,000
CFD Special Tax Required as a % of Maximum p=m/n 63.8%
Recommended CFD Special Tax % of Maximum (Rounded) 64.0%
“cip_fund_2"
Source: FORA and EPS.
Amounts rounded to the nearest hundred thousand.
[1] Equals existing fund balance for habitat mitigation.
[2] While other sources could be used to fund CIP projects, the availability
of such sources to fund CIP projects is not certain at this time.
[3] See Table A-3.
FORA C1P L1/ .

Prepared by EPS 1/12/2011

19




Fort Ord Capital Improvement Program Re. .ew
Draft Report January 14, 2011

Table 1 shows the present and CFD Speclal Tax for Options 1 and 2. A summary version of the
resulting CIP cash flows is included as Tables B-1 and C-1.

Ongoing Financing Strategy Evaluation and
Implementation

In addition to the recommended immediate implementation actions, the second step in the CIp
review strategy includes an ongoing evaluation of the CIpP financing strategy. The ongoing CIP
financing strategy evaluation and impiementation actions would occur over a longer term (2 tc 4
vears) to resolve the issues noted above, as well as to incorporate additional potential actions by
FORA and its member agencies in response to changed economic and other circumstances.

As many of the current uncertainties get resolved, FORA and its member agencies would be in a
much better position to evaluate the ultimate FORA obligations and the extent to which all
potential existing and future revenue sources can be deployed to fund the obiigations.

For example, the CIP contingency includes allowances for future costs that may be incurred by
FORA in its role in mitigating for reuse impacts. At least one of these items in Option 1, the
“additional habitat management costs,” should be resolved within the next 1 to 2 years. At such
time as the ultimate habitat Management costs are resolved, those costs could be included as
direct CIP obligations and removed from the contingency category.

Separately, when market conditions normaiize, FORA would likely update its land sales revenue
forecast to determine how land sales revenue forecasts compare to anticipated demolition
obligations. To the extent that land sales revenues are anticipated to exceed obligations, FORA
may be able to forgive its $12,2 million loan to the CIP (included as an Option 1 contingency lire
item) once that loan is repaid with land sale proceeds from the sale of the Preston Park project
Relatedly, FORA might also reevaluate whether potential “surplus” land sales revenues could be
used to fund CIP obligations.

The ongoing CIP financing strategy should also evaluate the ability of FORA’s member agencie:
or development partners (e.g., private developers and institutional partners) to advance fund
and construct certain “critical” FORA CIP obligations that might otherwise be delayed but for the
advance funding. Advance-funded infrastructure projects would be reimbursed through future
FORA CIP revenues. This relates to the fact that many of the near-term transportation segments
and related projects are oriented toward CSUMB and other educational institutions that do not
generate sufficient special tax revenues or mitigation payments to FORA to underwrite these
segments.

To the extent that the immediate across-the-board reduction of one-time special taxes spur
near-term economic development, FORA and its member agencies will see increased tax
increment revenues that might also be leveraged to fund CIP obligations, as well as other
projects. Because the FORA tax increment financing authority was authorized under special
legislation, it is unclear what effect the Governor’s proposed 2011 budget policies may have
upon FORA and its member jurisdictions with respect to tax increment revenues. The ability of
FORA specifically to leverage tax increment revenues is fargely contingent on whether FORA
sunsets in 2014,

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc, 20 Pi\20000\20520 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence 5% - roc




Fort Ord Capital Improvement Program Rev,ew
Draft Report January 14, 7011

Tax increment revenues could play a significant role in funding reuse obligations and CEQA
mitigation measures in the future. Although the potential for tax increment revenues is large,
each year that development is delayed results in less tax increment available over the entire life
of the project area. This occurs because the term of the redevelopment project area(s) is limited
in the authorizing legislation. As property values escalate over time, it is the later years of
redevelopment project areas that really generate significant levels of tax increment,

Recent tax increment revenue estimates provided by the private development community help: to
illustrate the influence of a development delay on the ultimate amount of tax increment revenue
avaiiable to all taxing entities. While these estimates demonstrate this point, the actual dollar
amount of the estimates would need to be reviewed and confirmed before relying on these
potential revenue streams.

Although future tax increment and the ability to leverage that revenue stream could be
significant {depending on several factors), tax increment funding is not factored into the
recommended immediate actions because of the following uncertainties:

e Amount of tax increment necessary to fund FORA redevelopment activities.
= Potential distribution of FORA tax increment if FORA sunsets in 2014.

All these factors would be considered when preparing FORA’s CIP financing strategy in the
future,

Subsequent Steps Beyond Interim CFD Special Tax
Reductions

Foliowing the recommended adoption of a reduced CFD Special Tax, it is recommended that the
following steps be undertaken immediately to work toward a permanent solution providing long-
term confidence to jurisdictions and their investors:

e Initialize steps to determine the ultimate FORA extension or transition to a similar agency
able to provide continued coordination of basewide maintenance, habitat mitigation,
infrastructure development, and other mission-critical basewide actions. The default to this
approach—requiring that these items be coordinated among FORA’s members—would
represent tremendous risk that could significantly reduce future investment and subject
individual jurisdictions to legal {CEQA) risks.

* Resolve Habitat Conservation Plan endowment costs. Significant new information is expected
to emerge on this topic over the next 1-2 years that should help determine the ultimate CIP
project costs for this item.

» Continue to seek state, federal, and other grant revenues to help fund CIP projects.

» All of the above would be assimilated to develop a comprehensive basewide infrastructure
financing strategy. The updated financing strategy would account for the latest cost and
revenue information available and would be assimilated with consideration of the
form/function of FORA or a similar entity. This work should begin immediately to make
progress toward a permanent revision of the basewide financing plan.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 21 PA20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Corcespondence:20%: +  jor



Appendix A:
Appendix B:
Appendix C:
Appendix D:

APPENDICES:;
Updated CIP Assumptions
Option 1 CIP Tables
Option 2 CIP Tables

Infrastructure Cost Burden Analysis



APPENDIX A:

Updated CIP Assumptions

(i



APPENDIX A: UPDATED CIP ASSUMPTIONS

This appendix summarizes the key assumptions used to update certain CIP tables for this
analysis. Each section below summarizes updated assumptions.

Development Forecasts

Tables A-1 and A-2 are the revised CIP development forecasts. Both the residential and
nonresidential development forecasts were updated based on input from key stakeholders.
Revised assumptions include these:

* Updated unit and building square footage estimates.
* Updated timing of development.

In addition, the development forecasts are now organized and subtotaled by member
jurisdiction. As shown in Table A-1, the total number of new residential units, excluding the
492 CSUMB units, exceeds the present maximum cap of 6,160 new residential units. To account
for this phenomenon, EPS included adjustments so CFD Special Tax revenues were not
overstated,

The first adjustment at the bottom of Table A-1 is the assumption that the CSUMB units will not
pay the CFD Special Tax. This assumption does not conclude that these units would not be
subject to the fee. Instead, because the amount and timing of potential CSUMB project
mitigation payments is uncertain, it was conservative to exclude the potential revenues.

The second adjustment occurs in the later years of the development forecast to account for the:
6,160 unit cap for new residential units. This “bottom line” adjustment ensures the CFD Speciat
Tax revenue forecast from new residential developrment would not assume new units that cou!:!
not ever be constructed under the current CEQA authorizations.

The nonresidential development forecast in Table A-2 includes the estimated acreage for eact:
project based on the floor area ratios (FARs) used in the existing CIP document. Based on input
from member jurisdictions, the amount and timing of anticipated nonresidential development
differs from the July 2010 CIP.

CFD Special Tax Revenue Estimate

Table A-3 shows the maximum CFD Special Tax revenue estimate for each land use category
and overall through 2021-22, The maximum CFD Special Tax revenue estimate is based on the
following assumptions:

» Development forecasts described above.
« 100 percent of the maximum CFD Special Tax rate as of July 1, 2010.
» No discount for affordable housing CFD Special Tax rates.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc, A-1 P:\20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence\20510 M5 (15 . fo




Updated CIP Assumpiions
Appendix A December 1 a, 2010

As compared to the July 2010 forecast, the maximum CFD Special Tax revenue estimated in
Table A-3 is approximately $40.0 million higher. Aside from some differences in absorption
assumptions, the primary difference between the forecasts is the affordable housing tax
assumption.

The July 2010 CIP included a potential reduction in CFD Special Tax revenue of approximately
$40 miltion, assuming that 1,100 of the remaining approximately 5,700 new residential units
would qualify for reduced affordable housing CFD Special Tax rates. That assumption was
eliminated from the present revenue forecast because the incentives appear difficult to obtain
and it is not clear whether any projects are considering an attempt to meet the requirements.
To the extent that a future project was able to meet the requirements, it is not likely to occur at
the same scale as the prior assumptions,

Land Sale Revenue Proceeds

At this time, the land sale revenue praceed estimates have not been updated. The primary
reason that the estimates were not updated is the uncertainty about current and future land
values. Although some of the near-term land sale revenue estimates are based on existing
contractual obligations, it is difficult to predict the amount and timing of land sale revenues given
the limited scope of the current effort. As described in the memorandum, because land sale
revenues are uncertain at this time, they were not considered in determining recommended
immediate actions. They should, however, be considered in the ongoing monitoring and
updating of the CIP,

Tax Increment Revenues

At this time, the tax increment revenue estimates have not been updated. The primary reason
that the estimates were not updated is the uncertainty about the amount, timing, and flow of
future tax increment revenues. As described in the memorandum, because tax increment
revenues are uncertain at this time, they were not considered in determining recommended
immediate actions. They should, however, be considered in the ongoing monitoring and
updating of the CIP.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. A-2 P\20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence\20510 M5 C10 1+ - yoc




N D R 3 1484 A B MCOPPY AT o ot G4 OO f

&V

£i0 1 abed

14vyd

- 801 Jid L0k 221 6l¢ Ivs 064 F44] 344 [:1:74 0 YNRIYH S0 AL TYL0L
- - - - - 8z 621 (128 orL 99 - - 981t P59 Wewadejdey/Sunsixg - jejorgng
B T B T B - - - - - - - £l tl v 42U3] UCIISLE ) Suelalap,
- - - - - - - - - - - - B¢ &€ oYW SNig YoeannG Jalpyg
- - - - - - - - - - - - o5 95 HeW Auoyiny Buisnol Q0N
- - - - - - - - - - - - z6t z6l oYW 8 swelqy
- - - - - - - - ze - - - ze - gvin Wed uoped
- - - - - 8z 671 4! 201 $9 - - 08 - oY sljouy ssaudAD
- - - - - - - - - - - - vee ¥5E HYW Med Uolsalg
0 80} o1 201 Fr43 i8¢ s8Iy (8] z89 £8¢ §52 - 6218 - {ENUIRISIY MmaN - |eloqng
- N - - - - v 0s1 051 051 - - 26¢ - HYW/NSD 1SNoH sndwe) YUoN NNSD
- - - - - - 001 Qo) - - - - 002 - HYW Q0L JWYL
- - - - L4 09 691 €8z £8Z £02 §t2 - 52 - Aeg Azisiuop uo saung moIgng
B B B 5 B T B s B g F T — 30T = YW Mo AsapymoT - sjuawpedy
- - - - l St 6 (73 85 8t ] - 202 - HYW  3DIOPHOANPOWAOT - S1eng
- - - - 3 [ 12 4 0z - ¥2 - vl - oW siang
- - - - - - 8L 85 £9 24 - €91 - UV swoyuma )
- - - - - - 82 08 z8 ar ¥2 - 092 - ¥y piepuelg
- - - - - - 0% 74 2 9 1z - €1l - HYW afewe)
- - - - - - i 65 15 o1 vZ - 4 - oy Aairy
- oYW Aeg Asiajuop uo seunq
- - - - ol ¥aL - - - - - - 002 - U sflouy ssaudin
- 80k 201 00 01 0L oL 204 &2 (i oz - 050't - sWbiay eule (MoIng
- 4 zr 43 zr Zr ) £l - = - B g8 - HYW saEs3
- €€ »e vE e 3 ¥e e £8 oL ] - gee - YW g 1apey
- £€ 62 82 62 62 62 62 101 Gi ot - 62E - oYW ¥ 19nen
- gl 18 &l 6} 61 6l [ Iid g 14 - 881 - oYW abpugnaep ssno
- 2 £l £l £t €l £l gL zl - - - 20l - oo ALOYUMOL
- UV s1yblaH euney
FenUapISaY man
VYNISVIN IO AT
ZT1Z0T 120202 0ZGMOZ 6L-BLOT BL-LLOZ ZL-OVOZ SH-SLOZ SIFiDZ FICIOZ €L-ZHOZ ZTLLLOZ 11-0LOZ | 1e1o] 60/LiL | uonap adAL esp) pue
2Z-iZ0z |Bunsixy | -sunp
o
Bugsixg

15820104 BUIIESEY pasIAGY

(Stun Culjjamp) uoRINRSUOY B8N pue-] [RRUUY lenuaptsay pajewnis3

Malaay diD 0L0Z vHOd
¥ e|qe)

04020821 ST AG pamderd



N 13 L1 AR 3 Y S DRG0

CLOZVIR}E Sd3 Ag paredesy

v
- - - - - - - riz 182 0gL - - 169 - SHVO AZH T3 40 ALID TVLOL
= = = B = B : T B B B B B - snoLeA, |eqUapISIY JaLD
- - - - - - - viT 182 ]’ - - 169 1B0iang
= 5 b T 5 T 0 e o ¥4 < g 6 n OYd  SENSED JOAS/SOWOUUME |
N - - - - - - L 154 or - - 145 - QYo s0Jopops0pPLOY
- - - - - - - - 14 [43 - - 9 - oda S8LIOH olled
- - - - - - - - >4 £ - - 08 - 1214} SE|IA HOD
syeQ Aoy joqg
FERUBpISay MoN
SHYQ AFY 13T 40 LD
- - - orL 551 L6¥ 06 [+ L £0} 3 L 0z’ f44'7 JAISVIS S0 ALID TWLOL
. - - - - - - - - - - - F443 F43 ewade|dayBunsixg - |ezoiqng
- - - - - - - - - - - - gec 27 v3s wionsolg
- - - - - - - - - - - - 162 162 VIS ued Losioyy rauuo)) Aequng
TENURpIS oy JUSDeIedayDURSIS
0 1] 0 ori 551 134 06 oL 4 o] ) L 3 8€°L 08¢ |ERUBPISHY MaN - |BINIghS
T s = T - T - . = B2 = . Bz - ¥3as  (opiseag) Buisnoy acuoppops
- - - orL 4Gl 101 08 - - - - - 28k - vas 3ed 28I0H Anzuop
R - - - - - B - - - - - - - w35 Joppop) Busnoy syied sielg
- - - - - oSt - - - - - - 18 - vaS N Auuy) Buisnoy siey 1anei
- - - - - orlL - - - - - - ovlL - V3§ 30} Auing) Suisnon sosopuops
- - - - - - - - - z! - - L - ¥3§ O Buisnoy ajqepuoyy apiseag
- - - - - B - - - - - - - - vas (apsjse3) Buisnoy apisesg
- - - - b 6 ol 0} L Z I I SZL - v3s BuisnaH uosay apiseag
- - - - - - - - - - - - 0sg 0sg vas s3lcH spueybi apiseeg
eI uBpTSoY MoN
FGIBVIS I0 ALD
ZELZ0Z 120202 0Z-6L0Z GL-BLOZ BL-ZL0Z LF9L0Z 9L-SLOZ GL-PLOZ PLTILOZ ELCHOZ Z-1LL0T  BL-0LOZ 1ejo] 60/11L uonoip adA] as) pueT
22170z |Bunsxz | -sunp
[}
Gunsicg
{Spun Buifemp) uonan[sUoY S0 pueT {enuuy |RuUapIsay perewnsy
15828104 JUNIISEE PasIAGM MBIADY di1D 0LDZ VHOA
£Joz abey ¥ ajgeL

134vida



N LT3 1700 AT i 3 ML 1§D, ¢

S-v

CJag abad

14vyd

“ded 3|epowosoe o) palsnipe s1e sieak Ji7) Jaje oy SIse2810) Juawdojanag ‘B10) &

34} Inoqe Aluiepacun enusjoed uanB papnpxe sl

LN OGL' PABOXS JOU UED JUBLIAO[BARD |BUSPISaT maN [g]

‘uenRSRIL PIBS Jo funowe

waloid GNNSD 2 way siuewked uonebpu jequsiod “BLI SIYL Ty "ded JIun [BRUSPISEI MAU LINWIXEW Ul P3N 164 2Je spun [7]

'22-120Z Ybnouys uondicsqe paledionue SE 1am S8 607172 BunsIXg so) Spunole apnpul siejo L [1)

BrRGS6,
- - - - 0ie ISP 10z 0sE't 0zZ'L e 952 1 £18' £98°} ILNLLLSNI DNIGNTIIXT TYLOL ANYHD
- - - - - j:+4 b1 ] 6%l ovL 99 - - 1- 0 281’} NSIY INIWIOVIIFWONILSIE TVLIOL
- - - - ]2 vl Bg6 HZ'L 080't LSS 95z 3 09L's 08¢ PNIGTIXE TYULNIQISTH MIN TVLOL
- 812 01 ££% gtt - 44 0st 051 0§t - - gL'l - SININLSAray TVL0L
- 81T 01 £e5 [:£3 - - - - . - - 95g'L - (€] GIOHSTHHL LINN WAWXXYIN
- - - - - - 4 051 o5t 051 - - zop - [zl awnso
SINIWLSNIraY TVILNIAISIN MaAN $537
- 82 1ot SES a9 ISP'E €92'L 008’ oleL 19l 952 L 128 295 V101 ONYHS
. - - - - 8z ba 6rl ork 99 - - 18’} 28L'L  NSTY INFWIOV IdIHONILSIT TViOL
- 8z L04 £es a9 ¥ 000 1St 0gZ'L bou 952 ] 8062 ost MVLNIAISTE MIN TVLOL
LilsmvioL
- oll - 982 99¢ 185 908 9aTr vsZ 58 - - §8L'2 L LLLLLSNUALNNIOD AFHIINOW TVLIOL
- - . R . - ¥lL - - - - - GZL L wawaseiday/bunsixg - lejoigng
E B B B : - PIL E B - B E FIT : snoues 2 Awiry - Aaupny flamins
- - - - - - - - - - - - 1l L 10 2] Wuau|
IeRuapIsay JUsiiaIeidoNDUISING
- 174 - 982 g99¢ leg 6t T4 J 52 98 - - 099 - [elluspisay maN - |eloyqng
- - - aze oze 0zz - - - - - B [T - QOW/oN 4 - sndwe) se3 on
- - - 99 19 29 - - - - - - 007 - OJWIN 48 - sndwed 1583 2N
- 0Li - - - - 0¥ or ot oy - - oge - OoWIN 18805 YIg on
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - COW }ied asIoH Aasnuoy
- - - - BL ¥6T A 9gg riz S - - oL uosLIeg) 153 [RICIGNS
- - E B €2 G0r ¥ 6 (32 g - = (143 B QN 3jqeplogy
- - - - 95 681 80¢ 682 (¥4} £ - - 050’} - QOW aled Jaxie
| uosLues jse3
ZTHE0Z 120702 O0Z-6LOZ 6L8LOZ SL-ZLOC Zi-9L0Z SI-5L0Z SLPIOZ PL-SL0Z €L-ZLOZ ZE-LLOZ L1-0LOZ | 1BoL 60/LiL | vonop adf) asn pueq
TT'1Z0Z |Bumsixz | -sunp
A
Bunpsixg

15800104 Bulaseg pasiaay

fsiun Bugiamp) vonannsuog esn puet lenuuy |epuapisay pajewsy

MIAGH D 0LOZ YHOS
-V oqeL

OLOZLZL SdT AG pemBdaie



Eio L olag

134v¥d

- - - - - - D0O'SLL  00O'GEL  0OO'OCE  OG0'0R 00008 0O0'LM | 000'ESS AINNO2 AZHIINOW TVLOL
- - - - - - - - - ©00's41 | ooo'BLL s34} Allveg sudp g uep SN LSK
- - 000'08  0DO08  DOO'0R 000°08  ooo'ty - 000°00% con (He0 Sutiadsiym) yieg [esnpU igpuer]
- - - - 000'SE  000'0%  000'0S - . - 000'SE 4 oSN $ied 3810
Aunos Awnuow
- - - - - - 0ZC'ST - 025 v3s doys piej diog - #psReS Jo Ang
PEU'SS  BZUGHL 039 SRLOL  SL9L  WML'SY  Zze'etl SOTEOL  992°0CL £9.'0CL 00009 - 150'FEF L URRIVIN 40 ALID TYLOL
BMZR TRZeih - - - - 0¥ 0Z 80FO0Z 0P OZ WK0Z 00002 - f=y 7 DOCEE | dvWiONn SSNOUIED IS § UUON 1BILIT D)
000’y ono's yvn S30usg poddng sfiouy $saidAo
- - - - - 0C0'0F  00C'0F 00008 000708 pod'or - 000°082 yvH Aeg Aaisjuol w0 saung
- - - . - 00§’k 00§zl - - . - 000'$% MY acl JwvL
- - - - - - - - - - - 00E'ZL 0082} uvw pre) dios A — risnpul
S8L9L  SBL9L 98I0 9BLOL  9BL'OL  PLL0S  PMLOS  LSCOE  ZS00C 5808 - 6Zv'o¥e | ooo'osz | www ANy JUIWAOAAQ SMLOUOIT LoDy
eupew jo A
‘TYIZISTaN]
- 561 - 26 8'6 6z 68 311 e &1 zy T8 gos se0 vy “Bay} uogniasuy X BRIy 931G
- - - - - - - - - . - - - posnjou | e (uv'd “Bay) #2500 uopmpsYs s887
- L) - e 28 [x 43 (¥ 652 6 Vel 9 25 o9l 560 v "Sary) eBussay 2aiu0
- sgg'zoe - 000'9YL  GO0'6¥L DOO'LEL  LII'CES  LLZ'SES  LIO'OML HO'00Z 000'S6  pOs'9s | cl6'gE'T |- 3581004 arenbs 2214 fwio}
- - - - 0os'szE - - 008'621 AHW Aosoruop jo Ay
. - - DO0'SFL  OOO'SYL  G00'WIL  QOZ'ECL  COZPOL  QOO'LE - - o60'9e | 00r'iZ8 ALNNOD ASYIINONK TVLOL
B E - - - - - - = = = - ODWION @258 WEE™ on
- - - - - - - - - - - 000'st | 0009t el AUpey sudg g e Sna LS
- - - - - 000's  000'ZL  000'ZL  000'9 - - 000'5¢ CoW wawdoaaag soY0 | uotiLes) 583
- . - 00042} O0O'LZL 0O0'ZZL 00T L2l 00ZLZL - - - oo¥'ses COW HBd 340 Py UosWRBIIU|
- - - Wl 00072 000'ZZ - - - - - - 000'59 [elel] Juawdoaadg (€11 IYPUE
. . - - - . - 00052 000'ST - - 00005 OO A1ed amioy
Aunoy Aarsjuop
- - - - - 00'o0; - 000001 - - 000'00Z oua sym0 Aoy pogg ¢ 4310
- - - - - 00007 000'0sT - - - - QLT {00616 JTISYIS 20 AlD TWLOL
B B B B T T %00z - B B B 000'052 v3s BUD JUOD § 9PRIL BINSULG Aalaluoy
- - - - - - - - ¥3S ARlawan suesaian
- - - - - - - - v3S looyss AlRustuapg jleysepy
- . - - - - - - vas 19049S PPN 4o
- - - - - - - - - 008 o0r'eE 0oz'zh v3s e jo 363100 AARIUOW
- . - . . - - 008't | oogt vas 190195 jaspeyD
- - - 00022 - - - [\ rd w3s 2JudigjuoD aleg uey
prseas jo g
- £88'208 - - - 000’9k BI'SL  LIO'LER  BZ0'BOL  LZ0'00L ODO'SE  DOO'DY | £1'506 VNRIVN 30 ALID TVL0L
- 68520 - - B - 1085 TLOSS T0'sS LSS QooOr - ELVESS - dvrion sasndwes 1SapA ¢ WISl RAU3D S0
- - - - - - - - - - - - HAON SNAWE YINOS [EJUID 2N
000'50 0009} HYw JRIUBD) UOWISS Sijouy T5a1dAD
. . 00002 0000Z - . . - 000°0% yvw (sanu08} amandra04i0) 0L WYL
- o009 000°GH 000'sH  000'DL - 000°55 uYH WAWCD|IAIT SHIWAS
- - - - - - - - - rn BNy JRWAORAS 2nu0L0T podiy
- - - o000r  00C'OE 000'0C  COO'$*  000'OF | 000'$8L ] Aeg A2190UGN U0 SN
- - - - - - 000'6 - - - 0009 000'LE ) ARd 3G udwy
ey to Ao
TG
A0 17020 GTLOZ EKIOE GFINOZ L9I0C S1S30C SIVIOZ PRCLGZ  EIZIT ELLioT LeHOZ | el SU/L/L | uonp LT
zZ 1oz | Bugsng | sunp
o3 Bunsng

1SEINC ] HifesEY PasiaBy

(mwoas [ajoy 10 108 auenbs BinpyNg) LOLINGEUGD 5] PUET ALY |FUIPISIIUGH payrwnsy

Mannay 12 DLOZ YHOA
Z-% wqu)

CLOVONZL ST A PR



FAL

Loz odig

1dvya

- o5k . - - - oor - - - oor - 059 PNIIVIN 20 ALD TVLOL
- e T - - B T - T 3 051 T delran Sasndwe) sapn 5 YUoN 1BNLY on
- - - - o0 - . - - oo¥ uvn RAIIDG N4 - S3URQ
- - - - - - - - oot 004 HvwW 205G paltwI - Seung
- - - - - - - - - HYW HoRyi#oH voding euuey
BULIBYY JO 11D
TZIOH
- roe e zt 518 o¥L ZEL 3] aF 052 6 - 461 $z0 (U "Oay) muopmnsuy axe sbeassy oy
- - - - - - - - - - - - pasngou | gz (4 "Bav) pasoy muogmpsuy sse7
- 08 Fx4 e 511 orL T 31 ar 0§z s - FSEL Lra] (v “Bay) oBxauoy [eyey
- ZEOLEE DO0'OE  000'ST  DDO'SIL D00'ZSE SERLL 96950Z WIS 968’12 000001 - 9u¥'ser'z | noo'ser 268j004 asenhs jlegay w10t
- YZTIOE 000'0T  00D'ST  000'SLE DOO'DZL POZ'CSL YOZ'SEL  ¥OZ'GE rz'ee - - 0Y0'700'L ALNNOD ATUIINOK TWIOL
- Y250 - - - ¥0ZEL  ¥OZEE  POZEL v0Z6E - B CFO'ZeE oowion 19308 Wbi5 on
- ooosz - - . 0008z - - - 000'28 QDW/ON sndwe? ise3 on
- - - 000'0Z1 000'0CL 000'C0F 0OG'DOL - - - 000'02¥ OoW Jed asioy
- - - . - - - - - [elelV] 1R PO
- - . - 00002 £o0'0Z - - - 0000 COW 1y | YosIeS) 1583
- 0000 0O0'SE  4d0'sT - - - 006'60} a5 WawdoPAID [RIILILIOS [YPLE]
Aunc) Asrnuow
- - - 000'0Z 000'0Z oxa 100 Aoy ;g Jo Ay
- - - - 000'ZE  005'sSS  oiS'9l - - - - 008'209 30ISYIS 0 AL TVIOL
B - E E [GRED B B Q0T 51 v3s BIMOLYNID (0D HOSIY IPISEIT
- - - - - - - vas 1w ouny Aznx]
- - c0o's - 000°2 vas WRInEIS3y RIOH RS Uil
- - - - oo0'ly - - - 000'18 ¥3s [UBINESaY ARD Urel
- - 0000zt - - - - 000021 v3s Joypuy 2105 JuduRiedag e Wew
- - oce'iez - - - 900462 ¥38 sdoys aurtu) Ao uep
- - - - 09548 - - 00g' L8 vas 1299y jewicy aflen eS LIkl
- 000'¥Z - - oo0'rZ v3s edg 3jes Liey
aprseas jo Ay
- 20969 - - - ZEL'OS  I6H'05  Zes'ni ZEYILZ  GOU'0OF - 95598 WNRIVIN 40 ALID TYLOL
= - - B E B - - - B = YYWon sndwiey Pneg on
- 208'69 . Z68'7L  Z69TL  265'TL 692 - 915'021 HYWIN SISNAWED J59AA F YLON 1RBUIZ D1y
- - - - - 005’ s - - - 200°52 Bl Q0L SWYL
- - - - - - 000002 000’001 000°895 000'23€ | YWW Aeg Aa1aiuon uo saung
- - - - - - oYW J3UAD) APUnIWG? Sjouy sSaadks
wupEy o Ao
TWIEE
g 20k ry re rr (33 eor el ¥aL X4} o'g 8 et oro (¥ Bav) JasUr ‘Rx3 2Bearsy mugsnpuy
- - - - . - - - - - - - - pasn ou | oo (vd “Bay) 92500 muogmgsut seey
2% For rr rr rr e £oy 2eL [&18 Lz g %9 8ttt are (v “Bay) s6wasny mrgsnpuy
YOS5 RTOESL SR'9L  SML9L  98L'S!  WLI'®9  TZO'tSL SOTHNT Setiese S9L'0LZ  0000FL  DOO'RLL | 126'ZE9'Z | DOToot 08300 asanbg jeigsnpur Mo
- - - - 000'008 - - - - - 000' 005 ALID ATUIINOW TVLOL
- GO000%Z w0052 A ARMIAA QN ~ [FISSEOY|
on'esT - - 000'052 AMW pIRA a0y A3 - (Basnpy
Aasajuom jo Ao
TTIEee R0 026H07 GHINZ §I-LN0C LhSHR  SIVIOZ SENIT FITIOE GLZoE ZHLBE 10k 0 =T X[ exn poe]
ZZ-120z | Bunsny | -sunp
@ Bugzicy

15€53u04 suleseg pasiAey

(stu0al 1230 10 193} annbs SuIPNG) UORINRSUCY 5N PUET EAULY [ERUAREAIUGH PowumST

MHUARY I 0LOZ ¥HO
79 ey

DLOZAGLAZ L ST AQ paredig



8-v

Lo adey

14vya

e BRI DN PUR LU ¥ MO SUOOIPEHNT [RI0] Ul RAGIAIGIU| 1BRNNGE

LSRG TSRO,
- - - - - 19104
- - - - - 00’579 - - - - - 005°628 =9l
- B - - - - - - B HELaY
- - 000005 - - - - 060'005 reusnpul
- . - 005'62L - 005'624 %3y0
Aasatuop o A1
- 052 - - - - - 002 - - - - o5t oM
- YETIOZ O000'0C  DOO'CEL  UOO'WZE DOOPIZ YOW'SLE FOVECY YOT'OOZ  FOZ'ELE 000'0%  0O0'WSL [T 1®90)
- YETIOZ 0ODE  DDOSE  000'SZ 0000Z) POZGSI POZELI POZEL ¥ZTEE - - GP0'00"L ey
. - . - - . 0005k DOO'OGL  DOO'OEL  00O'0§ 000’08 0O0'SLI | 00O'ESS [easnpy|
- - 000°8F1  000'6¥L  DOO'¥YSE OOZ'EEL 0OZ'PAL  00O'LE - - 000'98 | 00%' 128 Y0
Aunan Asuow
- - - - 00} 262 Z51 0sg L]
- - - - - 000001 - 000'0TL - - 000'02Z o,
- - - - 0000z - - c00°02 leyay
- - - - - - - - - - JeISnpu|
- - oo0'0aL - 000'001 - 000'002 VWO
syeQ ey 120 o K40
- - - - 00¢ 0z} ) - - - 054 [210H
M - - - 000'65 005508 o0Ot'sl  OZL'ST - - [ 7X 020'526 moL
- - - B 000ZC 00S65¢ 00Tel - - - - 609109 legay
- . - - 02¢'5e - 0ze'sz |etnsnpu|
- 000'LE  0D0'0SZ - - 00L'T | 006'L6Z 240
pseas jo Ay
- 051 - - - - oo¥ - - - osL . 0s9 RISH
FEZ'SE  STL9S 9BL'9L  WBISL  9RIOL  WLUT8  SUB'TIT ISR ZSTST SZE'CYP  000'SST  000'0r | ooR'szZ'e =0l
E S0865 - - - - 26105 76105 Z69Ch 269 DOOO0F - SIFE9E ey
YIZEE  STO'GBL 982'9:  98L'9L  9RL'9L  KLUS9  ZZOWEL SOTROL SOLDLL  SOL0CL 00009 15038 L fewgsnpu)
. 683'208 - - - 000’9, MZO'SL BA0MEL L20'60L LADO0E 000'SS COD'DY | 641906 WO
upnn o K50
- tl - . - 8 " Lb a r 4 - £ o€t swiooy BAy} UORNINSUL 1oX3 ERAISY [910H
- - - . - - - - - - - - pesnijou | g L/, Y Bay) slmasay i} $3a7
- 13 - - - ¢ . 21 2 r H - £3 8¢ f By} abi FoH paeu;
- oor - - - [ 02§ 1] 262 L ook . o'z - SIWOOY 1BI0H 18101
. %z - - - - - 3 - - . - sy ALKNOZ ATHIINOW THLOL
T3 = = = T B B (A QAN sndwi] 1503 oN
- - - - 00z - - 0z OoK 919K {1e1d Ja1ed) ey Fmicy
Aunon Axseuom
- - - - - . ook 867 75k - - 085 SHVQ AFH 730 40 AL TYIOL
- - - Br ar 96 o%Q areusaun] e Avy 1eg
- 201 052 oL ror oua RIOH RO A3y 190
SYRO Ay 97 jo Ay
- - - - ot 0zh 33 - - - 054 IHSPIS JO ALD TVLOL
B g [133 - - 052 vas BIoH WD ueK
0s 0z} - . oL} vas SIRUERUILL ISINGY HOO WrSROG
- - . [\[31 - oge v3s 110K 2807 ;109 IPISRIG
PIENRS o A1
IELER  ITOZ OTSIOZ GLBMT SL-LK0Z 9K SLSMOZ SITLOC FIELOZ  CIElor ZVLERE TIOLGE [ BVliL | worNp w31 350 pUe
ZZ L2z | Bunsng | -sunp
<« Bugsiy

ISEDUCS SUNBSTY PISIADY

{FUOGH [30Y 30 303} asenbs BuIPING) UOBINGSUGD 357 PUET [ENLILY IFRUIPISAIUGN PRLIIIST

MNAIY LD DLOT YOS
TV aqEL

HO2GH/24 ST A possdasg



0 G el 13 10 At 3 Y YOO, o

QLOLOIZL ST AQ PRIBGI

6-v
Walweanbas wnwiuiw sl saoqe Buisnoy S{GepiogR J0} JUNCISIP OU SBWNSSY [Z]
YOE01LS {wioos sad) ploH
sga'vZLe (auoe Jed) Rj0Y
950'9% (@uoe Jad) [211sNpU) $ 200
Z6R'ELS (np Jad) fenuspisey Bunsixag
SOZ'ovs (np Jed) |enuapisey maN
%001 OL7H/Z 9nnoapa
-MOIBG UMOUS S31R) XB] [B108US J0UISI] SIIISEL AlUnwwo s epimaseq yuOd Burmolio) ey; sewnssy I
A8 ey,
000°1L9'928%  000'LL5'5ZE8 000CLF'BLES  00DZOL'SLES  0OD'SLY'ZLES 000'851'L0ES  D0O'PZL'0STS  000ZFII9LS 000°6B0°LOLS  D00'ZZV'SYS  0000LZ'PES  000'SLLS [z] senuasay xey g4 sage|nwing
000'v€$ 0000188 000°L288 000°28b% G00LIY'9LS DOO'FL0'LIS  000'ZBL'TY  000S9'99%  0OO°Z99'SSS 000'ZIZT'LES  000CZ60'PLS 000'SLES 000°LL9'9ZEE [2] senuesay xe1 ado v 1esoL
000°vES 000°P0L'8S 000°128% 000°28t% 000°E60'28 000'556'r$ 000'Zr2'vLS  0001L60'GS 000°1Z8'c$ 000°9E8° VS 000'PoZ'TS 000TLS 000°058'05$ SanUsADY (ROUSDISSIUON [BI0L
0% [ay#4% =3 3 fof 3 3 000160 GO0'BSE 000267 95 TG00 T20e% 000955t 000050 15 3 00004 'b2$ ST
[o}:3 000'96'c$ 000'vhesd 000°L0bS 000°200'7% 000'ErL'1E 000'998'8% 000'65€'28 000°665% o00'BLL'ES 00O’ LpL LS 0s 000'96E +Ts Ieley
000 bES 000’998 000428 000°47% 000228 000'€28 000'Z9z$ 000'28% 00D0'668 000'€L3 000'6r3 000 L 000°HL8% [eLsnput
03 000'02L$ 0% 000'65% 000'65% 000848 000'952% 0002618 000°95% 000'64% 000'8ES 00C't6% 000'€16S 20
SINUDASY [EGUAPISBIUCH
0$ 0$ 0$ o 000+ZE'YLS 000'GEL'99S  000'OVRIFS  000TISTISS  OOO'SPE'LSE 000°9/£'92$  000°8Z8°LL$  000'SPS 000°'19L'522% SINUIATY |RNUIPISHY [BI10)
08 Gs o3 % 03 000'68ES 000'9/€'€S  000040%¢  DOOSPG LS  OODZIES o o3 000'169'88 1EnuBpISSY JUaWede|day/BunsXg
0% 0s 0% 0% 000 PZE 718 00005998 COOPSZPPS  DDO'TEP'SSS  ODD'LUBEYS  0CQ'ESHSZE 0OO'BZR LIS 00O'GES 000'¥90 2928 fenUapisay maN
SINUIASY EoUepISay
T 1T 120202 0Z-5102 61-8102 81-2402 I1-910Z 95102 Si¥L0T Pi-€L0Z £4-Z10Z [T L0102 ’0L Z2-1Z202
93 L1-0102Z

INUASY XE [192dG Q40 WnuXel

14vyqa

(1] senuansy xey gi5 pmewgsy
MBIABY BLOZ dID YHOS
£y ojqe)



APPENDIX B:

Option 1 CIP Tables




T 0T A T3 VI SO

HDZRIZE 83 Aq posmdesy

1-9
‘souejeq pun; aleld 41D bunsixe sssaidey (g]
$1802 uoNejsIIWPE 040 sabnpu) [Z)
'S1500 Paltld diD 0) £aUabunuoey 417 wol peadw way 1soo pajuesaiday [1]
M-ty
FZLPLO'LS B2uejeg pund Gujpugy
000006 04§ BOUEMO|lY DA1850Y Aousbuuon
ASusBURtoD
VZVPLB'ELS  PZVLEQTIS  PCHBZAGYS  FIL9E9ESS VELCEKS9S PZLILLZSS sIF 0SS (95¢"IZ1'0M8)  (v06°120°98)  (¥S¥e9sPS)  ZS0'SIONLS PO GPOTS PELPLE'LLS  AousBuguod alogey eaurleq pung Bupug
VZVIE0TIS  VZI'928S98  vCIGB9SYS  PILEGrS9s  PErY 12758 BIPO0SES  (9STIZI OIS (v06120°GS) (rSr'605+3) 5051918 ] 9.0'€B6'ES 9/0'€B6'ES [£] eourjeg puny Suuibeg
(000'€218) 000'LLT'9$ 00017 L$ 000°Zgcs 000'9€4'Z71$  SOLOIZ8b$  BI7LZ9TIS  (Zewes0 el (0S¥'Z5%8) (905+9188)  (vB6vZr'e®)  0l695% #0jd USED JRRUUY JoN
000°0518 000°05+$ 000'05 18 000°054$ 000°05L$ 000°051$ 0000543 000'0548 000'05LS 0000518 000'0518 000'5.45 000°6ZL'1$ [z] uonensiiwpy 017 - siso) welo jeuomppy
T303 N0
0% 21 0% 0 0% S6Z'97p'94 +TL'e61'SES 50122 258 0S¥ L00"vrS MOE'E9B'0ES ¥BB'9TR'SIS  9zZ9c6'os EPG'PESVELS  saumpuadx3 (ejoL
i3 0s o a8 0s [ 08 o 0O0SLIS 0009l 1S 000918 00091 18 0079 #0013 Bujjoy aug
03 as 0% 0§ 0% 0$ 0$ 000°LBL'SLE 054726018 005'SZH'eS 005'59.'28 0SZ'STs 000'000'SES 1uatwebeuey reugeH
0% 08 0% V] 0% b 000'008'02% o$ 0% 0% ok:d 0% 000°008'0Z% {11150 uohBUBWENY JBlEA [BUOKIDPY
o8 0% 0s 08 0§ 0% 0$ SEE'ETIOIS 000°004'6$ 0% 08 08.'128 SIO'SHS'ZTS uopeuatBny Jsiem
0§ 0% 03 08 0§ 562'92h'9% PITEEE TS LIZ'LBT'STS 00£'092°£2$ L09'129°PES  PEV'SSEOLS  96)'SLL'98 Z6'STL'SILS WsuRs LuonELOdSUB) |
sjaafoiy
sanmpuadxy
000°2Z$ 000°19£'9% 0001628 000°Z8cS 000'988'21S  000'SEL'SSS  000'LL6'SHS 000'Z2E"Z5$ 000°669'ErS S62'978'%28  000'Z9S°LIS  961°890'IS FBE06L'FITS  Semuessy (oL
0% 0% 0% 08 %3 08 05 Us s [ 0s os 0s (153091U] 'SPUOE AGY) SENUBASY SNOBUENEISIN
S6L°92E8 0000058 00¢ 005$ $6.'926°LS saa) voneBuw Ngo
865'29E'ES 865'29€'ES SRS |esapay
865201 €S 865°201'€S SPaE00Jd RO
0s pEELIET ST CT
SaNUBABY JaUID
000'228 000°19€°9S 000°1628 000'Z8ES 000'988'TIS  O00'E6L'S58 000 L26'9pS 000'Z2¢ 25 000'6869'CFS 000'Z06'PZS  0OO'ZOO'LLS  000'CES 000'68€'9528 5394 juawdajanag
BINUBASY PEIES|PaQ
$33d AINANCOTIAIA Q342 A9 JIANNL SLOZM0NEL dID ¥
TR
ZT-1T0T 12-0z0z 0Z-6102 £1-810Z 84210 L1910 95402 SLFL0Z ¥I-ELOZ £H-ZHT ZhLL0Z L0kOZ o1 oL way
1901
%5 8L

WnUXeW JO % XeL 040 PIpUAWOday

T NOLLIG

14Vya

TTNTOT - LHOLOZ (dID) WaD0Nd INTWIAONAWI TVLIdYD 40 ANVNNNS LLOZ

Me1AsY dID 0LZ YHOS
19 ejge)



L L T rva—

<-8

L TABS xBy DR,

L02Z4/E SdF AQ pasndesy

Juslsinba) LWNLILIW BuY) arcge BUISnay SIGERICYE J0f JUNBISIP OU sawnssy [z]

680°'9%
SE0'96%
¥SL'VS
S06'0L$
LLZ'9es
%S°8L

(w002 1od) |910H

(auoe Jad) |IBjey

(eroe sad) [pusnpu| B eoWQ
(np sad) |equapisay Bupsg
(np sad) |enuapisay maN

HHOZ Adeniuef pasotiold

MORq LMOLS SSIEJ Xe) [etoeds JDlisIq Saioe Aunwwe? apmaseq yHO 4 Bumolo) sy sawnssy [i]

000'68E'95Z$  000°Z95'952%

000'Ho0‘0sZS

000°0LL'6HZS  DOO'SZE'SPZS 000'ZrY9LZS  DOOEPI'0BIS  000'BLS'LELS 000'95£°64%  000°I59'SES  000'SSL'LIS  000'SES [2] senuanay xe} 42 saneinwng
000°L28 000°L9£'9$ 000°162$ 0002883 000'988°71$ 000'E6L'9SS  000'LE'SPS  OO0'ZZEZSS  0DO'6SS'tYS  000°Z0S'PT$ DO0'ZSO'LES  00D'EES 000'635'952$ [2) sanuassy xel 47 v ewL
000°2£Z% 000°19¢'9$ 000'162Z$ 000'Z8¢% 000'Z+3"1% 000°k48'eS 000'CL5'LES  000'9EL°2S 000°666'Z8 000'262'SS 000'LLLLS 000°ZSS 000'9LE'65S SINUIAIY [R1HUBPISAILON [RJ0L
3 000SEC e [ 03 03 0 Zres 00090 0009605 W00IF TS 000622 1% O00608% 173 0o0'TLEBLE IPIoH
0% 000'086'2$ 0000428 000'SHES 000°645'1L$ 000'85¢°1$ 000'9£6'9% 000'258'LS 000 L9v$ 000'8¥+'2$ 000°006% 03 000'ISLELS ey
000'/2% 000'26% 000'L.28 000°L28 000’123 000’818 000'90Z$ 000°68% 000'8:% 000'85$ 000'2eS 000'ZES 0002298 [ergsnpu|
04 000'v6$ 03 000"9¥$ 000'grs 000'1L9% 000’5814 000'¢2LS 000'Frs 000'Z8% 000'0ES 000'5T8 000'9LLS 30WO
EDNUsAsy IEQUIPISAILON
08 03 o 0s 000°'FPZ LLS DOO'GLE'FSS  000'8BE'ZES  000'9BL'STS  000'00L0FS 00050205  DOO'GRI'GS o00'ses oLy 91ZS SINUDAIY [RBUAPISIY [eI0L
0% 03 08 [i3 0 000'S0ES 00005923  000GZ9LS 000225+  O0000ZLS 0s 0% 000°'£28'9% 1BAUEpsaY uBWaoRIdey/BubsIKa
0s 0% 0% 0% 000'PPE Li§ D00'PIELSS  000'SPLVES  DOD'LES'CHYE  OOO'ELL'EES  0OOSES'SLS  000'SGZES 000'96$ 000'9P9'6025% lequapisay map
SaNUoASY (ERUePIaY
221202 12-020Z 0Z-610Z 618102 81-2102 219102 315102 SLPLOZ i€z £L-ZH ZLL0Z H-0LOZ 0L 221202
o3 LL-0LDZ

INUBAIY XB] |E]28dE 04D PApPUALIWIOIDN

1 uondo

14vyd

(1] sanuaAay xe1 049 perewysy
MAASY 0LOZ dID YHOS
Z-a9geL



APPENDIX C:

Option 2 CIP Tables




17 1) O ANRGM o D YU SO0

LIGZZir S AQ pesedely

-2
"aoueleq puny afold 410 funsxe susseudey [g)
'S1S02 UORENSIRUDE 047 sapniou| [z
'S1800 J00loug 41D 0) ASUaBuguos d17) woy parol wajl 1500 peasaiday [|]
WZTdn e
+Z1'959% adueteg pund Sujpug
000'006°cZ$ BOUBMOY BAIBSEX ASUabunuos
HUE&EEOQ
YIV'BSS'PIS  ¥TIORIFIS  PELEPIGIS  PIIZISGIS YIHO0F'6LS  pTivR0'eS  (1B9'Zse6zs)  (BStErbEes)  (PSSTLO0IS) (roes05%6%)  Zocess 96T LZ0FS PTHB99'%2$ AousbupuoD aioseq esuejeg pung Bujpug
YCI'9BSPES  PELBYE6LS  PEL2OGGLS  FZIOOVGIS  FZIPPOES (18g'log'6es) (SGeTrrres) (FSO7L0GIT)  (Po600568) 20C'69% 96Z°LZ0VS 9/0'€86'SS 9I0'€BE'ES [£] eauejeg pundy GujuujBag
0008ZLS QU0LED'SS 000'.8$ 0002818 000'95€'0LS  SOLLIBBES QI FIGPS 0L zr'els)  (0OL50598)  (3CTEi56%) (FEB L5698 DZZRe MOl USED (enuuy joN
000'051$ 000'054$ 000'05 18 000041 000'061$ 000'0518 0000518 000'05 18 000'05+8 000°051$ 000'051% 000'5.% 000'5ZL'LS [] vonensiiwpy Q23 - siso) el |euonippy
567 00
[ 114 0% ot [ 562'92p°08 rIT66'gES Z02'926'09% 00L'CBE I¥S L90TEL'6ZS  PEE'SZE'TES  96'106'98 SPE'FCE'PEIS Stunyipuadxs oL
08 0% 03 03 o3 0% as 08 000’918 00091 1% [RETR CO0SL IS 000 ParE wois Buoy any
0] 0s 03 0$ 0% 0% 03 0ST'ST98L$ 000'206'2$ 0SZ'P56' v 05'¥SE'TS 000°61$ 000°000'5E8 uswabeury 1eugey
0% o$ 0 03 0% 03§ 000'008'0Z$ 0% 0% 03 0% 0§ 000'008'0Z% [1] 53500 uongLaWERY J31eM [BUCHIPPY
08 0$ 0s o] 0% 0% 08 SET'ETI 9IS 000°002'S$ 0% 0§ 08.° 125 SLO'SKS'TTS uoHEILBWENY Jae
0% 08 03 03 0% $6Z°9Th'9% ¥ZTEEE VLS LITL8T5T 00£'09C 228 108'LZEPTS  PEY'SSE0LS OBL'GLL'9S BZB'STLGLLS Jsuel)uoneodsuR |
waafosg
samypuadxgz
000728 000'281°5% 000°282% 006'ZLES 000°305'C1S  000'88P'SKS DO0'PZEGES GO0'RE° I 000'gZ9°56% S6L°608°0Z¢  000'815'6S 96°150'2$ 166'YEB°91ZS  sBNUaAY (@01
0% 08 0 08 s 0% o8 o s 03 os o8 o (1091 "spuog Aay) senUAAaY SNOBUENBOSIY
662 'SEES 000'005% 000°'005% $64'9ZE'LS 590} uonebuiy nNso
§65'49€'€S ¥65'L98'ES SIS [eiopad
865'/01'ES 865°201°58 Spaano.d ueo
s JusWwdou| xe|
SBNUSASY 130
000°728 000'281°68 0002628 U00'ZLES 000'°0S0LS  Q0O'98Y'SYS 000 PES 6ES 000°869'2¥S 000'829'588 D00'L/6'6LS  000'QLO'ES 000'98 000'EE0'60ZS $864 JuawdoaAaq
SaNlUBAGY pageaipag
$334 INIWHOTIAIA 032 AS QIANNS SLOITONL &1 ¥
TT 1202
724202 1Z-0202 0Z6102 §1-810Z 21 L2 213107 91-910Z S0 FLIELOZ £HZH0E [45187:°4 L-0ioz o) (10102 way|
1590
%0'p3

WINLIXER JO %, X2 4D PEPUBUIWOIaY

ZROLLA0

14v¥d

TTN20Z - 1HOLOZ (dID) WYHOOYd LNSWAAOHJN! TYLIAYD 0 AUYWANS 10T

MBpASY dID 0KOZ VHOS
=D #qel



fape}

o AITXE) D0,

HOGZL/E S AQ pasOdeid

uBWwRNAbE) WAWILIL 34} A0GE BUISIOL SIGERIDKE JO) JUNCOSID OU SBUINSSY [z

665'9%
925'64%
QRS
168'6%
115628
%09

(wooy Jad) @104

(aoe 120) pejay

(eu0E J8d) etnsnpu| g soyQ)
{np 1ad) [erUBpISTY Bunsixy
(np Jad) |eNuepisay men

1107 ATENUEl posod0id

MOIBq UMOYS Sajes XEL [E[0dS DLISIO SBIHIE S KIUMLILIOD BPIMBSEE Yy BUMoIc) oy Sewnssy [L]

000'CE0'60Z%  000'LL0'60Z8

000't28'c0Z$

000°285°C0Z8

DOO'SIZ'E0Z$  GOU'69L'ZELS  DOG'LBZUIPLS  OODISTIOLS  000'669'79S 000°L20'6Z  000'¥60°6S 00092 [z] senusasy xel 12 sapeihwng
000°ZZ$ 000'L8L'S% 000'2£28 o00'zZIES 000'905°018 000'88Y'SYS  000'PZE'ECE 000'BSITYS 000'ST9'SES 000'226'6LS  000'8LO°6S 000943 000°£0'602$ {2] sanuaacy xeL Q49 IV 18101
000°2Z$ 000'281'5% 000°2£2$ o00°zLES 000°GEE")VS 000'6s1'c$ 000'sSP'e 000°818'5$ 000'9rP'Z$ 000'950°CS Q00'err LS 000'9tS 000°SPSZTES SANUSIASY [ERUSPISIIION |BI0L
0% 0G05E9 2 [ [ [ 0008618 000EZF TS [CTOEE 000596 13 000200 1§ 0006558 03 D00'9Z'518 1BIoH
0% 000'DEY 28 000'022% 0062628 000'¥82' LS 000'gLL LS 000'/89'6$ COD'0LS 1§ 000'L5e8 000'966'18 000'vEL$ 0§ 000'GL9'GLS Etey
000'228 000'Z+3 O 21E 000218 000'218 000'GLS 000'85L S 000'€5$ 000'7% 000'L¥$ 000'LES 000'92% 000'615$ lewgsnpuy
0% 000°248 0% 000'85% 000'8es 000'05% 000°L518 000'00L$ 000'9es 000'16$ 000'vTS 000'02$ 000'586% e
SINUBAIY FEU2PISAUUON
03 o 0$ 1 000'291'6$ 00U'SZETVS  O0Q'GBY'DES  0OD'OYRSTS 000TIITCS  000°LSB'OLY 000'045°28 00005 000°88Y'9L1S SINUIAIY [ERUGP|SIY [RyaL
08 0% % [ o 000 6vZS 00009LZ8  D00GEE LS  OOOSFZ1$ 000296 3s 08 000'955'58 fequapsey Juawaoe|dax/Bugsig
113 0% [0:3 03 000°451'6$ 000'080°ZP  000'GZE'GZS  DOC'SLGGES  OQO0EE'LES  000'W6ZOLS  000'0LE'S 000'0e8 O0K'ZZ6'04L8 [BRUSDISaY MON
SONUBAGY [EQUBPISEY
21202 1Z-0202 026102 61-8L0T gl-1L0z JIEIT v 5102 §h-pl0Z vi-gH0Z o ZH 0T L0L0Z ®0L 721202
O} bi-0L0Z
[1] senuaray xe) g4o perewsy
anuaARY XEL (ef3ads Q4D pop uosey MajABY 0L0¢ D YHOJ
Z uopdo z-DaqeL

14vda



APPENDIX D:

Infrastructure Cost Burden Analysis

@



APPENDIX D: INFRASTRUCTURE COST BURDEN ANALYSIS

As part of the FORA CIP review, EPS examined the infrastructure cost burdens for a few
prototype development projects that might be typical of new development within the FORA
boundaries. As described below, this analysis examined the infrastructure cost burden for the
following prototype projects:

» Single-family development—Marina Dunes.
» Retail development—Marina Dunes.
s Hotel development—Marina Dunes.

The finished value of a development project (i.e., the price of a home) reflects multiple
components, including {and acquisition, vertical construction, infrastructure, site development,
soft costs, sales commission, and builder profit. All cost components are necessary but must he
within a reasonable range for a project to feasibly develop. This analysis evaluates development
viability by applying two measures of development feasibility—the infrastructure cost burden
indicator and the residual land value indicator.

These evaluation metrics are used as performance indicators to evaluate the potential financial
feasibility of a development project. Because these financial feasibility tools are based on
several reasonable assumptions regarding infrastructure costs and market pricing for housing,
they are not intended to provide an absolute yes or no answer regarding a project’s likely
financial feasibility. Rather, the indicators provide guidance to property owners, land use
regulators, and public service providers about the likelihood that a project can be successfully
implemented, given the cost structure of that project, including the backbone infrastructure
requirements and other public facilities identified for the development project.

Infrastructure Cost Burden Feasibility Indicator

In general, new development can support a certain level of infrastructure, the cost of which is
ultimately integrated into the home price. EPS’s infrastructure cost burden feasibility test, based
on pro forma experience, is used as a performance indicator. This test measures the total cost
of backbone infrastructure and pubilic facility improvements as a percentage of the final sales
price of a property (e.g., residential unit or nonresidential buiiding).1 The total infrastructure
cost burden consists of all backbone infrastructure and public facllity costs (e.g., developer
funding plus any non-overlapping bond debt related to special taxes and assessments for
infrastructure) plus all applicable development fees (e.g., development impact fees or school
mitigation fees).

Typically, these total infrastructure costs comprise up to a maximum of 15 to 20 percent of a
home’s final total sales price. Based on pro forma analyses of dozens of Specific Plans in

1 subdivision frontage costs and in-tract subdivision development costs are included in the site
development component and not counted as backbone infrastructure costs.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. D-1 P:\20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence\20510 M5 Draft (1 . .t



Infrastructure Cost Burden Analvsis
Appendix D January 14, »1111

California over the past 2 decades, the infrastructure cost burden feasibility performance test
yields the following general conclusions:

= Burdens below 15 percent are generally considered financially feasible.

* Burdens between 15 and 20 percent may be feasibie depending on the specific circumstan es
of the project,

» Burdens above 20 percent suggest that a project may not be financially feasible unless other
components of the project pro forma are particularly advantageous to the developer, thus
allowing the project to bear unusually high infrastructure costs.

It is important to note that the infrastructure cost burden feasibility indicator does not account
for extraordinary project circumstances or conditions, such as these:

e Unigque on-site development costs.

e Infrastructure phasing requirements.

» Development absorpticn rates.

 Demolition or toxic contamination remediation.

= Changing market conditions.

» Litigation or other extraordinary project entitlement/development delays.

If the infrastructure cost burden analysis indicates that a project may be chaitenged, additional
detailed analysis is warranted. One approach to a more comprehensive evaluation of
development feasibility is the residual land value analysis, described in further detail below.

Residual Land Value

The residual land value indicator offers a more detailed appraisal of the entire cost structure of a
development project and takes into account specific project circumstances, such as those cited
above.

The price that a developer will pay for land generally relies on a land valuation method called a
land residual analysis. The formuia simply takes the finished market value of a home and
subtracts all costs incurred to achieve that finished value to derive the residual value of the land.
The value of land is subject to changes in market conditions that influence both the revenue and
cost factors that are used to derive residual land values. If revenues from the sales of finishec!
homes increase with no changes in costs, the residual land value would increase. Conversely, f
development and other costs increase and there is no increase in expected finished home sale
revenues, the residual land value would decrease.

The static residual land value calculations are derived using the following major assumptions:

s Finished market values (e.g., final home sales prices).
+ Finished lot development costs.

= Vertical development costs (e.g., home construction).
« Development impact fees.

» Backbone infrastructure costs not funded through fees.

Econornic & Planning Systems, Inc. D-2 P:\20000120510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondsnce\20510 M5 Draft CiF



Infrastructure Cost Burden Anaiysis
Appendix D January 14, 2011

The residual fand value remaining after taking account of the above factors must fund a variety
of costs beyond the price of land acquisition. Generally, the residual {and value must be
sufficient to fund the following development and entitlement costs:

« Land Acquisition,

» Entitlement Costs.

* Environmental Impact Report.
* Planning Documents.

» Infrastructure Master Plan.

» Envircnmental Mitigation.

= Developer Qverhead,

e Land Developer Profit.

Generally, a project must achieve a minimum residual land value ranging from 10 to 15 percent
of the finished home value to be considered financially feasible and fund the iterns cited above
Significant departure from the typical costs observed for development and entitlement would
Create variation in the feasible residual land value range and merit additional analysis of project
viability.

Major Analysis Assumptions

For each development prototype analyzed, the feasibility analysis is based on a static
development project pro forma. Residential density, standard unit square feet, and
nonresidential building square footage were based on data provided for each prototype project.
Major analysis assumptions are discussed briefly below:

» Estimated finished home price. The assumed sales price per unit is based on discussions
with area project developers and is intended to represent a home sales price that does not
reflect the bottom of the market, but rather normalized market conditions with typical
relations between household income and home saies prices. The assumed amount of
$200 per building square foot results in a $400,000 value for the residential prototype.

* Vertical construction costs. Estimates of vertical constructions came from the project
developer of the Marina Dunes project. The estimates reflect the type of product the builders
would construct for the given prototype project.

« Public agency fees. Public agency fee estimates were compiled by review of existing
agency fee programs and conversations with staff. In the case of the Marina Dunes project,
the fee estimates reflect conditions on development impact fees included in the project’s
development agreement.

¢ Other infrastructure burdens. Estimates for other off-site infrastructure costs for the
Marina Dunes project are based on information from the master developer. These costs
include off-site traffic signals, mass grading for backbone infrastructure, sewer utilities,
storm drain systems, median improvements, and street frontage landscaping.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. D-3 P\2G0GG\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence\20510 M5 Draft Cis' -+ fay



Infrastructure Cost Burden Anaivsis
Appendix D January 14, 20111

Feasibility Analysis Results and Conclusions

This section summarizes the feasibility analysis results for the development prototypes. As
discussed above, the infrastructure cost burden indicator was evaluated for each project
prototype while the residual land value analysis was also completed for the single-family
development prototypes. The resuits of the feasibility analyses yield the following conclusions:

+ Infrastructure cost burdens along with other cost factors render planned residential
development projects infeasible.

» The CFD Special Tax alone represents approximately 10 percent of the overall infrastructure
cost burden of a typical new single-family unit.

» FORA projects do not have other extraordinary circumstances (e.g., atypically low land costs
or low lot development costs) that would enable them to carry higher infrastructure cost
burdens. In fact, the opposite might be concluded given many of the obstacles encountered
by developers and builders with Fort Ord.

= Infrastructure cost burdens on nonresidential projects do not represent the same proporticn
of total project value as compared to residential projects. However, existing burdens are it
the higher end of the range and such nonresidential projects would benefit from CFD Special
Tax reductions.

The detailed results for each development prototype are discussed in further detail below.

Single-Family Prototypes

Table 5 summarizes the feasibility results for the single-family project prototype.

Infrastructure Cost Burden

As discussed above, the target range for the infrastructure cost burden is 15 to 20 percent of
finished home sales value. As indicated in Tabte D-1, the infrastructure cost burden for the
Marina Dunes project is estimated to be well beyond the targeted 15- to 20-percent
infrastructure burden range, at approximately 32 percent of the estimated finished home salex
price.

Residual Land Value Indicator

The residual land value indicator extends the feasibility analysis to take into account additiona:
cost items, including the cost of unit construction, in-tract subdivision Infrastructure,? soft costs,

2 In-tract infrastructure costs reflect site improvement costs serving the entire development project
that are not considered backbone infrastructure and are therefore not included in any existing fee
programs. In-tract subdivision infrastructure costs are estimated based on costs provided for the
development prototype and were allocated on a per-unit basis for purposes of the residual land value
analysis.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. D-4 P:\20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Cortespondence\20510 M5 Diaft (11 . jac



Infrastructure Cost Burden Analysis
Appendix D January 14, 2011

and builder profit. The residual land value must be sufficient to fund several development and
entitlement costs beyond land acquisition. The minimum target range for the residual land va'ue
is approximately 10 to 15 percent of the finished home sales value.

The residual land value indicator shows the project results fali outside the target residual land
value range, with a negative residual land value. In addition to the infrastructure burdens
discussed above, vertical construction costs and in-tract subdivision costs contribute to the low
and negative residual land value results.

Retail Development Prototype and Infrastructure Cost Burden

Table D-2 summarizes the feasibility results for the retail project prototype. Based on assumead
market lease rates and assumptions regarding typical operating expenses, Table D-2 shows the
estimated infrastructure cost burden as a percentage of assumed retail project value. As shown,
infrastructure cost burden for the prototype retail project is estimated to be at the upper end of
the range of the targeted 15- to 20-percent infrastructure burden range,

Hotel Development Prototype and Infrastructure Cost Burden

Table D-3 summarizes the feasibility results for the hotel project prototype. Assumed hotel
revenue and operating cost assumptions derive an estimated capitalized value of approximately
$16.0 million for the prototype hotel project. The estimated infrastructure burden of
approximately $2.6 million (excluding any project-specific backbone infrastructure allocation)
results in a burden of approximately 16 percent.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. D-5 P:\20000\20510 FORA CIP Review\EPS Correspondence\20510 M5 Draft €1 . o



Table D1 D RA F T

FORA CIP 2010 Review
Housing Feasibility Analysis
Residual Land Value Calculation for Single-Family Residentiai

Dunes on Monterey Bay
Medium Density Res.

Single % of Selling
Item Family Price
Assumed Home Price [1] $400,000 100%
Infrastructure Burden
City/County, Plan Area, & School Fees [2] $82,000 21%
Other Backbone Infrastructure Costs [3] $44,000 11%
Subtotal infrastructure Burden $126,000 32%
(Target 15%-20% Home Sales Price)
Unit Development
Cost of Unit Construction $148,000 37%
in-tract Subdivision Infrastructure [4] $53,000 13%
Soft Cost (20% of In-tract + Unit Const. Cost) [5] $40,200 10%
Builder Profit (10% of Sale Price) $40,000 10%
Subtotal Unit Development Cost $281,200 70%
TOTAL COST OF UNIT [6] $407,200 102%
Residual Land Value (Paper Lot) [7] {$7,200) -2%
Target Residual Land Value Range (10%-15% of Home Sales Price)
10% of Home Sales Price $40,000 10%
15% of Home Sales Price $60,000 15%
"sfr_f"

Source: Various Home Builders and EPS.

[1] Assumed home prices are based on estimated existing home sales prices in the region.

[2] Includes fees due and payable at improvement plan or final map or building permit. Plan
area fees include only shared infrastructure cost not included in lot costs or city/county fee
programs.

(3] Includes offsite infrastructure requirements not covered by existing fee programs.

[4] Estimated cost does not include fees that are payable at improvement plan, final map, or
building permit. Costs include internal collector roadways, lot development costs, utility
extensions, and stub outs to each lot and a share of common subdivision related
infrastructure costs {e.g., storm drainage improvements).

[5] Soft costs include corporate overhead, home warranty costs, financing costs, selling costs,
and other miscellaneous items.

[6] Does not include project costs to comply with affordable housing requirements.

[7] Paper lot value in this analysis assumes that backbone & intract infrastructure costs are
passed forward to the buyer of the lots. Residual land value typically funds land acquisition,
entitlement costs, environmental impact report, planning documents, infrastructure master
plan, environmental mitigation, developer overhead, and land developer profit.

Prepared by ERPS 12/10/2010 D-6 - FORA C1P 20516 1 e s




Prepared by EPS 12/10/2010

DRAFT

Table D-2 Retail -

FORA CIP 2010 Review Marina

Retail Development Infrastructure Cost Burden Analysis Dunes

Item Assumption Total

DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM ASSUMPTIONS

Net Leasable Area {Sq. Ft.) 80,000

REVENUE

Gross Lease Revenue (Weighted Average) [1] $19.50 /NLA sq. ft./year $1,560,000
(less) Vacancy 5.0% ($78,000)
{less) Leasing Commissions 3.0% & years' rent ($222,300)
{less) Replacement/Reserve 5.0% ($78,000)
Subtotal, Annual Net Operating Income $1,181,700

Capitalized Value 7.10% cap rate

$16,643,662

INFRASTRUCTURE BURDEN
City/County/Plan Area/School Fees $3,368,748
Other Backbone Infrastructure Costs 30
Total Backbone Infrastructure Cost Burden $3,368,748
Cost Burden as a Percentage of Value 20.2%
“rt_burden”

Source: City of Marina and EPS.

[1] Lease rates assumed to be a weighted average between grocery/pharmacy anchor and

separate specialty in-line retail in a single retail center.

FORA CIP R

D-7



DRAFT

Table D-3
FORA CIP 2010 Review Hotel-Marina
Hotel Development Infrastructure Burden Analysis Dunes
item Assumption Total
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM ASSUMPTIONS
Number of Rooms 100
Average Room Rate $150 100
Square Footage Per Room 375 37,500
Efficiency Ratio 70%
Gross Building Sq. Ft. 53,571
Occupancy Rate 70%
REVENUE ASSUMPTIONS
Gross Room Revenue $3,832,500
Other Operating Revenue [1] 10% $383.250
Total Revenue $4,215,750
(less) Department Expenses [2] 38% % of Total Rev $1,601,985
(less) Overhead Expenses [3] 18% % of Total Rev $758,835
(less) Management Fee 5% % of Total Rev $210,788
(less) Fixed Expenses [4] 6% % of Total Rev $252 945
Subtotal Expenses $2,613,765
Annual Net Operating Income After Ground Rent $1,601,985
Capitalized Value 10.00% cap rate $16,019,850
INFRASTRUCTURE BURDEN
City/County/Plan Area/School Fees $2,600.000
Other Backbone Infrastructure Costs $0
Total Backbone Infrastructure Cost Burden $2,600,000
Cost Burden as a Percentage of Value 16.2%

Sources: RS Means, CB Richard Ellis, Korpacz Real Estate Investors, and EPS.

[1] Includes F & B, telecommunications, and other.

"hatel"

[2] Department Expenses include expenses directly attributable to hotel rooms, food & beverage,

telecommunications, and other operational departments

[3] Overhead Expenses include administrative/general expenses, franchise fee,

marketing, property maintenance, and utilities.

[4] Fixed Expenses include properly taxes, insurance, equipment leasefother, and reserve/replacement.

Prepared by EPS 12/10/2010
D-8

F20000020510 FORA GIF ReviesibMode s 20510 ns s




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT
__ NEW BUSINESS _
Subiect: Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement —
Ject: Report On Special Requests By Outside Agencies

Meeting Date: January 14, 2011
Agenda Number: 7a INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION(S):

Receive a Fort Ord Reuse Authority ("FORA”) Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement
("ESCA”) Remediation Program (“RP") outside agency special requests report.

BACKGROUND:

in Spring 2005, the U.S. Army (“Army") and FORA entered into negotiations to execute an
Army-funded Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement (‘ESCA”") leading to the transfer
of 3,340 acres of former Fort Ord prior to regulatory environmental sign-off. In early 2007, the
Army awarded FORA approximately $98 million to perform munitions cleanup on the ESCA
parcels. FORA also entered into an Administrative Order on Consent ("AOC”") with U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA"} and California Department of Toxic Substance
Control ("DTSC"), defining conditions under which FORA undertakes responsibility for the Army
remediation of the ESCA parcels.

In order to complete the AOC defined work; FORA entered into a Remediation Services
Agreement (“RSA”) with LFR Inc. (now “ARCADIS") to provide Munitions and Explosives of
Concern (“MEC") remediation services and executed a Cost-Cap insurance policy for this
remediation work through American International Insurance Group (now “CHARTIS"). The
ESCA RP has been underway for approximately four years.

Within the last year, FORA has been receiving special requests from multiple agencies to
prepare for construction or construct improvements on ESCA properties owned by FORA.
FORA staff, FORA Counsel and ARCADIS have been meeting with these agencies to
determine the scope and timing of these projects and to provide these agencies with the ESCA
background and the ESCA property access limitations as outlined in the existing FOSET,
Army/FORA deeds, Land Use Covenants, AOC, ESCA Grant documents, FORA/ARCADIS
RSA and the Jurisdictions' Ordnance Ordinance.

DISCUSSION:

Discussions with FORA Counsel, the Agencies’ Counsels and ARCADIS Counsel, support by FORA,
the Regulatory Agencies and ARCADIS is not funded by the ESCA Grant and must be reimbursed
by the agencies. The Agencies will need to receive permission from ARCADIS and CHARTIS to
access the proposed sites so that the ESCA insurance policies are not jeopardized. The agencies
wilt also be required to have an existing easement from the Army and a Right of Entry from FORA to
access the site. Based on the discussions with these agencies FORA has been asked to provide
assistance to the following Agencies for the project listed below:

Monterey Salinas Transit — Monterey Salinas Transit (MST) would like to construct a storm
drain system on FORA owned ESCA property located upstream from their proposed Transit
Center Project to prevent the Transit Center Site from flooding. FORA and ARCADIS have
provided MST with draft reimbursement agreements. MST is currently working with the future
owner, CSUMB, to negotiate an easement for this storm drain.



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District — Monterey Peninsula Water Management
District has an existing Aquifer Storage Recharge Well project that was begun under an
easement from the US Army on property currently within the ESCA and owned by FORA that is
located at the southeast corner of General Jim Moore Boulevard and Eucalyptus Road.
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District is in the process of working with the City of
Seaside to expand this site and add improvements.

California American Water - California American Water is preparing to construct a Regional
Water system and has selected the location for their Terminal Reservoir site on ESCA property
currently owned by FORA but siated to transfer to the City of Seaside. California American
Water is in the process of working with the City of Seaside to finalize the size and location of the
Terminal Reservoir Site.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller

There should be no cost to FORA or the ESCA because the costs for the FORA ESCA Program
Manager, FORA Counsel, FORA and the Regulatory Agencies staff time, as required, will be
reimbursed to FORA by the appropriate agency.

COORDINATION:

Administrative Committee; Executive Committee; FORA Authority Counsel; ARCADIS;
Monterey Salinas Transit; Monterey Peninsula Water Management District; California American
Water; EPA; and DTSC.

Prepared %M

Stan Cook Wichael/A. Houlemard/ Jr.

N

FORA Board Maeting
January 14, 2011
ltem 7a ~ Page 2




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOA

REPORT

NEW BUSINESS =
Subject: UC MBEST Visioning Exercise Reimbursement Agreement
Meeting Date: January 14, 2010
Agenda Number: 7b ACTION
RECOMMENDATION(S):

Authorize additional spending and the execution of a Reimbursement Agreement with the
University of California Monterey Bay Education, Science, and Technology Center ("uc
MBEST") to jointly fund a consultant contract to conduct a visioning exercise for UC property
on former Fort Ord, as generally described in Attachment A.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

At the March 12, 2010 FORA Board meeting, UC Santa Cruz (“UCSC”) Chancellor George
Blumenthal spoke about the university’s re-examination of their former Fort Ord parcels reuse
plans. UCSC intends to maintain the UC MBEST Center on approximately 70 of its 500
development acres. However, UCSC is rethinking its plans for the peripheral 430 acres. Over
the past nine months, several stakeholder working group meetings have taken place. The
direction from these meetings has been for UCSC to initiate a visioning exercise in March
2011.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller

At the most recent stakeholders meeting, FORA representatives and UC representatives
agreed to present a proposal to jointly fund the costs of a consultant contract 40/60 to the
respective decision making bodies. FORA would pay 40% of the consultant costs up to
$50,000, while UC would pay 60% of the consultant costs. This expenditure was not included
in the approved FY 10-11 budget. If authorized today, this budget adjustment will be reported
with the mid-year budget update.

COORDINATION:

Authority Counsel, UC MBEST visioning working group, Administrative and Executive
Committees.

Prepared by

Reviewed byD . S‘bj.)fn 5&49&6(

Steve End ey




ATTACHMENT A
Item 7b
FORA Board Meeting, January 14, 2011

REIMBURSEMENT
AGREEMENT

CONCERNING UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA MONTEREY BAY EDUCATION, SCIENCE,
AND TECHNOLOGY CENTER (“UC MBEST”) VISIONING CONSULTANT SERVICES

By and Between

THE FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
and

THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

THIS REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT CONCERNING UC MBEST VISIONING CONSULTAN |
SERVICES, dated , 2011 (“Agreement”™), by and between the FORT ORD REUSE
AUTHORITY (“FORA”), a California public agency, and THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY Ol
CALIFORNIA (*“UC”), a California public corporation, (collectively, the “Parties™).

1. Recitals

1.1 In early 2010, UC announced that it was re-examining reuse plans for its former Fort Ord
parcels. UC also shared its intentions to maintain the UC MBEST Center on approximately 70 of 500
development acres and re-evaluate its plans for the remaining 430 development acres; and

1.2 FORA and other stakeholders from the region have held several subsequent meetings with
UC to discuss UC’s re-evaluation of its development plans; and

1.3  The meeting attendees recommended that FORA and UC jointly fund a consultant contract
to complete a visioning exercise (described below under 2.1).

1.4  The purpose of this Agreement is to describe the visioning exercise and FORA’s financial
commitment,

II. TERMS AND CONDITIONS
In consideration for the mutual promises contained herein the parties agree as follows:

2.1 Deliverable. UC will conduct a Request for Proposals (“RFP™) process in accordance
with UC policy to select and hire a consultant to complete the visioning exercise. UC will enter into a
contract (the “Visioning Contract”) with the consultant UC selects. The selection of the consultant and
determination of the terms and conditions of the Visioning Contract will be made by UC in its sole
discretion, provided that the scope of work in the Visioning Contract will be geared toward achieving the
anticipated outcomes listed below. The anticipated schedule is that UC will select and hire the consultant
before April 2011. The parties anticipate that the consultant would begin work immediately and complete
its work within 120 days. The parties anticipate that the visioning exercise will produce the foliowing

1



outcomes:

1. A long term vision for future use of UC’s lands on the former Fort Ord area, based on:
a. the existing Fort Ord Base Reuse Plan and other existing planning documents
b. amarket analysis, and
¢. conversations with Monterey Bay region stakeholders and community leaders.

2. The visioning exercise will:
a. consider alternative land uses, such as education, health care, agriculture, tourism.
defense, environmental industries, green business, marine resources
b. identify limitations, strengths and opportunities to achieve development goals identificd in
the visioning process; and
c. identify natural and financial resource implications.

3. Recommendations specific to UC MBEST properties will include:

a. Principles for determining land uses. Specifically, how can MBEST properties best he
linked to the regional vision identified in the visioning process? How can we take
advantage of opportunities? Does the 1997 Base Reuse Plan vision for UC MBEST need
adjustment?

b. How can money and public support be obtained to implement UC MBEST development?

Protocol for public involvement for selling peripheral UC MBEST properties.
d. Evaluate general plans and adjacent planning entitlements for compatibility with the ['¢
MBEST vision statement.

o

4. Discussion/Recommendations for partnering/collaborations

2.2 Reimburseable Amount, UC will make payments due under the Visioning Contract and
invoiced to UC by the consultant directly to the consultant as provided in the Visioning Contract. UC will
submit to FORA a copy of each invoice that UC receives from the consultant as work is completed
pursuant to the visioning contract. FORA agrees to pay to UC forty percent (40%) of the total of
consultant fees and other expenses shown on each consultant invoice within thirty days of FORA’s recuipt
of the subject invoice; provided, however that FORAs total aggregate obligation to reimburse UC for the
consultant’s fees and other expenses pursuant to the Visioning Contract shall not exceed Fifty Thousand
Dollars ($50,000) total.

2.3 Hold Harmless. UC agrees to indemnify, defend and hold FORA harmless from any
claims arising out of the Visioning Contract work (except any claim arising out of FORA’s failure to
make payments as provided in this Agreement), but only in proportion to and to the extend such claims
are caused by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of UC.

III. Term and Termination.

3.1 Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall terminate in one year or when all of the terms
and conditions have been met or upon mutual agreement between the parties or their assignees.

3.2 Termination for Breach. If a party commits a material breach, the non-breaching party
may terminate this Agreement by giving the party in breach writien notice thereof and thirty (30) days in
which to cure the breach. If the breach is not cured within thirty (30) days, this Agreement will be
terminated upon the breaching party being given notice thereof by the non-breaching party. If the breach

2



is curable, but not within 30 days, the non breaching party may not terminate the Agreement so long as
the breaching party diligently works to cure the breach. If the breach is incurable within thirty (30) days.
the breaching party shall not be considered to be in default so long as it diligently and in good faith
continues to cure the breach in a reasonably diligent manner thereafter up to 90 days after the breach.

1V. General Terms.

4.1 Further Actions. Each of the parties agrees to execute and deliver to the other such
documents and instruments, and to take such actions, as may reasonably be required to give effect to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4.2 Modification. This Agreement is not subject to amendment or modification except by .
writing signed by the parties hereto.

4.3.  Assignment. Neither party may assign all or portions of its rights and obligations undcr
this Agreement without prior written approval from the other party. Any agents for the parties shall nol
unreasonably withhold approval of an assignment.

5. Interpretation. This Agreement has been negotiated by and between representatives of
the parties hereto and their staffs, all persons knowledgeable in the subject matter of this Agreement.
which was then reviewed by the respective legal counsel of each party. Accordingly, any rule of law
(including Civil Code §1654) or legal decision that would require interpretation of any ambiguities in this
Agreement against the party that has drafted it is not applicable and is waived. The provisions of this
Agreement shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to affect the purpose of the parties and this
Agreement.

6. Attorney’s Fees. In the event of any controversy, claim or dispute relating to this
Agreement, or the breach thereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the losing parts
reasonable expenses, attorney’s fees and costs. Monterey County will be the venue for hearing any
disputes.

7. Notice and Correspondence. Any notice required to be given to any party shall be in
writing and deemed given if personally delivered upon the other party or deposited in the United States
mail, and sent certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed to the other party at
the address set forth below or sent via facsimile transmission during normal business hours to the party o
which notice is given at the telephone number listed for fax transmission.

ucC: FORA:
Managing Director, UC MBEST Center/ Executive Officer
Asst. Director, UCSC Real Estate Office Fort Ord Reuse Authority
1156 High St. 100 12™ St., Building 2880
Santa Cruz, CA 95064 Marina, California 93933
Telephone: (831) 883-3672 Telephone: (831) 883-3672
Facsimile: (831) 883-3675 Facsimile: (831) 883-3675
8. Areas of Non-Responsibility, Neither party shall be liable for commitments made to «

third party by the other party which are:

a. contrary to this Agreement or



b. not specifically included within the obligations of the parties hereto.

Each party shall defend, indemnify and hold the other harmless for any claims, costs, damages or other
liability arising from such commitments, but only in proportion to and to the extent such claims, costs.
damages or other liability are caused by or result from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the
indemnifying party.

9. No Third Party Rights. This Agreement shall not create any benefits or rights in third
parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, FORA, and UC, by their duly authorized representatives, have
executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

By: As to form:
Michael A. Houlemard, Jr., Executive Officer Gerald D. Bowden

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA SANTA CRUZ

By:
Christina Valentino, Associate Vice Chancellor,
Business and Administrative Services




Attachment A
To ltem 7b
FORA Board Meeting, January 14, 2010

Not available at the time of printing Board packet.
The attachment will be sent under separate cover by email.



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT

- EXECUTIVE OFFI
Subject: Administrative Committee Report
Meeting Date: January 14, 2011
Agenda Number: 8a INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive a report from the Administrative Committee.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

A joint Administrative Committee and Capital Improvement Program Committee was
held on January 5, 2011. The minutes will be presented at the Board meeting in
February. The approved minutes for the meetings on December 15, December 1, and
November 17, 2010 meetings arg attached.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller

Staff time for this item is included in the approved FY 10-11 budget.

COORDINATION:

Administrative Committee

Prepared by Appigved by

aylene Alliman




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
100 12" Street, Building 2880
Marina, CA 93933
(831) 883-3672 (TEL) - (831) 883-3675 (FAX) « www.fora.org

MINUTES OF THE
JOINT ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE and CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
COMMITTEE MEETING
Wednesday, December 15, 2010

CALL TO ORDER - Administrative Committee Co-Chair/Executive Officer Michael Houlemard
called the meeting to order at 8:16 a.m. The following people, as indicated by signatures on
the roll sheet, were present;

Nick Nichols, Monterey County Jim Arnold, FORA

Rob Robinson, BRAC Scott Hilk, MCP

lan Gillis, UCP Elizabeth Caraker, City of Monterey
Tim O’Hailoran, City of Seaside Doug Yount, City of Marina
Chuck Lande, Marina Heights Chris Austin, DPFG

Vicki Nakamura, MPC Crisand Giles, BIA

Carl Niizawa, MCWD Ray Corpuz, City of Seaside
Andy Sterbenz, Schaaf & Wheeler Diana Ingersoll, City of Seaside
Pat Ward, Bestor Engineers Graham Bice, UCMBEST

Keith McCoy, UCP Patrick Breen, MCWD
Jonathan Garcia, FORA Todd Muck, TAMC

Steve Endsley, FORA Don Bachman, MST

John Marker, CSUMB Bob Schaffer, MCP

Crissy Maras, FORA Beth Palmer, Monterey Downs
Daniel Dawson, City of Del Rey Oaks David Zendher, EPS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, CORRESPONDENCE — Co-Chair/Executive
Officer Michael Houlemard announced the U.S. Army Veterans Administration clinic project will
begin at the start of the new year and will take approximately 7-8 months to complete. He
reported that the new clinic will be located off of Gigling across from the Burger King. Mr.
Houlemard also announced the 2010 program year graduation of students from the Fort Ord
Superfund Job Training Initiative to be held at the Bayonet & Blackhorse golf club this evening
at 6:00 p.m. Mr. Houlemard noted that he is the keynote speaker for the event.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — Co-Chair Houlemard asked Crisand Giles, who agreed, to lead
the Pledge of Allegiance.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD — none

APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 1, 2010 JOINT MEETING MINUTES — On a motfion made by
Graham Bice and seconded by Nick Nichols, the meeting minutes were approved as
corrected. (Typographical error.)

FORA Joint Administrative/CIP Committee Meating
December 15, 2010
Page 1



6.

OLD BUSINESS
a. General Jim Moore Boulevard — Executive Officer Houlemard introduced FORA Senior

Project Manager Jim Arnold who reported that the FORA Board authorized staff to file the
Notice of Completion for the General Jim Moore Boulevard Phase V and Eucalyptus Road
Phase Il project as soon as the punch list is completed. Mr. Arnold reported that upcoming
work for the next bid document includes signalization and street lighting at Broadway and
General Jim Moore Boulevard and signalization at Hilby and San Pablo. He said the new
bid period would take place during February — March, 2011, and there would be
approximately a 9-month construction period. Mr. Arnold stated that an application for a
2081 permit was submitted to the California Department of Fish and Game (“CDFG”) and
abandoned as a viable option due to the protracted review process.

. Habitat Conservation Plan “HCP” — Senior Planner Jonathan Garcia reported that the

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service ("USFWS") completed its review of all draft HCP sections
except for the Funding section and the Alternatives section. Bob Schaffer of Marina
Community Partners noted that, at the FORA Board meeting on December 10, 2010, Alec
Arrago from Congressman Farr's office offered assistance. FORA Acting Assistant
Executive Officer/Director of Planning & Finance Steve Endsely stated that, while the
federal office (USFWS) is cooperative albeit slow, CDFG is non-responsive. Mr. Houlemard
noted that Assemblyman Monning and Senator Blakeslee are aware of the difficulty. Mr.
Houlemard stated that he and Supervisor Potter had a teleconference scheduled to discuss
dates and times with CDFG. He further noted that while our legislators, Governor
Schwarzenegger’s office, and Senator Boxer's office have all helped, it is difficult to
understand why agencies in the same building are unable to come to consensus. He said
we may have to eventually abandon the base-wide HCP approach if progress cannot be -
made. Steve Endsley stated that USFWS was hosting a “feedback” session today at 1:30
at the Long Marine Laboratory, regarding the HCP process. Co-Chair Doug Yount stated
that Fish and Game is clearly the obstacle and we need to get creative with constant
communication with representatives noting that this is a critical issue. Co-Chair Houlemard
requested an item be placed on the agenda for the January 5, 2011 meeting regarding an
HCP strategy session.

. Economic Development Administration Regional Conference — Executive Officer

Houlemard reported that he, Senior Project Manager Jim Arnold, and Seaside Deputy City
Manager Diana Ingersoll attended the Economic Development Administration (‘EDA”)
Regional Training Conference held in Los Angeles, December 7 — 9, 2010. He reported
that there were approximately 160 attendees this year from Region 9 including participants
from Alaska, Guam, and Arizona. Mr. Houlemard stated that the EDA is moving away from
major capital improvement/infrastructure programs and is making cuts in order to reduce
the deficit. He reported that the federal government is looking at ways to decrease
debt/deficit spending, by reviewing budget decisions and considering the elimination of
departments. The political reality is that EDA may not be in existence next year. Mr.
Houlemard reported that the US Army has taken drastic budget cutting actions by
eliminating travel by 50-60% and purchasing teleconferencing equipment. Ms. Ingersoll
stated that the climate is dismal and the EDA has implemented new processes for obtaining
funding. Mr. Arnold said that former applicants are not able to come up with the matching
funds necessary and therefore there is less competition for grant funding. He noted that he
met the new northern California representative David Martin who is replacing retiring
representative Dianne Church. Mr. Houlemard noted that there could be funding available
for public universities and it could fit in with the UC MBEST visioning process.

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
December 15, 2010
Page 2



d. Capital Improvement Program Review and Draft Report - Mr. Endsley introduced
consultant, David Zehnder, who met previously with the Administrative Committee members
and, as a result of his research, provided an overview of his report. Mr. Zehnder reported
that the overall findings were a result of inquires and discussions and include an interim fix
and long term strategy. Mr. Zehnder reviewed the findings with the Administrative and CI®
Committees noting that their recommendation for immediate action includes: a 21%
reduction in the FORA CFD Fee and freezing the automatic annual adjustment to the FORA
CFD for a fixed period of time (e.g., up to 2 years). He stated that the sunset of FORA
produces critical uncertainty for inter-jurisdictional planning because the process is
unknown. Unknown factors such as what will be the future CIP funding sources and who
will implement CIP projects post June 30, 2014 creates a risk for developers. He stated that
a centralized agency is important and there is concern about how a transition will happen.
Chuck Lande, representing Marina Heights, commented that he had read EPS’s draft report
several times and couldn't understand why EPS’s recommendations were different from
DPFG's recommendations (the financial consultant retained by the Building Industry
Association). He suggested that the Principals at EPS and DPFG conduct a meeting
between now and the January 5™ FORA Administrative Committee meeting to see if they
might identify the reasons for their differing recommendaticns, which, in the end, might
affect the outcome of EPS’s report.

After further discussion among the members of the Committees, Doug Yount made a
motion that consultant David Zendher meet with BIA consultant Chris Austin between now
and the next meeting of the committees on January 5" 2011. The findings from the joint
meeting will be presented to the Commrttees and a workshop will be held at the joint
committee meeting on January 5" prior to presenting a report to the Board on January 14,
2011. Nick Nichols seconded the motion and it passed without objection.

8. NEW BUSINESS - none

There being no further business Co-Chair Houlemard adjourned the meeting at 9:56 a.m.

Minutes prepared by Daylene Alliman, Deputy Clerk

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
December 15, 2010
Page 3



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
100 12" Street, Building 2880
Marina, CA 93933
(831) 883-3672 (TEL) - (831) 883-3675 (FAX) - www.fora.org

MINUTES OF THE @Q

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Wednesday, December 1, 2010

Call to order at 8:15 a.m.
Administrative Committee Co-chair/Executive Officer Michael Houlemard called the meeting to
order at 8:17 a.m. The following people, as indicated by signatures on the roll sheet, were present:

Nick Nichols, Monterey County Diana Ingersoll, City of Seaside
Rob Robinson, BRAC Jim Arnold, FORA

Christi Di lorio, City of Marina Graham Bice, UCMBEST
Theresa Szymanis, City of Marina Tim O’Halloran, City of Seaside
Gage Dayton, UCSC Natural Reserves Kathleen Ventimiglia, CSUMB
Vicki Nakamura, MPC Patrick Breen, MCWD

Carl Niizawa, MCWD Todd Muck, TAMC

Andy Sterbenz, Schaaf & Wheeler Mike Gallant, MST

Keith McCoy, UCP Bob Schaffer, MCP

Jonathan Garcia, FORA Beth Paimer, Monterey Downs
Steve Endsley, FORA Pat Ward, Bestor Engineers

Acknowledgements, Announcements, Correspondence — Co-Chair/Executive Officer Michael
Houlemard announced the recent collaborative meeting of the UC MBEST property consisting of
representatives from the universities including; Chancellor Blumenthal UC Santa Cruz, Tom Vani
UC Santa Cruz, Dr. Bruce Margon UC Santa Cruz, Donna Blitzer UC Santa Cruz, Dianne Harrison
CSUMB and Dr. Garrison Monterey Peninsula College, and other representative stakeholders from
the former Fort Ord jurisdictions continue to meet regarding active use of the site. He said that in
moving ahead with the joint effort, a consultant will be chosen for a facilitation process to begin
sometime in February 2011, Mr. Houlemard announced that a time capsule dedication ceremony
would take place at the next FORA Board meeting on December 10, 2010 and items include a
piece of roofing from Stillwell Hall, sand from the firing range, munition debris, and a spike from the
old railroad, among other things. The dedication ceremony wiil occur at 3:00 p.m. one half-hour
prior to the Board meeting which will be held at its new location: Carpenters Union Hall, 910 2"
Ave, Marina, CA.

Pledge of Allegiance — Chair Houlemard requested Dr. Gage Dayton, who agreed, to lead the
Pledge of Allegiance.

Public Comment Period — none

Approval of November 17, 2010 Joint Meeting Minutes — On a motion made by Graham Bice
and seconded by Nick Nichols, the meeting minutes were approved as presented. Mr. Houlemard
thanked Crissy Maras for her thorough preparation of the minutes. )

Review of the December 10, 2010 FORA Board meeting agenda — Executive Officer
Houlemard reported that under the Consent Agenda for approval were: b.) the General Jim

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
December 1, 2010
Page 1



Moore Boulevard Phase V and Eucalyptus Road Phase Il Authorization to file a Notice of
Completion and that the project was completed within the Board authorized amount. ¢.) the
Multi-Modal Transit Corridor Realignment Memorandum of Understanding (MOA) was fully
executed, and d.) a request to authorize the Executive Officer to execute a second
amendment to the Fort Ord Reuse Authority — University of California Fort Ord Natural
Reserve Funding Agreement. FORA has funded UCFONR habitat management on an annual
basis and the second amendment allows the Habitat Conservation Plan management to move
ahead on the property owned by the University. Mr. Houlemard noted that there were no Old
Business items to report. Under New Business, Mr. Houlemard reported that the Fiscal Year
08-10 Annual Financial Audit Report and the Consistency Determination for the City of Marina
Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan would be presented to the Board. Mr. Houlemard noted items
under the Executive Officers’ report in particular: the Capital Improvement Program review
process; Habitat Conservation Plan update; and a complete and itemized report would be
presented to the Board regarding Outstanding Receivables to date. Mr. Houlemard said that the
Ad Hoc Committee regarding the Preston Park sale continues to meet and has scheduled a
meeting for December 2, 2010. He further noted that this item will be discussed under Closed
Session.

Old Business

a. Habitat Conservation Plan - Mr. Houlemard reported that the Department of Fish and
Wildlife promised comments by December 1, 2010. Elected officials met with the staff at
the California Department of Fish and Game (CDFG) and U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
(USFWS) during the Legislative Mission Trip in April this year. In addition, then Senator
Maldonado, also liaised on behalf of FORA at the request of Supervisor Potter, to keep the
process moving forward.

b. Annual Habitat Monitoring Reports — Senior Planner, Jonathan Garcia reported that
Habitat Managers are required to provide an annual report on habitat reserve management
activities under the Habitat Management Plan. The Bureau of Land Management (“BLM")
will collect reports from the jurisdictions and habitat managers, and then BLM will forward
the reports to the wildlife agencies (CDFG and USFWS).

c. Capital Improvement Program - Mr. Garcia reported that the consultant, David Zendher,
met with the Administrative Committee members at the last joint Administrative/Capital
Improvement Program meeting and will be providing information on any anomalies and
additional background and reports. He asked that committee members come to that
meeting prepared to contribute. Acting Assistant Executive Officer/Director of Planning &
Finance Steve Endsley noted that the Board is requiring a report in January. He further
stated that on December 15" there will be a presentation of the findings and this was a
quick turnaround, as requested by the FORA Board. Mr. Endsley said that dialogue is
happening with the consultant among FORA, the Jurisdictions, and the development
community.

d. Economic Development Administration Regional Conference — Executive Officer
Houlemard reported that he and Project Manager Jim Arnold, will be attending the
Economic Development Administration (“EDA”) Regional Training Conference held in
Los Angeles, December 7 — 9, 2010. Mr. Houlemard said that the EDA is still considering
funding Capital projects such as roads. However, they are moving away from major capital
improvement/infrastructure programs and toward regional capacity — small business. He
said that Susan Barich, who serves as the Executive Director of the Marina Technology
Cluster, will report back to the FORA Administrative Committee on either December 15 or
January 5 regarding the EDA conference. He further noted that the EDA is changing how
they fund programs and are making cuts of 5 -15% in order to reduce the deficit. Mr.
Houlemard stated that Congressman Farr has said that the government is unlikely to issue

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
December 1, 2010
Page 2




ARRA (American Recovery and Reinvestment Act) funds and EDA funding for the next 18
months is likely to be diminished. He said that FORA is looking at other federal programs
for future funding.

8. New Business

a. Administrative Committee meeting dates for 2011 - A motion was made by Graham Bice
seconded by Vicki Nakamura to approve the Administrative Committee meeting dates for
2011. The motion carried unanimously.

b. CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION: General Plan Amendments for the City of Marina
Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan - Jonathan Garcia reported that the City of Marina -
submitted a bike plan for the consistency determination review. He said that staff reviewed
the request and prepared a report for the Board. Theresa Szymanis, Planning Services
Manager for the City of Marina reported that the City adopted guidelines regarding facilities,
grants, and lower greenhouse emissions, thus adopting these items into the Bicycle and
Pedestrian Master Plan. She said that relevant staff reports and resolutions are attached to the
staff report. Graham Bice asked a question regarding what level of Environmental Review
occurred for the Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan. Ms. Szymanis stated that it was tied to
the General Plan. She thought that it was a Mitigated Negative Declaration and no additional
impacts would be created in addition to the General Plan or the EIR (Environmental Impact
Report). Mr. Bice requested a copy of the mitigated document and Christi Di lorio, Assistant
City Manager City of Marina, stated she would provide a copy of the document. Mr. Houlemard
stated that staff recommended the Administrative Committee recommend FORA Board
concurrence with the Marina’s Consistency Determination. A motion was made by Todd Muck
seconded by Christie Di lorio to approve the Consistency Determination General Plan
Amendments for the City of Marina Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Pian. The motion
carried unanimously.

‘There being no further business Chair Houlemard adjourned the meeting at 8:55 a.m.

Minutes prepared by Daylene Ailiman, Deputy Clerk

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
December 1, 2010
Page 3



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

100 12" Street, Building 2880 \
Marina, CA 93933 Q
(831) 883-3672 (TEL) - (831) 883-3675 (FAX) - www.fora.org “(Q@

DV

MINUTES OF THE

JOINT ADMINISTRATIVE / CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM COMMITTEE MEETING
Wednesday, November 17, 2010

Call to order at 8:15 a.m.
Administrative Committee Co-chair Doug Yount called the meeting to order at 8:18 a.m. The
following people, as indicated by signatures on the roll sheet, were present:

Nick Nichols, Monterey County Ray Corpuz, City of Seaside
Rob Robinson, BRAC Jim Arnold, FORA

Doug Yount, City of Marina Graham Bice, UCMBEST
Tim O’Halloran, City of Seaside John Marker, CSUMB

Vicki Nakamura, MPC Jim Cook, Monterey County
Daniel Dawson, City of DRO tan Gillis, Urban Community Partners
Todd Muck, TAMC Anne Cribbs, MHP
Jonathan Garcia, FORA Debby Platt, City of Marina
Steve Endsley, FORA Pat Ward, Bestor Engineers
Bob Schaffer, MCP Crissy Maras, FORA

Scott Hilk, MCP Crisand Giles, BIA Bay Area

Pledge of Allegiance
Chair Yount asked Nick Nichols, who agreed, to lead the pledge of allegiance.

Acknowledgements, Announcements, Correspondence — none
Public Comment Period — none

Approval of October 20, 2010 Meeting Minutes

CSUMB representative John Marker requested an edit to page 4, 4" paragraph, 3" sentence. He
asked that the sentence be changed from “They have an EDA planning grant and a business plan
being reviewed by EDA’ to read “They have an EDA planning grant and a business plan is under
development.” The minutes were approved with the noted edit.

Follow-up to the November 12, 2010 FORA Board Meeting

FORA Acting Assistant Executive Officer/Director of Planning and Finance Steve Endsley noted that
the Board approved the City of Seaside request to fund the traffic study needed to open connector
roads constructed as a part of the General Jim Moore Boulevard project, a regional benefit.

New Business — none

Old Business
a. Capital Improvement Program (CIP} Review — Consultant Presentation
¢ Jurisdictions’ development forecasts
¢ Cost-Burden Analysis - update
+ Table 1 — Summary of Other Costs and Contingencies
FORA Senior Planner Jonathan Garcia introduced David Zehnder of EPS and noted that EPS had
met with individual jurisdictions since the last joint meeting to refine development forecasts used in
their work effort.
FORA Joint Administrative and Capital improvement Program Committee Meeting

November 17, 2010
Page 1



Mr. Zehnder directed committee members’ attention to the memo and tables distributed as a part of
the meeting packet. He noted that, at the last meeting, they went around the table and asked
jurisdictional representatives for updated forecasts and for the CIP projects they felt were
instrumental to development. That exercise showed that the CIP is fairly accurate. EPS is now
working to confirm residential and non-residential development. One area that needs attention is the
affordable residential units. As a side note, Mr. Zehnder mentioned that the FORA CIP did not carry
500 CSUMB affordable units, which caused the total residential units to exceed 6160. Mr. Zehnder
noted that affordable/below market rate units could not support the full development fee and that
lowering the fee for these types of units would not have an impact on the overall fee since FORA has
formulated a fee reduction assumption in Table 4. This will be explored more and presented with
draft results next month.

Regarding the Cost Burden Analysis, while total infrastructure cost burden around 15-20% is
standard, the FORA fee is bumping 10-12% by itself. EPS will be testing residential developmerst at
East Garrisen and Marina Dunes, commercial at Marina Dunes, and a resort at Bayonet and
Blackhorse Golf Course. Monterey County representative Jim Cook asked if EPS would be testing
industrial development and advised using UCSC’s industrial site. Mr. Zehnder stated that it could be
possible to exchange one of the residential tests for an industrial test if it is the most compeliing test
to do. EPS will work with FORA to consider that as an option.

Regarding other sources of FORA funding, if land sales don't occur, FORA's building removal
program may be in jeopardy. Also, given the current pace of development, tax increment (T1) may
not prove to be a significant funding source prior to FORA's transition. The Tl FORA receives is
currently assigned to the FORA operating budget.

The main thrust of the EPS work program is focused on the contingency. A table in the packet
showed $125M in contingency items which accounts for about 40% of the entire CIP. Several
projects in the contingency list include capital improvements, i.e. sound attenuation on General Jim
Moore Bivd. EPS is looking at combining all the transportation costs into one category that equals
25% of the transportation obligation. Habitat line items may see cost savings when the HCP is
finalized. There is approximately $2.76M in unassigned costs that EPS will recommend for removal.

Caretaker costs will be evaluated in more detail. Mr. Cook asked what caretaker costs include. Mr.
Endsley responded that, originaily, land was intended to transfer directly through FORA to the
jurisdictions. Around 1999, the jurisdictions were worried that they would incur costs related to
police, fire, health and safety, illegal dumping, etc. on property sitting vacant. Another example is the
cost of Pollution and Legal Liability insurance that FORA procured, which has an expiration date of
2014. Mr. Cook was glad to know that there is a line item in the contingency that will help fund
property management of habitat parcels. Chair Yount noted that there are trade-offs: funding for the
costs involved for the property management of vacant land and buildings versus a lower fee to spur
development on these parcels.

Seaside representative Ray Corpuz asked if there was any impact on the Base Reuse Plan (BRP).
Mr. Endsley responded that the consultant was instructed to work within the BRP. There are only
two caps in the BRP, housing units and water allocation. Everything else can be adjusted without
revising the BRP.

Scott Hilk asked if the Administrative Committee or FORA Board would consider the impacts of Gelay

in development related to Tl. Mr. Zehnder responded that EPS would look at Tl as a potential

mechanism to reduce the fee and the impact will be presented in their analysis. Mr. Yount stated

that Tl is a huge benefit to the region which is an incentive for moving development forward.

EPS will present their draft recommendations at a joint Administrative and Capital Improvement

Program committee meeting scheduled for December 15", The materials will be sent to members
FORA Joint Administrative and Capital improvement Program Committee Meeting

November 17, 2010
Page 2



via email prior to the meeting to allow time for review. There were no additional comments on this
item.

b. CIP Review — Transportation Agency for Monterey County (TAMC) study on CIP
project funding allocations by fund type and project phase

TAMC representative Todd Muck distributed 3 tables: Table 2 from the recently approved FY
2010/11 FORA CIP; the TAMC study on CIP project funding allocations by fund type and project
phase; and a table illustrating the differences between the adopted and the proposed. Mr. Muck
stated that TAMC reviewed the needs of specific projects, including the need for matching funds, and
lined up projects in specific years using typical project phasing. The overall total of the transportation
obligation remains the same. Mr. Endsley noted that TAMC was suggesting replacement projects,
showing a light rail project and improvements to Highway 1 at Del Monte and Fremont instead of
regional project R3, Hwy 1 — Seaside Sand City. TAMC would have to determine that the
replacement project accomplishes the same thing.

Committee members asked that TAMC work with this joint committee to review the reassessment of
project phasing. They additionally requested the analysis behind why projects were moved out. Mr.
Cook made the motion that TAMC work with individual jurisdictions and come back to this joint
committee with revised tables on December 15th prior to review by any other board or committee.
The motion was seconded by several members and passed unanimously.

Mr. Yount noted his concern that improvements to Highway 156 were not a higher priority. Mr. Muck
replied that improvements to Highway 156 are TAMC’s highest unfunded priority. There were no
other comments on this item.

9. ltems from members — none

10. Adjournment

Chair Yount adjourned the meeting at 9:40 AM.

Minutes prepared by Crissy Maras, Administrative Coordinator

FORA Joint Administrative and Capital Improvement Program Committee Meeting
November 17, 2010
Page 3



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT
- EXECUTIVE -

Subject: Habitat Conservation Plan — status report

Meeting Date: January 14, 2010
Agenda Number: 8b INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION(S):

Receive a status report regarding the Habitat Conservation Plan (‘HCP”) and State of California
2081 Incidental Take Permit (2081 permit”) preparation process.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The Fort Ord Reuse Authority (‘FORA"), with the support of its member jurisdictions and
consultant team, is on a path to receive approval of a completed basewide HCP and 2081
permit in 2012, concluding in the US Fish and Wildlife Service (“USFWS") and California
Department of Fish and Game (“CDFG") issuing crucial federal and state permits.

The FORA Board provided direction on the governance structure of the future HCP Joint
Powers Authority Cooperative on May 14, 2010. ICF International (formerly Jones & Stokes),
FORA's HCP consuitant, completed a pre-public administrative draft HCP on December 4
2009. FORA member jurisdictions completed a comment and review period, which ended
February 26, 2010. At this time, USFWS has commented on all draft HCP sections except for
the Funding and Alternatives sections, while CDFG has not submitted any comments by the
agreed upon December 1, 2010 deadline. The next critical milestones to completing the HCP
are receiving HCP comments from USFWS and CDFG, resolving any outstanding issues from
comments, and drafting the National Environmental Policy Act/California Environmental Quality
Act ("NEPA/CEQA") documents. ICF International intends to schedule a working group meeting
after the HCP comments are received. FORA staff will be working on two outstanding issues:
1} a solution that would allow the Permittees to include the Monterey Ornate Shrew as a
covered species in the HCP and 2) a solution to identifying and certifying an endowment holder
that can guarantee an acceptable cap rate for the HCP endowments.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller

ICF International and Denise Duffy and Associates' (FORA's NEPA/CEQA consultant) contracts
have been funded through FORA’s annual budgets to accomplish HCP preparation. Staff time
for this item is included in the approved FY 10-11 budget.

COORDINATION:

Executive Committee, Administrative Committee, Legislative Committee, HCP working group,
HCP Permit Completion working group, FORA Jurisdictions, USFWS and CDFG personnel, ICF
International, Denise Duffy and Associates, and various development teams.

Reviewed byD %k@lf/f‘ Q&Qﬂ/&( |

Prepared by
teve En

Jonathan Garcia

-

Approvedfoy

" Michael A¥Houlemard, Jr,



| FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT
| EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

Subject: Outstanding Receivables

Meetmg Date: January 14, 2011
Agenda Number: 8¢

INFORMATION/ACTION

RECOMMENDATIONS:
[. Receive a Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) outstanding receivables update as of December 31, 2010.

Il. Authorize the FORA Executive Officer to execute tax increment payment agreement with the City of
Seaside.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

FORA has both receivables that are due during the fiscal year and outstanding receivables that remain
unpaid (delinquent} after their due date. According to the FORA Late Fee policy, receivables older than 90
days are reparted to the Board.

PLL Loan Payments CFD Tax Interest Amount
FY 09-10 pmnt FY 10-11 pmnt Fees Increment Reimburs  Outstanding
1 City of Del Rey Oaks 182,874 256,023 438,897
2 City of Marina 23,796 124,232 146,028
1 City of Seaside 358,830 358,830
Total outstanding receivables 945,755

1. City of Del Rey Oaks (DRO):

* PLL insurance annual_payments: In 2008 DRO cancelled agreement with its project developer
who previously made the PLL loan payments. The FORA Board approved a payment plan for
DRO and the interim use of FORA funds to pay the premium until DRO finds a new developer (who
will be required by the City to bring the PLL Insurance coverage current). DRO anticipates finding
a suitable developer for its Fort Ord Property within the next few months. DRO agreed to make
interest payments on the balance owed until the new developer is secured, and they are current.

2. City of Marina (Marina):

= CFD fee: Marina approved development entittements for the Neeson Road projects in 2004 and
2008 without collecting the CFD fee. At its September mesting, the FORA Executive Committee
instructed staff to work with Marina staff to contact the owners to secure the $23,796 payment.
Marina sent letters to the Neeson property owners about the FORA fee. FORA staff were able to
contact and invoice one owner, but not yet received payment. Resolution has not yet been
achieved regarding two other owners.

« Tax increment: In the fall of 2010, as directed by the FORA Board as part of the Capital
Improvement Program review, FORA conducted an audit of tax increment revenue that FORA
collects from the Cities of Seaside, Marina and Monterey County. The results indicated that FORA
is owed property tax increment payments from Seaside and Marina. Both cities acknowledged the
underpayment.

Payment: Marina is working to identify resources to make the payment in the near term.
Staff will bring this item back to the FORA Board in February if FORA does not receive
payment by then.



3. City of Seaside (Seaside):

» Taxingrement: Please see paragraph 2 above.

Payment: Seaside requested a payment plan to repay this obligation. Staff recommends
that the Board authorize the Executive Officer to finalize and execute a repayment
agreement between FORA and Seaside.

Seaside is:

1) Proposing to repay this obligation In four equal installments, the first installment due
January 31, 2011 and fourth instaliment due June 30, 2012.

2) Willing to pay interest on outstanding balance.

3) Requesting that the FORA Board consider making an exception to its Late Fee Policy
reducing the interest rate to 1% per annum in this cne case given the circumstances.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Negative. FORA expends its own resources until these receivables are collected.

COORDINATION:

Executive Commitiee.

Prepared by /7 W / y

y
v “lvana Bednarik

FORA Board Meeting
January 14, 2011
Item 8c— Page 2



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD R
| ~ EXECUTIVE OFFICE

Subject: Executive Officer's Travel
Meeting Date: January 14, 2011
Agenda Number: 8d ACTION/INFORMATION

T

RECOMMENDATION:

i.  Receive a report from the Executive Officer concerning business travel on behalf of the Fort Ord Reuse
Authority ("FORA”"), which was approved by the Executive Committee on January 5, 2011,
ii.  Authorize increase in travel budget authority by two-thousand dollars for FY 10-11.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSICN:

The Executive Officer regularly submits reports to the Executive Committee providing details of fravel requests,
including those by the Fort Ord Reuse Authority ("FORA”) staff and board members. Travel expenses may be paid or
reimbursed by FORA, outside agencies/ jurisdictions/organizations, or a combination of these sources. The
Executive Commiftee reviews and approves these requests, accordingly, and the travel information is reported to the
Board as an informational item.

~ January 24, 2011 Legislative trip to Sacramento, CA. Executive Officer Houlemard and Chair/Supervisor
Potter (and maybe others) will visit legislators regarding legislation to allow former Fort Ord jurisdictions to use
tax increment in Base Reuse Plan designated areas to support commercial project infrastructure. This was
included in FORA’s 2010 Legislative Agenda and is supported by every former Fort Ord jurisdiction as well as
adjacent communities. In addition, Mr. Houlemard and Mr. Potter expect to meet with Jack Kirwan from the
California Department of Veterans Affairs regarding the Veterans Cemetery, and representatives from® the
California Department of Fish and Game ("CDFG") regarding the Habitat Conservation Plan.

~ February 13-16, 2011Association of Defense Communities (“ADC”) Winter Forum trip to San Antonio,
Texas. As previously reported at the November 2010 Board meeting, Executive Officer Houlemard and
Chair/Supervisor Potter (and maybe others) will be attending the ADC Winter Forum on Installation Innovation,
Efficiency & Partnership which include updates on several topics impacting the reuse of former Military
instaliations. Workshops include Financing and Public-Private Partnerships, Collaborating with the Community,
Renewable Energy and Land Use Compatibility, Managing Redeveiopment in a Down Economy, and more.

~ March 13 - 18, 2011 Legislative Mission trip to Washington, DC. Executive Officer Houlemard and
Chair/Supervisor Potter will travel to the nation’s capital to attend a series of meetings that will focus on items
from the FORA Legislative Agenda, inciuding foliow-up with the U.S. Army, U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency, Department of Interior, Bureau of Reclamation, Congressman Farr and others. FORA has coordinated
this mission trip with both TAMC (' Transportation Agency of Monterey County”) and MCWD (“Marina Coast
Water District”), regarding those legislative issues that overlap each agency.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Caontroller

The travel expenses will be covered by FORA and reimbursed according to FORA Travel Policy (in some cases
portions are paid by the jurisdiction). The $16,000 travel budget is about 70% expended before these three trips.
The Executive Committee is recommending increasing the budget authority by $2,000 to provide sufficient
funding through the fiscal year end and allow select incoming Board members to participate in some of these
trips. This adjustment will be reported with the mid-year budget update.

COORDINATION:
Executive Committee, JEA & Associates, TAMC and MC

Prepared by ){ él&n‘ﬂ,{/u Approjed by

ylene Alliman

Michael AYHdulemard, Jr.




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT |

ELECTION OF OFFICERS - 2011

Subject: Report from Nominating Committee
Meeting Date: January 14, 2011
Agenda Number: 9a ACTION

RECOMMENDATION:

1.  Elect three voting members of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (“FORA") Board of Directors to serve as
officers for a term of one year (February 2011 — January 2011):

¢ Chair
¢ First Vice-Chair
¢ Second Vice-Chair

2. Confirm the Nominating Committee’s recommendation of two other representatives from the Board,
both to serve on the Executive Committee:

¢ A past Chair of the Board or, in the absence of one, a second representative-at-large
» One other voting member of the Board to serve as a representative-at-large

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The FORA Master Resolution states that the Authority's three officers shall be elected by the Board at the
end of its first regular meeting in January of each year. Serving on the 2011 Nominating Committee were
Mayors Sue McCloud (Chair), David Pendergrass Jerry Edelen, and Chuck Della Sala; and Supervisor
Dave Potter. The Committee met on January 5" and recommended the following slate: _

Chair:  Supervisor Dave Potter
1% Vice Chair;  Mayor Jerry Edelen
2" vice Chair:  To be determined
Past Chair.  (Vacant for 2011 — Executive Committee opening to be filled by the
second representative-at-large below)
Board Representative: Mayor David Pendergrass
Board Representative:  To be determined

The Nominating Committee will meet regarding the final two recommendations once the Committee has
received appointments to the Board from jurisdictions.

VOTING PROCEDURE: A summary nomination covering all offices may be offered by any board member
before voting for the individual offices is commenced. In the absence of this, the Chair will accept
nominations for each office, starting with the Chair, and conduct an election as noted in Attachment A. A
simple majority of the total number of votes cast determines the election.

The Authority officers serve for a term of one year. They may be reelected for no more than one
consecutive, additional term in the same office. The board policy is that the officers shall rotate on a
regular basis among the voting members of the Board. Succession is from 2™ Vice Chair to 1% Vice Chair
to Chair. The Board may appeint other officers as deemed necessary. The three officers and a
representative-at-large comprise the Executive Committee at this time. There has been no past chair
since the August 14, 2009 board meetiffg.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller

None

el

COORDINATION: Nominating Committee and Execu)fve Com

Prepared by@%@d@& Approv
aylene Alliman

by

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr.




Attachment A
To ltem 9a
FORA Board Meeting, January 14, 2011

VOTING PROCEDURES
Election of Officers

January 14, 2011 FORA Board Meeting

The Chair (or Acting Chair) opens the election of officers by requesting that the
Chair, or other member, of the Nominating Committee present the committee’s
recommended slate of officers.

The Board may elect the three officers by a summary nomination, wherein a
motion to elect all three is made, seconded and carries. In the absence of a
summary nomination, the Chair will request nominations for each board position
in turn. The order of the election shall be the Chair first and then the First Vice-
Chair followed by the Second Vice-Chair. Each position, if voted individually, is
voted on before the next position is voted on. The two appointed representatives
to the Executive Committee (a representative-at-large and a past board chair or, if
there is none, another voting board member) may be elected, appointed, or
simply confirmed by acclamation by the Board.

If only one nomination is received for a position, a voice vote to elect by
acclamation may be accepted by the Chair.

If more than one nomination for any position is received, the procedure shall be
as follows:

. Nominees for each position are given the opportunity to make a short
statement.

. Ballots are distributed, voted and then collected by the Deputy Clerk.
. Ballots are tallied by the Executive Officer and the Authority Counsel.

. Voting results are announced by the Executive Officer before election of the
other officers takes place.



